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CALL TO ORDER

APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, May 2,2Q23

G EN ERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

OPEN TIME: (Please obserue a three-minute time limit)

This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin
Water District. When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can
ask questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer
a matter to staff, or direct statf to place a matter of business on a future agenda. The public may also
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration.

STA F F/ D I RE CTORS REPOR TS

CO'VSEVT CALENDAR

The General Manager has reviewed the following items. To his knowledge, there is no opposition to
the action. The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be
removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at the request of any person.

Consent - Approve; ESA Consulting Services Agreement Amendment 3 - Biological
Monitoring Services for New Gallagher Well No. 2 Permit Conditions

Consent - Approve.' Amend Contract for On-Call Painting and Coating Services -
Redwood Painting, lnc.

INFORMATION ITEMS

Quarterly Financial Statement - March 31,2023

Administration & Laboratory Upgrade Project - Construction Update

Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment

lnspection of the Stafford Treatment Plant's Risk Management Plan

NBWA Meeting - May 5,2023

MISCELLAA'EOUS
Disbursements - Dated May 4,2023
Disbursements - Dated May 11,2023

All times are approximate and for reference only.

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein.

5.

b.

Dr



NMWD Agenda
May 16,2023
Page 2 Date Posted'. 51 1 1 12023

Est.
Time Item

5:30 p.m. 13. ADJOURNMENT

Subject
North Marin Aqueduct - Redwood Blvd Landslide Status - 4-28-23
Monthly Progress Report
FY 23124 lnsurance Renewal

News Articles:
Marin lJ - Water-wise gardening - UC MARIN MASTER GARDENER
Marin lJ - Agencies plan massive wildfire buffer in Novato - PROTECTION PROJECT
Marin lJ - MMWD settles lawsuit over fee - LONG LEGAL FIGHT
Marin lJ - Bid rate increases to pay for water supply projects - MARIN MUNICIPAL

Social Media Posts:
NltVl\l/D WeO inO Social Media Reporl - April 2023
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

May 2,2Q23

CALL TO ORDER

President Fraites called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water

District to order at 4:00 p.m. at the District Headquarters and the agenda was accepted as

presented. Present were Directors Jack Baker, Ken Eichstaedt, Rick Fraites, Michael Joly, and

Stephen Petterle. Also present were General Manager Tony Williams, District Secretary Eileen

Mulliner, Auditor-Controller Julie Blue and AGM/Chief Engineer Eric Miller.

District employees Chris Kehoe (Construction Superintendent), Robert Clark (Operations

and Maintenance Supervisor), and Ryan Grisso (Water Conservation Coordinator) were also in

attendance.

Claire Garvie and Camille Milliner of Kiosk were also in attendance.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Joly, seconded by Director Baker, the Board approved the minutes

from the April 1 8,2023 meeting as presented by the following vote:

AYES: Director(s) Baker, Eichstaedt, Fraites, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

GEN ERAL MANAG ER'S REPORT

During the General Manager's report, Mr. Williams summarized the various meetings he

recently attended. He also noted a Potter Valley Project related item in the Miscellaneous section

and future updates will follow. Regarding meetings, on April 19, Mr. Williams gave a presentation on

the history of the District at Leadership Novato and Robert Clark gave a tour at Stafford Treatment

Plant as well. Mr. Williams also attended Congressman Huffman's annual environmental breakfast

on April 24. Mr. Williams gave an interview to KPIX Channel 5 wherein he explained the rate

increase. However, when the story aired it focused more on carwashes and recycled water. On

April 27, he attended a regional water manager's meeting that in the future President Fraites will

also be invited to. On April 28, Mr. Williams gave a presentation at Novato Rotary. He also metwith

Ben Horenstein of Marin Water and the Caltrans' District 4 Deputy Manager on May 2 to get an

update on the Redwood Blvd. landslide and Caltrans' commitment to a repair schedule. Mr.

Williams said that there will be a more detailed update on the slide provided at one of the June

Board meetings. He said that approximately 44 million gallons (MG) has flowed through the
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aqueduct since March 22 when the slide occurred. He also stated that the interim gas pipeline that

PG&E temporarily installed in the median is no longer being used and has been removed.

OPEN TIME

President Fraites asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.

STA F F/D I RECTO RS RE PO RTS

President Fraites asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda.

Chris Kehoe informed the Board that the District construction crews were in West Marin to perform

the flushing of the distribution system. The last flushing was done in 2Q20.

Director Baker inquired about the S/8-inch meters purchase on an earlier disbursement

record. He asked what the new policy is for new housing. Tony Williams answered that those

meters were replacement meters for existing homes. Mr. Williams said that a 1-inch meter is typical

for new construction to meet fire sprinkling requirements.

Director Joly noted that the management team has done a fine job staying abreast on things

that come up and keeping the Board informed.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Eichstaedt, the Board

approved the following items on the consent calendar by the following vote:

AYES: Director(s) Baker, Eichstaedt, Fraites, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

TEXT FOR SPRING 2023 NO TO ''WATERLINE'. ISSUE 50

The Board approved the Spring 2023 Novato "Waterline", lssue 50.

TEXT FOR SPRING 2023 WEST MARIN ''WATERLINE', ISSUE 22

The Board approved the Spring 2023 West Marin "Waterline", lssue 22

ACTION CALENDAR

LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR SONOMA WATER GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE POTTER

VALLEY PROJECT

Mr. Williams summarized the Letter of Support for Sonoma Water Grant Application for the

Potter Valley Project and that this was a good opportunity to fund further analysis for future water

transfers.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Joly, the Board approved by

the following vote:

AYES: Director(s) Baker, Eichstaedt, Fraites, Joly, and Petterle

NMWD Draft Minutes 2 o'f 4 MaY 2,2023
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NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

INFORMATION ITEMS

PUBLIC r,OA'S IMPLEMENTA TION UPDATE

Claire Garvie of Kiosk gave a presentation which was a recap on the communications

program Kiosk has put together for North Marin Water District including the website, annual report,

web analytics, photo shoots, and social media. The District is on Facebook, lnstagram and Twitter

and Kiosk works closely with Ryan Grisso on the content that is put out. Kiosk also assists with the

Waterline newsletters and other mailers. Ms. Garvie also mentioned that all information is translated

into Spanish as well. Director Eichstaedt said that having communications in Spanish is very

important and was pleased to see it, The Board complimented Kiosk and thanked them for the work

they have done for the District.

Ryan Grisso, Ms. Garvie and Ms. Milliner left the meeting.

PREVIEW OF FY 23/24 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM rcIPI

Eric Miller gave a presentation on the FY 23124 Capital lmprovement Program. He noted

that in the Novato Service Area, one project is related to North Marin Aqueduct and the landslide

and one is for the interconnection modifications with Marin Water. He said that the Novato Blvd.

Widening project has been continued to be budgeted for several years even though it continues to

be postponed by the City of Novato. He said that overall approximately $1 million has been

budgeted for pipeline work for the fiscal year. He also mentioned that the Crest Pump Station will go

out to bid this fiscal year. The CIP includes a plan to upgrade one of our hydro-pneumatic pump

stations and, if the projectgoeswell, the remaining high priorityoneswillbe budgeted overthe next

several years. Director Baker commented that these hydro-pneumatic systems are only in cedain

areas of the distribution system where storage tanks don't exist. Mr. Miller noted that the Lynwood

Pump Station has been budgeted for preliminary design and also said that the supernatant line

(waste line) from the Stafford Treatment Plant to Center Road will be a big project for this next year.

Regarding the West Marin budget, Mr. Miller summarized the projects that are slated for FY 23124.

Two of the larger projects are the Gallagher Well No. 1 Rehabilitation and Galvanized Pipeline

Replacement on Balboa. Mr. Miller summarized the Recycled Water and Oceana Marin projects as

well.

NBWRA MEETING - APRIL 24,2023

Tony Williams and Director Baker attended the April 24,2023 North Bay Water Reuse

Association (NBWRA) meeting. Mr. Williams stated that at one time the District was a full member

NMWD Draft Minutes 3 of 4 May 2,2023
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but has now transitioned to Associate Member. The drought contingency plan is the only current

NBWRA project that the District is involved with.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements Dated April20, and

April27,2023,Auditor-Controller's Monthly Reporl of lnvestments for March 2023,FY 23 3'd Quarter

Labor Cost Repod, U.S. Seasonal Drought Outlook - April 20, Russian River Forum - Planning

Group Roster.

The Board also received the following news articles: Marin lJ - Hearing scheduled on 126-

home project - NOVATO, North Marin Water District plans 9.5% Novato rate hike - NEW PROPOSAL,

City's housing plan rejected - NOVATO, Pt. Reyes Light - Reservoirs full, but officials say risks remain.

ADJOURNMENT

President Fraites adjourned the meeting at 5:30 p.m.

Submitted by

Eileen Mulliner
District Secretary
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Item #5

NORTH fiTARIN

WATER DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors Date: May 16,2023

Tony Williams, Genera t ltianager p/
Approve ESA Consulting Services Agreement Amendment 3 - Biological Monitoring
Services for New Gallagher Well No. 2 Permit Conditions
R:\Folders by Job No\6000.iobs\6609.20 New Gallagher Well No 2\BOD MemosUo23 0516 ESA Amendment\s-16-23 BOD Memo ESA Amendment
Permitting.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the
agreement with ESA

$29,775 to be included in the FY 2023124 budget

To:

From:

Subject

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Background

At the October 6,2020 meeting, the Board approved an agreement with ESA for permitting

services to prepare an addendum to the 2009 Gallagher Wells and Pipeline Project lnitial

Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (|S/MND) for an amount not to exceed $66,000 (including

contingency). At the April 6,2021 meeting, the Board approved a $50,000 amendment (including

contingency) to ESA's agreement to cover additional efforts including assistance with the Marin

County Local Coastal Permit and the subsequent Appeal to the Coastal Commission (which was

denied). Amendment No. 2, approved at the May 4, 2021 Board meeting, covered required

supplemental groundwater, Lagunitas Creek stream flow and biological monitoring and reporting

efforts outlined in Mitigation Measure BR-2 as revised in the Gallagher Wells and Pipeline CEQA

Addendum approved by the Board at the March 2,2021 meeting.

On February 18, 2022, the California Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW) issued a

Streambed Alteration Agreement (EPIMS No. MAN-19777) for the Gallagher Wells. This permit

primarily focuses on operations (water diversions) of both wells as opposed to the actual

construction of Well No. 2. The various "water diversion measures" in the permit include

streamflow and water use data which is being reported by District staff. However, one of the

measures requires in-stream habitat monitoring for a 0.8-mile reach of Lagunitas Creek upstream

and downstream o'f tf'" well sites, including Pre-Project flow conditions, with no well operation,

and Post-Project flow conditions, with both Gallagher wells operating. Pre- and Post-Project

monitoring must occur during spring and fall periods to capture seasonal variations in flow. ln-

stream habitat data collected shall include physical measurements of each habitat unit including

mean depth, maximum depth, linear length, and wetted width; and water quality metrics including

dissolved oxygen and water temperature.

Approved ov ana y'//
Date 3



BOD Memo ESA Amendment 3
May 16,2023
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Discussion

The Gallagher Well No. 2 construction was completed, tested and approved by the state

and went into full operation in November 2022. The timing and urgency in bringing the new well

online conflicted with the required timing and well operations needed for in-stream monitoring

required by the CDFW permit. The in-stream monitoring repoft had a January 1,2023 deadline

per the permit but CDFW granted an extension. The attached ESA proposal summarizes the

scope of services needed to conduct the in-stream work and satisfy the CDFW permit conditions.

Staff will work with CDFW to extend the new deadline for this work with a new start date sometime

in the fall of this calendar year.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute amendment No. 3 with ESA for

a not-to-exceed fee of $29,775 to be billed on an hourly basis as approved by staff.

ATTACHMENT: 1. GW02 Supplemental Biologic Condition Monitoring proposal from ESA,
dated May 5,2023



,q\tr,'n, .b.',
1425 N. McDowell Boulevard

Suite 200

Petaluma, CA 94954

707.795 0900 rlicrr:
707 .795.0902 i:'t.

2023-05-05

Drew Mclntyre
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, CA 94945

Subject: Gallagher Well No. 2: Supplemental Biologic Condition Monitoring Scope of Work

ESA has prepared the following scope modification to provide 2023 and 2024 Environmental
Monitoring Services to support implementation of the Gallagher Well No. 2 and meet CDFW
Streambed Alteration Agreement (SAA) requirements. Our scope of work is based upon current project

status and links up with the overall scope of work to support implementation of Gallagher Well No. 2. lt
includes Biological Resource Monitoring to confirm post-project flow conditions to meet SAA permit

requirements.

ESA appreciates the opportunity to continue our long-standing working relationship with NMWD, and
we look forward to continuing to support the District in the successful implementation of this project.

Please feel free to contact me at 707-795-0904 or 415-307-3139 (cell) or iotoole@esassoc.com if you

have any questions or comments regarding this scope of work.

Sincerely,

,
1969-:CI9

James E. O'Toole
Senior Vice President

tt*f-# t*#.
tr

ATTACHMENT #1
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Page2

Task 1. Biological Resource Monitoring

The purpose of this task is to establish baseline conditions and assess whether well operations would affect

streamflows or biologic habitat conditions downstream of the Gallagher Well site. Monitoring will include pre-

project and post project conditions.

Task 1G. Field Monitoring: Pre-Project Flow Condition: Fall 2023 > 6 cfs

The ESA Team will complete Biological Resource Monitoring in Fall 2023 whenPark Gage flow conditions are

greater than 6 cfs and wells are not operating. ESA will review operational conditions with NMWD, as one well

may need to remain operational due to delivery needs.

Task 1D. Field Monitoring: Post-Project Flow Condition: Fall 2023 > 6 cfs

The ESA Team will complete Biological Resource Monitoring in Fall 2023 whenPark Gage flow conditions are

greater than 6 cfs and both wells are operating. This monitoring will provide post project confirmation that well

operations are not having an effect during lower Summer/Fall flow periods.

Task {E. Field Monitoring: Pre-Project Flow Condition: Spring 2024> 10 cfs

The ESA Team will complete Biological Resource Monitoring in Spring 2024 when Park Gage flow conditions

are greater than 10 cfs. ESA will review operational conditions with NMWD, as one well may need to remain

operational due to delivery needs. This monitoring will provide confirmation that well operations are not having

an effect during lower Summer/Fall flow periods.

Task 1F. Field Monitoring: Post-Project Flow Gondition: Spring 2024> 10 cfs

If deemed necessary, the ESA Team will complete Biological Resource Monitoring identified inSpring2024
when Park Gage flow conditions are greater than 10 cfs and both wells are operating. This monitoring will
provide post project confirmation that well operations are not having an effect during Spring flow periods.

Task 3. Draft and Final Technical Memos

Task 3.G/D. Post Project Technical Memorandum: Fall2023 TM > 6 cfs

The ESA Team will update the TM to include Fall2023 data and review post-project conditions versus baseline.

The ESA Team will synthesize the analysis and provide a technical memorandum, which will describe well

operations and corresponding field observations, instream habitat assessment observations, and conclusions. Our

scope of work assumes one round of comment by NMWD, and completion of a Final TM.

Task 3.E/F. Post Project Technical Memorandum: Spring 2024TM > 10 cfs

The ESA Team will update the TM to include Spring 2024 dataand review post-project conditions versus 2021

baseline. The ESA Team will synthesize the analysis and provide a technical memorandum, which will describe



r ESA
j ab^-.

I ?6t"r0l t

Mr. Williams
2023-05-05
Page 3

results of pump test and field observations, instream habitat assessment observations, and conclusions. Our scope

of work assumes one round of comment by NMWD, and completion of a Final TM.

Task 4. Project Management
Our project management task includes oversight of technical data collection, coordination of access, project
safety plan development, and bi-monthly conference calls, and up to 2 meetings with stakeholders to present

findings.



Table 1: Gost Proposal NMWD Well No.2
ESA Labor Detailand Expense Summary

Employee Names

Labor Category
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20.00

36.00
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$
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Task Name/DescriDtion
Biolooical Resource Monitorino

P.e-Proiect Habilat Monitorinq Fall 2023

Post Proiecl Habitat [4onitorinq Fall 2023

Pre-Proiect Flow condition Sprinq 2024

Post-Proiect Flow Condilion Sprinq 2024

DEft and Final Technical Memonnda

Post Projecl Fall 2023

Post Proiect TM Sorino 2024

Total Labor Costs
Effort - Labor Hours Onlv
Effort - Totel Proiect Cost

Task #
1.0

1.C

1.D

1_E

1.F

3.0

3 C/D

4n

Percent o

Percent o

ESA Labor Cost

ESA Non-Labor Expenses
Reimbursable Expenses

Subtotal ESA Non-Labor Expenses

! 24,280

1,495$

$ ,495

77529TOTAL:

H:hftpsl/esassoc-my.sharepointcom/peEonal/joioole_esassoc_com/Documenh{DocumendNMWD Well No 2023 Well No 2 BR2 Data Collection SOW V4-ESA Labor Cost & Project Total





To:

From:

Subject
&

May 16,2023

Amend Contract for On-Call Painting and Coating Services -
Redwood Painting, lnc.
\\nmwdfileseruer\Engineering\NON JOB No ISSUES\On-Call\BOD lvlemos\BOD lvlemo RPI Amendment 1 05.16.2023.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION That the Board authorize the GM to amend the On-
Call Painting and Coating Services Contract for Redwood
Painting, lnc.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Additional $250,000 (will be included inFY 23124 CIP budget)

Backqround

At the July 20, 2021 meeting, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an

agreement with Redwood Painting, lnc. (RPl) to provide On-Call Painting and Coating Services

as a result of a solicitation process conducted by staff. The initial budget allocated to RPI under

that agreement was $250,000.

Budget Status

Work performed by RPI at the Stafford Treatment Plant (STP) under the initial 2021 on-

call agreement includes the following projects and associated costs:

NORTH IIIARIN
WAIIR DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Eric Miller, Assistant GM/Chief Engineer

Item #6

$ 55,048

$ 43,706

$ 98,754

$151,246

$288,604

$100,000

$388,604

Approved Oy Ctt t4il

Proposed Services

As a result of a corrosion study performed earlier this year at STP, staff identified two

new coating projects at STP. RPI provided a quote for the work associated with coating the

three (3) filter basins and staff's conservative estimate for coating walls of the chlorine building

have been included is the list below:

Relining Secondary Containment Area at STP

Above Grade Piping at STP

TOTAL

RPI Remaining Balance to Date

Coating of 3 Filter Basins at STP

Coating walls of Chlorine Building at STP

TOTAL

Date



Redwood Painting, lnc. On-Call Contract Amendment
May 16,2023
Page 2 of 2

Completion of both projects require STP to be out of operation when the work takes

place, which means the window for both projects is between December and April. Engineering

staff will coordinate with Operations staff to execute both projects within the short time window.

Financial lmpact

The costs for these proposed services exceed RPI's remaining contract balance to date

by $237,358. Staff has anticipated these costs and they will be included in the proposed Capital

lmprovement Program (ClP) budget for Fiscal Year 2023124 lhat is scheduled for Board

consideration next month.

Recommendation

That the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the on-call agreement with

Redwood Painting, lnc. in the amount of $250,000 for an increased not-to-exceed amount of

$500,000, and to extend the contract completion date by 1 year for a new completion date of

June 30,2024.

ATTACHMENT: 1. Quote for coating filter basins from Redwood Painting, lnc. dated

February 23,2023



o? "J- o o J I ot*Lng Co., -0r*.

DIR:1 00005253

License No. 302617

Commercial* *Industrial Coatings* *Abrasive blasting

620 West lOth Street
P.O. Box 1269

Pittsburg, CA 94565
(92s) 432-4s00 Phone
(925) 432-6129 Fax

February 23,2023

Scope & Quotation Letter
For Information Contact: Robert Grangnelli

Project:

Inclusion:

Exclusions:

Clarifications:

Quotation,
Lump Sum Price One Basin: $109,214

Stafford Treatment Plant Coating
Actifloc Filter Basins
North Marin Water District
Novatoo CA

1. Coating Removal from interior of Actifloc Filter Basin.
2. Recoat interior of Basin per Tnemec Email dated2/612023 (attached).
3. Covering and Containment of Basin.
4. Testing and Disposal of Spent Grit from Grit Blasting.

1. Exterior of Actifloc Filter Basin.
2. Filter Media Removal.
3. Removal of Tube Modules.
4. Initial Complete cleanout of Basin.
5. Piping.
6. Overtime.

1. Dehumidifier to run 24 hours a day until coating is complete.
2. 110v power available onsite to run DH.
3. RPC will remove grating as needed for accesst

4. Once the final coat is applied to any item, any subsequent touch up
required due to damage by others will be extra work.

Lump Sum Price All Three Basins: $288,604



Grangnelli, Robert

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Oswald, Paul <poswald@tnemec.com>

Monday, February 6,202312:10 PM

Grangnelli, Robert; Bowers, Carl

Amos, Kelly

RE: Recoating Antifloc tanks North Marin WD

Redwood Painting Co - NMWD Stafford Treatment Plant - 2-6-23.pdf

)

AcnulOw: EXTERNAL sENDER This emoil originoted from outside of the organizotion. Do not ctick links or open

attschments unless you recognize the sender ond know the content is safe,

Hey Robert,

Thank you for getting back to me with those answers. Considering the condition for which these tanks are in, the only
course of action is a complete removal of the cuffent coating system. This will provide the Owner with the longest
possible service life to protect their asset, We recommend the following NSF Std. 6lAISF 600 certified lining:

Tank Interior, Immersion Service: ZinclBpoxy System:
Meets AWWA D102, Interior coating system ICS No. 3

Surface Preparation: SSPC-SP1O/NACE No. 2.
Primer: Tnenrec Series 9l-Hr0 I Hydro-7jnc or Serie.s 94-HrO I Hvdrn-Zins applied at a rala to achieve 2,5 - 3.5

mils dry film thickness
Stripe Coat: Tnenree Series Ll40F I Pota-Pox Plus (Color 1255 Beige) applied by brush at a rate to achieve 2.0 -
4.0 mils dry film thickness.
Pit Filler: Tnemec Series 215 I Surfacing Epoxy
Finish: Tnenrec Series 2l I Eooxoline (Color WH16 Off White) applied atarate to achieve 10.0 mils minimum,
up to 20.0 mils maximum (applied in one coat or two coats)

Hypedinks are included above and will redirect to the corresponding product pages on Tnemec's website. I have also.
included a price quote on the material. Please let us know when we can be of further assistance and if you have any
questions then pleasejust ask.

Robert, this hi-build system is designed with the applicator in mind allowing for cost saving on your labor. I'd like to
make this one of our case studies. This will allow for Tnemec to track the history on performance over the years. Do you
have any idea as to when this project might happen?

Best Regards,

Paul R. Oswald I Coatings Consultant
Anros and Associates. luc.
Independent Representative of Tnemcc Company. Inc.
East Bay I Cerfta| Valley
Tel: 866-317 -3206 | Fax: 530-643 -7367 | Cell: 925-567-6521

To see what makes Tnemec n different kind of Coatings Manufacturer,
click hcre

From: Grangnelli, Robert <rgrangnelli@ redwood ptg.com>

Sent: Monday, February 6,202310:29 AM
To: Oswald, Paul <poswald@tnemec.com>; Bowers, Ca rl <cbowers@tnemec.com>

Subject: RE: Recoating Antifloc tanks North Marin WD
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To:

From

MEMORANDUM

Tony Williams, General Manager May 9,2023

Reviewed by. Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Williamson, Accounting Supervisor and Ling Reilly, Senior Accountant

lnformation - FY22l23 March Financial Statement
t \accountants\financials\stmtfy23\md&a0323.doc

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

Subj

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Other Sources / (Uses).
Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

" See Page 8.

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate / '1,000 gal

lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account

lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal

Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)/from Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

Mar-23
Actual
$1,943,471

1,806,675

FY22t23
ActualYTD
$17,867,193

17,520,266
353.774

FY22t23
Budqet

$25,510,000
23,093,000

FYTD /
Budqet %

7jYo
76%

(23Yo)

7B%o

150o/o

173%

FY23 vs 22

Up/(Down)
4o/o

3%

1 86) (1, 519.000)

$40,609
420.054\

$700,701 $898,000
(3,823,000)(5, 749.638)

($379,445) ($5,048,e38) ($2, 925,000)

For the first nine months of the fiscal year 2022-2023, the District generated a net income of $700,701

and saw a net cash decrease of $5,048,938. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came

in 5% under budget and Operating Expense came in 4o/o over budget. $6,451,356 (34%) of the Capital

lmprovement projects Budget wai expended this fiscal year to date. At month end the ratio of total cash

to budgeted annual operating expense (sans depreciation) stood at208%.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

Mar-23
Actual
$1,852,754

'r,603,888

101,877\

FY22123

ActualYTD
$15,891,272

15,424,636
460 690

$927,326

FY21I22
ActualYTD
$15,208,773

14,990,293
(135,219)

$146 990 1014%

1o/o

(3%)
60/o

1006%
jYo

(760/0)

(35%)
0%

14o/o

20,821
111

$10 2e

$7.06
$1.32

$12,920
$o

$1 35

$31,328

20,821
1,456

$7 31

$44.54
$0.64

$208,280
($518,146)

$2,089
$558,1 84

______$93,299_
20,677

1,507

$6.92
$4.03
$0 06

$850,380
($7e3,e1e)

$12,400
$490,482

Consumption for the fiscal year to date was 3% less than the prior year same period. Total operating

revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, increased $682,499 from

the prior year same period. lncluded in the above charges is a drought surcharge of 5o/o for all

customers. Total operating expense was $434,342 more than last year.

1



Memo - March Financial Statement
May 9,2023
Page 2 of 3

The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 316 MG this fiscal year-to-date at a cost of $5,947lMG1 versus
$3,382/MG'from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 500 MG at a cost of $4,365/MG.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $927,326 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $1,098,000 and to a net income of
$83,260 for the prior year. $5,977,020 (36%) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project Budget
was spent versus $2,329,298 (27o/o) for the prior year. $208,280 in connection fees have been collected
($872,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $518,146 were transferred this fiscal yearfrom
the Novato Water Fund to the Recycled Water Fund. The Novato Connection Fee Reserve has a net
deficit of $8,661,192 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of Connection Fee receipts. This
is up from a net deficit of $5,941,496 last year. That deficit will be reimbursed by future Connection Fee
revenue. The Novato cash balance decreased $518,754 in March, and stood at $31,498,450 at month
end, compared to a budgeted projection of $16,319,000 at fiscal year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED

Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Connection Fee Alloc from Novato
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
RW Costs

Mar-23
Actual

FY22t23

ActualYTD
$1,044,846

1,041,588
(92,750)

$1 5,1 79
82,946

5,348

FY2',ll22

ActualYTD
$1,120,265

970,228
(147,820)

FY23 vs 22

Up/(Down)
(e%)
7%

(37o/o)

4%
(14o/o)

5%

(12%)
2%

(40o/o)

(35%)

20o/o

($62,418) _____$9q49L
100
131

$6 95
0.0

'1 13.8

31.4

5.8

$51 8,146

$0
$249,368

$2,217

100

0

$6.38
0.0

0.0

0.4

96

153.5

$6.61
0.0

129.1

30.7

9.7

$793,9'19

$0
$208,634

0.0

$0

$o
$931

131.4 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year to dale, 14o/o less than the prior year.
Operating revenue was 9% less than last year. Total operating expense was 7o/o more than the prior
year. The recycled water was produced at a cost of $2,3771MG2 (including potable water consumed)
versus $3,382/MG3 from SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is $2,827lMG.

The fiscal year net loss of $89,493 eompares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $389,000 and a net
income of $2,217 for the prior year. $0 (0%) of the Recycled Water Capital lmprovement Project Budget
was spent versus $29,475 (29o/o) for the prior year.

The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at $7,030,460 at month end, $3.5M of which amount resides in
restricted reserves for debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled Water
Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund.

1 Stafford production cost = TP op expense ($1 ,31 5,203) + SRF loan interest ($121 ,312) + plant depreciation ($442,628)t316 MG produced
2 Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($249,368) + treatment expense ($0) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan interest
($22,926) + Deer lsland plant depreciation ($86,940)/1 51 .1 MG produced
3 SCWR production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,753) + debt service charge ($232) + Russian River conservation charge ($35a) + Russian

River projects charge ($43)

2



Memo - March Financial Statement
May 9,2023
Page 3 of 3

WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal

Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

($53,610) ($152,284)

Mar-23
Actual

$50,1 58

101,280
(2,488)

FY22123

ActualYTD
$702,656

832,141

FY21t22
ActualYTD

FY23 vs 22

Up/(Down)
(1%)
22o/o

0o/o

(3"/")

(5%)

(100%)
(100%)

(22.798\

$711,057
683,568
24,949

$52,438

792
2.96

$e.90
($67.6e)
($18.1 1)

$0

$o

792

38.2

$12.93
($1e2.28)

($3.ee)

$0

$0

789

39.3

$13 58

$66.46
$1.34

$38,800
$7,490

Consumption for the fiscal year was 3% less than the prior year. Operating revenue was 1% less than
last year.

Operating expenditures were $148,573, ot 22o/o more than the previous year. The fiscal year net loss of
$152,284 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $129,000 and to a net income of $52,438 for the
prior year. $396,916 (61%) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget was expended this fiscal year,
and $0 in connection fees have been collected ($0 is budgeted). The West Marin cash balance
increased $160,629 in March and stood at $671,698 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of
$934,000 at fiscal year-end.

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss)/ Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Mar-23
Actual

$25,380
18,562
2 829

$9.647

FY22123

ActualYTD
$228,420

221,901

FY21t22
ActualYTD

FY23 vs 22

Up/(Down)
5%
4%

(78%)

(66%)

004

5o/o

$217,845
213,B39

8 633 40 119

235
$1 08

$41.05
$0

235
$1 0B

$64.48
$0

$1 5,1 52 $44 125

235
$1 03

$187.77
$o

Operating revenue of $228,420 was 5% more than the previous year due to the 5o/o rate increase
effective July 1 , 2Q22. Operating expenditures were 4o/o, or $8,062 more than the previous year. The
fiscal year net income of $15,152 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $102,000 and to a net
income of $44, 125 for the prior year. $77 ,420 (6Vo) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has been

expended this fiscal year.

No connection fees have been collected ($0 is budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance decreased

$27,390 in March and stood at $408,641 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $297,000
at June 30,2023.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

NOVATO
WATER

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U nrestricted/Undesignated Cash
Restricted Cash iruote r;
Connection Fee Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
DL Falk Const Escrow Acct
Desi nated Gash Note

ngency Fund
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Webster Bank-Admin Bldg/ClP Fund

Total Cash
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Market Value of Gash & lnvestments

Current Assets
Net Rece ivables - Consumers
Accrued Water Sales
Accounts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

Total Current Assets

TOTAL

$5,524,111 $1,s94,945

1,705,370 1,606,485
20,125 18,659

4,343,600 4,343,600
4,000,000 4,000,000
6,339,000 5,780,000
13,210,615 13,210,615

$39,903,960 $31,793,161
{2e4,711} ($294,711)

$39,609,249 $31,498,450

0
534

0

0
235,000

0

98,885
666

0
0

250,000
0

0
266

0

0

74,000
0

$18,600
122,755

0
0

0
0

0

$322,147 $334,375

$60,912
0

76,140
1,948

0

0

0

$o
2'15,000

2,417,211
1,047 ,297

614,299
275,773
191,559

$o
0
0

1,047,297
0
0

191,559

$0
215,000

2,417,211
0

614,299
275,773

0

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$3,272,644

$23,891

lrJ,4lu;
6,364

0

0

0
0

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$o
0
0
0
0

0

0

$o
0

0
0
0
0
0

A $7,030,460 $671,698 $403,641
$o $o $o

$7,030,460 $671,698 $408,641

$997,720
1,585,966

299,114
378,392

\zot j
283,038
814,185

$894,31 7
1,486,631

216,610
376,444

/tc7\\4Ur I

283,038
814,185

23,27423,274000

l\a€ountants\tinancials\stmtiyu\fi niyu.xE rl2l2o23 3:41 P M



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

NOVATO
WATER

Loans Receivable
Employee (Note 3)

Other Long Term Receivables 1ruote +;

Loans Receivable

Prooertv and Plant
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (1 6"+)
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1ruote s;

Net Property and Plant

Buildings and Equipment (ruote o)

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Lease Assets
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (ruote s;

Net Buildings and Equipment

Construction ln Proqress
Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB68
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB75

TOTAL

250,000
4,286,869

$4,536,869

$1,493,091
5,675,845

23,012,983
26,174,758
29,503,127

110,799,201
267 600

$197,926,605
G9.788.437\

$1 28,1 38,1 68

$7,534,226
(5,604,424)
$1,929,802

$1,551,117
'13,166,190

14,717,307
144,785,277

2,769,512

$2,1 19,365
1,239,527

323,072
1,942,282

974,333
347,955
587,691

$2,1 19,365
1,239,527

323,072
1,942,282

974,333
347,955
587,691

$250,000 $0 $0 $0
3,163,315 1,106,201 17,353 0

$3,413,315 $1,106,201 $17,353 $0

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$123,411
492,412
485,'163

3,568,548
122,324

6,129,757
0

$10,921,615
(4.687.687)

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$808

267

$2,126,771
(1,217,540)

$o

$o
400,081
400,081

1,309,312
0
0

1

$1,368,872
5,183,433

19,003,260
20,962,751
29,380,803
72,805,972

0

$148,705,092
(57,470,912)

$91 ,234, 1 80

$7,534,226
(5.604.424\

$1,929,802

$1,551 ,1 17
10,444,473
1 1,995,589

105,159,571
2,769,512

28,485

$0
0

2,666,198
1,643,458

0
31,863,471

0

$36,173,127
(6,412,297)

$o

858

$29,760,830 $6,233,928 $909,231

1

0

362
0

0

0
600

$o
0

0

0
0
0
0

(t

$o
0

0

0

0

0
0

$0
0

0

0
0
0

0

$o
0

$o
0

$0
0

$0

$o
89,594
89,594

29,850,424
0
0

$o
2,232,042
2,232,042
8,465,970

0
028 485

$196,110,813 $146,963,564 $37,993,919 $9,296,376 $1,856,953TOTAL ASSETS

t:\accountants\financials\-tmtfyu\fi nryu.xls5l2l2O23 3:41 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 3'',2023

NOVATO
WATER

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Gurrent Liabilities

e Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan-Current
Webster Bank-Admin Bldg/ClP Loan-Currer
WM Loan Due to Novato-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payable
Webster Bank Loan lnterest Payable
WM Loan from Novato-Loan lnterest Payable
Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note 8)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note 9)

Enterprise Vehicle Leases
Lease Liability-Current
Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities
Restricted Liabilities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Lonq Term Liablilities (Note 7)

JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan Payable
Webster Bank-Admin Bldg/ClP Loan Payab
WM Loan from Novato
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Enterprise Vehicle Leases
Lease Liability
Net Pension Liability
Total OPEB Liability (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 68
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 75
Deferred lnfl ow of Resources-Leases

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$1,709,712
365,886
900,362
365,356
290,000
753,254

0

41,297
7,341

49,554
0

393,372
14,519
'18,659

795,852
52,259

117,928
0

$0
20,250

0

53,642
0

0

88,253
0
0
0

20,600
30,681

0

666
35,1 83

0

0

0

TOTAL

$1,753,509
386,1 36

1,843,341
418,998
290,000
753,254

88,253
142,224

7,341
49,554
20,600

427,053
14,519
20,125

874,521
52,259

117,928
76,140

$7,335,755

$352,510
$352,510

$5,875,352

$277,510
$277,510

$2,985,000
18,367,077

NOVATO
RECYGLED

$43,796

$1,121,260

$o

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

942,

1 00,

33,

0

978
0

0

0

0

927
0

0

0

0

0

534
025

0

0

0

$0

$o
0
0
0

,881

,207
,350

0

0

0

0

0

$249,276

$75,000

$o
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

3,000
0

266
10,461

0

0

76,140
$89,867

$o

o)

$2,985,000
18,367,077

911,747
5,353,189
1,030,881
4,949,207
5,858,350
3,686,696

346,041
66,841

9,267,034
4,343,600

5,353,189
0

0

0

1,030
4,949
5,858

$75,000

$1,383,644
0

0

$15 694
1,723,614 $89,867

$0

911,74

471,89

0

7

0

0
0

0

7

0

0

0

0

$0

$o
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0
0

3,214,799
346,041

66,841
9,267,034
4,343,600

$57,165,664
8,578,329

249,134
367 114

$74,048,506

$43,943,581
8,578,329

249,134

$351,420
$59,275,326

$1 1,838,439
0

0

0

$o
0
0

0

$12,959,699
t.\acco"ntants\flnancials\stmtfyuv]nfyu.xls5l2l2A23 3:41 P M



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

NOVATO
WATER

Net Assets
n pital Assets

Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Total lnvestment
Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Webster Bank-Admin Bldg/ClP Reserve
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncome/(Loss)
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see betow)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer (To)/From Reserves
Connection Fee
Liability Reserve
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Trsf to Webster Bank-Admin Bldg/ClP Fund

Total Transfer

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

TOTAL

$87,695,712
14,198,830
47 869 521

149,764,064

($e,866,38e)
215,000

2,417,211
614,299
275,773

$79,006,419
426,448

32,553,869
$11 1,986,737

($8,661 ,1e2)
0
0
0
0

$5,810,128
10,108,537
12,084,852

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$2,199,410
3,564,427
2,503,891

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$679,755
99,418

726,909

-51,E0-6d6t

0
409,067

15,152
(4,416)

$261,004
$1,767,086

$28,003,518 $8,267,728

$o
215,000

2,417,211
614,299
275,773

($232,($e72

74

3ee)
0

0

0
0

$o
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

,000)
0

798)
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

,000

!

1,705,370
4,000,000
2,759,513
6,339,000

13,210,615
(54,907,311)

700,701
4,834,462

1,606,485
4,000,000
2,759,513
5,780,000

13,210,615
(48,81e,123)

927,326
4,897,878

f$Z-;208/e8)-
$87,688,238

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(57,000)
4,954,878

0
0
0

235,000
0

(6,625,087)
(89,493)
(12,000)

($2,e69,297)
$25,034,220

$o
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

(12,000)
n

98,885
0
0

250,000
0

127,832
(152,284)

(47,000)
($27 ,701,757)
$122,062,307

($416)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(120,000)
4 954 878

$4,834 462

$196,1 10,813

($6e4,e66)
$7,572,762

($a

000
0

(4(47

6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$4.897.878 ($12,ooo) _191i,000i ($4,416)

$146,963,564 $37,993,919 $9,296,376 $1,856,953
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT . ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

YTD/
Budget %

Prior YTD
Actual

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENU EXPENSE
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD & LGVSD

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

oTHER SOURCES(USES) OF FUNDS
Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution

Transfers ln from Capital Expansion Fund
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital lmprovement Projects
Lease Assets Acquisition
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES)

$17,867,193 $25,510,000

$12,O77,191
5,269,850

228,420

$19,105,000
5,718,000

306,000
381.000291 732

14To

630h
241%
278%
81%
2%
0o/o

-23o/o

63%
92%
75o/o

77%
7Oo/o

59%
34%

770h

150%

173%

($217,e71)

$11,990,728
4,781,895

217,845
267,472

$17,257,939

$4,113,747
371,639
788,495

1,996,274
134,554

2,735,110
376,162
302,233

3,282,865
3,4'19,188

$6,182,000
627,O00

1,120,000
2,802,000

195,000
3,898,000

508,000
462,OOO

3,222,000
4,077,000

$4,563,939
364,818
755,879

1,592,653
142,278

2,597,597
307,818
336,889

3,248,917
2,947,140

670
59o/o

70o/o

71%
690/o

70o/o

7 4o/o

65o/o

102%
840

760/o

84%
23%
0%

22%
92%

$17,520,266

$346,927

$78,1 03
801 ,010
395,1 33

(908,03e)
(12,434)

0

$23,093,000

$2,417,000

$123,000
332,000
142,000

(1 ,1 1e,000)
(5e0,000)
(407,000)

$16,857,928

$400,011

$71,841
205,858

48,1 08
(513,871)

(2e,e07)
0

$353,774 ($1,519,000)

$700,701 $898,000 78% $182,040

($5,74e,638) ($3,823,000)

($5,048,e38) ($2,e25,000)

0o/o

$2,947j40
889,1 80

0
0

31,345
12,400

0

(341,131)
(2,772,061)

0
(1,444,657)
1,278,044
$600,260

$782,301

$3,419,188
208,280

0
287,825

35,879
2,089

0

0
(329,409)

(6,451,356)
0

(2,668,847)
(253,288)

$4,077,000
902,000

12,150,000
1,300,000

39,000
0

205,000

350,000
(557,000)

(18,899,000)
0

(3,459,000)
69,000

I

CASH I NCREASE(DECREASE)
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT.AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer ln-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contributions
Connection Fees
Cal OES & CA Dept of Water Resources Grants
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Prior Period Adjustments

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position June 30,2Q22
Net Position March 31, 2023

MV Cash & lnvestments June 30,2022
MV Cash & lnvestments Mar 31,2023

($12s,486)
(22.798)

$700,70'1 $927,326 ($89,493) ($152,284) $15,152

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$17,867,193
17,520,266

$15,891,272
15,424,636

$1,044,846
1,041,588

$3,258
(92.750\

$702,656
832,141

$228,420
221,901

$6,519
8,633

$346,927
353,774

$466,636
460,690

$606,835
2,089

208,280
287,825

0

$558, I 84
2,089

208,280
0

(51 8,1 46)

$48,651
0
0

276,675

$o
0
0

11,151
085

$0
0
0
0

146

$1 ,105,030
0

$1,805,730
120,256,577

$250,407
0

$1,177 ,733
86,510,505

$51 8,1 46

0

$428,653
24.605.568

$325,326
0

$173,042
7.399.720

$1 1,15'l

0

$26,302
1.740,784

$122,062,307 $87,688,238 s25.034.220 $7.572.762 $1,767,086

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Net lncome/(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
Marin Country Club Loan Principal Pmts
Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
I nterdistrict Transfers
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

$4,119,889

$700,701
3,419,188

$927,326
2,617,396

$3,544,722

($8e,4e3)
591,383

($152,284)
175.351

$1 s,1 52
35 058

$0
11,151

(77,420)

(74,621)
75,591

($76,002)

$484,643

$501,891 $23,068 $50,209

$208,280
287,825

(6,780,765)
2,089

35,879
(2,668,847)

480,405
(392,029)

1,004,109
(525,034)
(820,738)

0
0

($9,168,827)

$208,280
0

(6,306,429)
2,089

0
(2,230,450)

147,407
(305,038)

1,011,059
(356,435)
(859,272)
(518,146)

0
($9,206,934)

$o
0
0
0

35,879
(399,230)
343,075

0
'18,916

(251,637)
43,796

5'18,146
0

$308,944

$0
276,675

(3e6,e16)
0
0

(3e,1 66)
50,834

(86,ee1)
48,755
7,447

(5,263)
U

U

($144,626)

0
0
0

(60,e12)
0

0
0
0

($126,211)

($5,048,938) ($5,662,212) $810,835 ($121,559)

$44,658,187 $37,160,662 $6,219,625 $793,256

$39,609,249 $31,498,450 $7,030,460 $671,698 $408,641

I
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INGOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
MARCH YEARTO DATE

2023 ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
Maint/Monitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Fishery Maint
Erosion Control
Purchased Water
Purchased Water-Backfeed
GASB68 Adjustment
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Operating Expense - Pumping
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

$1 ,1 54,948
(8,762)

679,430
7,690

265
18

0

14,685
1,511

$10,686,608
(46,736)

4,966,719
66,315

2,990
234
300

128,956
21,181

$10,477,823
(4e,e42)

4,518,500
0

3,850
135
360

120,887
19,580

117,578
$15,208,773

$488
183
201
568

0

0

67
0
0

$5,209
3,954

20,548
581

35
15,352

651
0
0

04,993
0
0
0

$6,089
3,895

17,640
231

0
3,549

626
0
0

4,255,074
40,796

0
0

Oo/o

$246,912 $3,851,323 67%

2 969 64 706
$1,852,754 $15,891,272

64o/o

78o/o

93o/o

1O9o/o

7 5o/o

20%
8o/o

107o/o

81o/o

460/o

71%

58o/o

260/o

54o/o

4o/o

1o/o

49o/o

30o/o

0%
0o/o

67o/o3,8245,405
0
0
0

$o
$4,142

132
20,768

0
0

$0
$24,203

11,984
277,926

0
0

76Yo

24%
620/o

0o/o

$4,327,900

$2,1 91

$18,381
36,1 55

259,690
0
0

PUMPING $25,042 $314,113 57o/o $316,417
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenVControls Maint
Leased Lines
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

$22,182
46,115
3,722
8,042
2,238

0
0

$1 98,1 50
360,256

48,723
41,332
13,955

0
0

$207,435
367,565

35,624
49,482
17,920

0
0

98%
97o/o

560/o

81o/o

90o/o

004

oPERATTONS $82,300 $678,026 73o/o $662,416
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
MARCH YEARTO DATE

2023 ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service lnstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$213,684 $1,827,850 73o/o

$17,201
44,928
12,792
2,030
2,809

69,795
10,711
6,741

33,659
1,712
4,896
6,080
2,486
(2,157)

0
0

$197,619
254,645
301,777
69,523
58,209

332,692
100,743
65,778

290,336
. 20,319

66,630
67,899
28,569

(26,887)
0
0

1060/0

102%
69%
63o/o

70%
1510h
640h
80o/o

620/0

185o/o

760/o

91/o
630

690/o

120o/o

125o/o

73o/o

125%
65%

173o/o

88%
55%
72o/o

115o/o

57o/o

118o/o

98o/o

680/o

19o/o

960/o

860/o
53%
0%

$140,533
151,525
119,679
65,670
95,030

251,848
87,038
74,068

301,164
15,498
68,084
55,201
13,867

(24,6e2)
0
0

0o/o

$39,080
15,899

9,951
16,142
11,840
20,822
26,696
11,242

0

20,407
57,903

590
35,696
2,520
7,268
5,916

15,566
4,536

14,725
0
0

$466,1 79
174,944
115,579
100,981

49,602
171,200

88,055
93,728
6,079

110,797
191 ,530

13,698
280,031
131,820
289,238

15,368
103,210
71,375
42,259

0
0

$1,414,513

$632,183
115,212
'165,601

108,848
37,579

167,098
3,305

62,428
3,702

'1 38,1 84
142,996
21,251

184,932
123,347
328,478
27,955
98,440
74,447
51,243

0
0

$316,799 $2,515,672 69% $2,487,231
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
MARCH YEARTO DATE

2023 ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
Uncollectable Accounts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
WATER CONSERVATION
Kestoenflal
Commercial
Public Outreach/lnformation
Large Landscape
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Admi nistrative Expense
Election Cost
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE
Depreciatiofl (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERATTNG INCOME(LOSS)

$21,111
917

20,970
1,014

0
0

$1 89,1 1 9
4,607

100,500
4,605

0
0

$55,088

$2,s93
985
106

12,561
1,392
6,277

337
6,956

684
25,268
(2,06e)

0
0

$18,529
8,579

341
111,736

12,030
53,739
53,845
14,252
23,588
69,148

(13,310)
0
0

69%
360/o

17o/o

73o/o

80%
9jYo
90o/o

130Vo

23604
108o/o

83o/o

0%

66%
44%
57%
44%
28o/o

84o/o

61%
560/o

37o/o

24%
1%

79o/o

760/o

102o/o

85o/o

18o/o

94%
55%
163%
95o/o

84o/o

72o/o

5o/o

94o/o

77Yo

$18,727
1,065
1,034

102,590
12,010
47,950
47,456

8,262
13,635
45,474

(11,295)
0
0

$352,476 74o/o

71%
92o/o

91o/o

460/o

0o/o

$286,907

$196,662
2,634

108,825
10,026

0
0

$44,013

$5,273
1,463

10,632
550

33,875
145,638

3,251
1,129

(75)
51

250
5,1 95

676
25,357

107
822

1,501
0

4,160
8,413

15,059
17,725

(57,507)
(20,717)
(45,084)

0
168,402

$30,337
13,545

111,402
10,936
91,041

1,052,897
27,584
20,1 50
4,440
2,607

250
77,813

6,084
158,784

1,705
7,161

14,657
1,104

52,135
120,995
163,425
159,837

7,947
(15e,251)
(277,702)

0
1,269,066

$31 8,1 47

$34,112
$26,287
141,043

16,536
288,193
948,104
27,327
11,912
3,254
7,103

0

104,167
6,084

75,024
969

30,511
6,360
1,362

52,262
97,214

111,857
158,439
84,954

(14e,e23)
(263,223)

0

$298,830 67o/o

$326,1 46
293,903

$1,603,888

$248,866 $466,636

273o/o

99%
87o/o

760/o

24o/o

$2,968,948
2,617,396

$'15,424,636

171 107

$2,991,036
2,185,726

$14,990,293

$218,479
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
MARCH YEARTO DATE

2023 ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
I nterest Revenue-Leases
Worker's Comp Fund
Admin Bldg/ClP Project Fund
Funds Held in County Treasury

MMWD lnterconnection Agreement Loan
Total lnterest Revenue ($10,674)

Rents & Leases 4J46
Tax Proceeds 1,733

Other Non-Operating Revenue 109

Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments 88,076

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Expense
Webster Bank Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
GASB68 Adjustment

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE $185,268

NET INCOME(LOSS) $146,ee0 $e27,326

($22,836)
29,339

295
119

(17,592)
0
0

$52,353
59,229

0
2,612

0
(5,0e0)
56,418

-5T6tm-78,807
'1,366

42,278
(7e,7s2)

146,990

$94,628
121,312
71,177

412,963
12,425

0
12,504

$86,510,505
927,326

558,1 84
2,089

208,280
(518,146)

0

56Yo

1131o/o

63o/o

253o/o

83o/o

34Vo

75o/o

78o/o

7 5o/o

88%
3o/o

57%

85o/o

24%
58%o

$1 40, I 84
101 ,816

11,687
444

386,618
12,544
52,378

-Szo-ffiiT-
66,068
78,103
1 9,1 50

304,202

NON-OPERATING REVENUE $83,391 $1,173,194 283% $208,220

$104,574
133,175
76,674

0
29,016

0

$343,439

_$93,269_

$89,023,591
83,260

$10,290
11,144
7,424

153,220
3,190

0

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 12)

ENDING FUND EQUITY

31,328
135

12,920
0
0

490,482
12,400

850,380
(7e3,e1e)

0

$89,666,195$87,688,238
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
MARCH YEARTO DATE YTD/

2023 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

$1 5,1 79

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY $e31
PUMPING
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenUControls Maint
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

OPERATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

($t z1

OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
OPERATING EXPENSE

Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Cathodic Protection
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Backflow Prevention Program
Single Service lnstallations
Hydrant Maint & Operations
Maint of Meters
Maint of Mains
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$o
0

31
0

$o
0

'1,860

0

$o
369

2,158
0

$2,406
11,343

1,430

$91s,458
101,073
30,315

-Fp44-S-26-

$1,014,659
90,711
14,895

$1 ,120,265

$o
191,187

17,447
----T20EFT4-

$2,527

$6,965

($53e)
0
0

812
0

25,908
1,932

0
0
0
0
0

336
0
0

$757
179,472
69,1 39

52o/o

82o/o

202Yo

55o/o

660/o

63%
660

$o
0

931
$249,368

$31

$720
0
5

0
0
0

0

$1,860

0%
0%

620/0
jYo

27o/o

47o/o

2%
66%
48%
0%
0o/o

42o/o

5jYo
0o/o

0%
0o/o

0o/o

155o/o

2o/o

115o/o

0o/o

0%
0o/o

8204
0o/o

$6,1 53
213

33,182
3,984

0
0
0

$8,493
519

42,208
1,450

0
0
0

$725 $43,532 $s2,670

$o
0
0
0
0

0
12

0
0

$o
0

0

0
603
180
320

0
0

$1,073
1,589
2,622
1,662

11

2
6
0
0

jYo

0%
0%

19o/o

2o/o

oo

i*
$75

0

0

0

0
1,414

23
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

$1 ,1 03

$2,656
0
0
0
0

20,666
98

10,040
0

8,987
0
0

5,389
0
0

$1,513

-MZE36- 

65Yo $28,450
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
MARCH YEARTO DATE YTD/

2023 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2o/o)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Legal Fees
Dues & Subscriptions
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (2.4o/o)

GAS868 Adjustment
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation 1ruote s1

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
lnterest-Advance from Novato (Note 10)

Capital Contribution Expense-NSD&LGVSD
GAS868 Adjustment

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
FRC Transfer to/from Novato
RW Central Area Expansion Grant
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 12)

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$204

$o
0

2,916
8,697

$1,336
$204 $1,336 67o/o

67o/o

101%

75o/o

70%

1o/o

1487o/o

$0

630/o

202%

$1 ,1 29
$1 ,1 29

2 232

$o
0

21,088
66,853
17,229

$o
0

18,944
67,350
7,484

0o/o

0%

7 4o/n

$13,845

65,709
$82,946

591,383
$1,041,588

$1 05,1 70 $93,777

576,077
$970,228

oPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) ($67,767) $3,258

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:

General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total lnterest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON.OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

$80,706 202o/o $36,278

760/0
750

00h

21o/o

23To

$184,098

$2,217

58%

$23,632,803
2,217

0
793,919

0
0

$ 150,037

$24 145
0

3
0

$74,347
0

13
6,347

$9,50e
18,305

45
8 419

$24,148
0

$80,706
0

$36,278
0

$24,148

$2,547
16,252

0

0

0

0

$22,926
150,530

0

0

0

0

$27
156

--sm,4w-,egg-----s2F,; ,wazo-

273
825

0

0

0

0

$18,800

($62,418)

$173,456

_______198e,4e9_

$24,605,568
(8e,4e3)

0

518,146
0
0

(62,4 18)
0

0

0

0
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

MARCH

2023
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water - MMWD
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maintenance Expense
Maint of Telemetry Lines
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

OPERATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT

$50,158 $702,656

$29,298
0

20,843
0
0

0
16

$501,996
(8,450)

202,059
1,540

85
o

5,417

60%
34o/o

80o/o

154o/o

$558,407
(25,115)
172,684

0
60

0
5,021

$1 26
49

0

0
0

0
0

$2,141
1,779
9,1 35

0

0

0

0

77o/o

65o/o

0o/o

31/o
30o/o

102o/o

0%

$711,057

$2,212
1,551
8,363

0
15,279

0

0

$1 75

$508
2,713
2,788

0

0

$2,376
24,362
28,929

0

0

45o/o

1460/o

64o/o

0%

108o/o

118%
0o/o

0%o

144%
62%
0%o

81o/o

78o/o

-9o/o

43o/o

35%
680/o

93%
63o/o

860/o

360/o

$27,405

$10,793
4,631

30,451
0

0

$13,055 48%

$6,009 $55,666 76Yo $45,875

$4,536
2,456

0

0
14,000

333
0
0

$21,202
24,056

0

0
'18,555

3,123
0

0

$17,858
15,752
1,076

0

3,060
3,047

0

0
$21,325

$400
3,1 35

0

0

6'16

5,649
5,019
1,325
3,248

901

1,851
0

0

$66,936 81o/o $40,793

$9;1 55
34,950

(473)
1,874
6,813

16,290
45,615

6,275
15,442
7,157

24,223
0

0

$12,208
30,374

1,936
6,612
9,390

15,202
43,870
6,459
7,383

15,059
22,683

0

0

0o/o

$167,320 65% $171,175$22,1+t
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

MARCH

2023

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev I nspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Uncollectable Accounts
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Legal Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation 1ruote s;

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$16,528 $171,602

$8,085
361

1579
10,865

0

0

$21
0

0

233
0

11,444
0

0

0
458

0

0
3,298
1,057

16
0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

8,388
0

50,814
0

2,740
8,509

16,379
0
0

9,626
1,824

49,922
405
475
194

8,633
0

0

0

91o/o

0o/o
jVo

122%

$6,322
0

5,787
5,987

21

21,422
0

1,379
0

23,207
33

0
707

1,746
13,533

'1,040

272
2,986

0
(2,525)

0

0

,694$13

138%
0o/o

91o/o

190o/o

0o/o

0o/o

150o/o

73%
1860/o

11o/o

28o/o

60/o

$o
0
0

0o/o

0o/o

105% $81 ,916

$9,029
236

77%
72%
158o/o

84o/o

0o/o

0

1

0

0

$1,657 $20,890 75%

230

$o $3,403 230

$9,23,657
0

0

$18,742
0

40$3 3

0

0

8,496$

$o
0

0 0

$18,742

$o
0

9,265

$1,948
14,429
61,502
50,8124 888

$o
25,802
71,221
60,894

0o/o

74%
110o/o

153o/o

760/o

85o/o

(1s3%)

$14,154

19,289

$101,280

$157,917

175,351

$832,1 41

$128,690

150,477

$683,568

oPERATING INCOME(LOSS) ($51,122) ($12e,486) 489$27
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

MARCH

2023

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds $1,308
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund 4
lnterest Revenue-Leases 0
Rents & Leases 0
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation 0

Other Non-Operating Revenue 0
NON-OPERATING REVENUE 

-S1 

31 2

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

$5,528
16

698
5,447

0

16

$0
87

0
5,628

34,102
898

79o/o

91o/o

0o/o

$11,705 160/o

Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
Loan from Novato-lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
GAS868 Adjustment

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
New Gallagher Well #2 Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (Note 11c)

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$'1,511
2,289

0

0

$13,903
20,600

0

0

730h

0o/o

82Yo

(11s%)

$40,716

$15,350
0

417
0

$3,799

($53,610)

$34,503

($152,284)

$15,767

$52,438

276,

(53,610)
$7,399,720

(152,284)

276,675
48,651

0

0

675
0

0

0

$7,337,1 98
52,438

0
7,490

38,800
0

$7,435,925$7,572,762
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

MARCH

2023
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Manholes
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS B75 Adj u stment to.t5?io, 

TREATM E Nr
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$2s,380 $228,420
$25,380 $228,420

038
0

0

85
0

28
0

0
0

047
0
0

$42,321
0

0

964
0

939
9,363

0
2,855

16,063
0

0

$35,716
0

0

15,322
2,352

181
9,526

0

0

7 5o/o

7 5o/o

71o/o

39%
0o/o

58o/o

0o/o

$217,845
$217,845

1$ 95o/o

0o/o

0%
5o/o

0%
94o/o

117o/o

0o/o

48%
100%
0%

18,'1 81

0

2

$3,1 98
0

$72,505 690/o $81,279

76%
0o/o

27o/o

39o/o

92o/o

0o/o

$45,318 101% $24,499

$9,442
13,575
11,921

'1,563

0
0

$16,732 37o/o $36,501

55o/o

73o/o

$351
935

$1,286

$o
1,394

0
912
738
318

1,279
0

0

$o
25,167

0
2,396
4,413
2,343

10,998
0

0

$o
5,700

0

2,615
3,876
2,004

10,305
0

0
640$+,

$9+z
517

0
0
0
0

$8,337
3,879

0
4,516

0
0

,464$

$o
208

$351

$1,109
$208 $1,460
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023

MARCH

2023
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (1.1Yo)
Liability lnsurance
GAS868 Adjustment

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense
GAS868 Adjustment

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

FEMA/CAL OES Grant-OM Treatment Pond
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (Note 11d)

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$o
2,755

217
2,184

$10,816
21,177

1,912
16 925

$50,829

35,058

88%
96%

195o/o

75o/o

82o/o

18o/o

210%

1o/o

1o/o

15o/o

$492
21,072

1,733
12,118

$5,1 56

3,895

$18,562 $221 901

$35,415

34,860

$213,839

$6,818 $6,519 $4,006

$o
2,828

2
0

(0)
0o/o

$250
8,385

6
0
0

$250
3,939

31

36,373
0

$2,829 $8,642 13o/o

$e

$40,594

$474
0

$0
0 0

$o

$9,647

$e

$15,152

$474

$44,125

9,647
$1,740,784

15,152

0
0
0

0

0
0

11,151
0

$1,690,572
44,125

$1,734,697

0o/o

0
0
0
0

$1,767,086
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
t:\accountants\financials\stmtfy23\[cpm0323.xls] equip

MARCH
2023

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 22t23 (OVER)

BUDGET UNDER Notes

1

a

Administration
m n rer

2 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE
a. Meter Maintenance Program
o. Total Organic Carbon (TOC)Analyzer

3 ENGINEERING
a. GPS Unit (Surveying)

4 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. STP Forklift (5,000 Lbs)
b. 100KW Portable Generator
c. Leased Vehicles

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

$o $17,794 $40,000 $22,206Ad

$0 $17,794 $40,000 $22,206

$0
0

$127,065
0 000 42 000

$150,000 $22,935
42

$0

$0

$127,065 $192,000 $64,935

$o $40,000 $40,000
$o

$o
0
0

$0 $40,000 $40,000

$o
0

184,551

$60,000
60,000

205,000

$60,000
60,000
20,449

$0

$o

$184,551

$329,409

$325,000

$557,000

$140,449

$245,385

21
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Year ed

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
Fiscal Year to Date

1Re 2

Vehicle Cost Mile

e Life to Date FYTD23 FYID22

to 2014
r 2015
rz 2O15

2008
2008
2010
2010
2010
2012
2012

15
16
17
16
18
18
'19

19
'19

19
19

Veh#

506
509
511
512
513
5'15
516
517
518
520
521
522
523
524
526
527
528
531
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
548
549
550
551
552
553

$5,676
$1,482

$545
$4,375
$1,559
$6,345
$7,234
$2,1 34
$7,097
$1,340
$2,611
$2,003

$907
$6,013
$4,573
$7,992
$2,986

$554
$4,177
$1,579
$1,457
$3,904
$6,064
$1,792
$2,940
$2,737
$5,598
$6,1 01

$5,573
$658

$1 ,1 04
$2,829

$1 97
$458

$1,035
$433
$843

o

$692
$462

$3,003
$19,458

$6,993
$7,815
$8,1 82
$2,275

$35
$277
$259

$1,512
$1,533
$8,372
$9,523
$8,005
$6,620
$1,015
$1,355

$289
$1,206
$5,618
$1,062

$10,964
$1,351

$899
$5,908
$4,277
$1,365
$4,827
$5,849
$1,631
$3,1 85
$4,1 06
$1,731
$8,454
$9,033
$2,030

$546
$4,704
$1,685

$420
$875
$119

$2,254

$343
$224

$19,978
$14,399
$10,948

$8,526
$11,487

$7,924

($5,641)
($1,206)

($286)
($2,863)

($zo1

$2,027
$2,289
$5,871
($42t1
($325)

($1,257)
($1,714)

$299
($30s1

($3,512)
$2,972

($1,636)
$346

$1,731
$2,698

($sz;
$922

($21 5)
($161)
$245

$1,369
($3,867)
$2,354
$3,460
$1,372

($558)
$1,875
$1,488

($38)
($160)
($3t +1

$1,411

82,211
120,870
107,071
136,701

98,1 09
97,161

108,540
33,123

116,654
119,270
61,590
58,985
38,567
60,175
45,374
55,038
21,482
18,535
33,556

9,894
26,945
34,946
41 ,525
12,876
13,760
23,400
20,665
17,133
20,732

1,434
3,744
8,826
4,371
4,866
'1 ,661

209
2,478

n

tz 20
ta 2O

ts 2O

ta 20
tt 2O
ft20
rc20
zo 2O

zt 2O

zz 20
zz 20
zt 2020
zs 2020
za 2O2O
zt 2020
za 2020
ze 2021
zo 2021
st 2021
sz 2020
gz 2021
st 2021
gs 2022
za 2023
zt 2022
za 2022
ze 2022
qo 2022

0
1,312
2,940
2,131
3,944
9,538
9,541
6,076

11,033
4,825
4,067
5,416
2,232

13,320
6,812

14,429
3,845
1,293
7,802
4,366
5,098

14,146
11,063
3,555
7,223
7,O40

11 ,147
8,661

$0.00
$1 .13
$0.1 9
$2.05
$0.40
$0.67
$0 76
$0.35
$0.64
$0.28
$0.64
$0.37
$0.41
$0.45
$0.67
$0.55
$0.78
$0.00
$0.54
$0.36
$0.29
$0.28
$0.55
$0.50
$0.41
$0.39
$0.50
$0.70
$0.82
$0.46
$0.45
$0.52
$0.05
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

EV

Ford F25O 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Ford F150 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F150
Ford F250
Ford F250
Ford F150
Ford F250 4x4
Ford Escape 4X4
Ford F150 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Escape 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Cargo Van
Dodge Ram 2500
Chev Colorado 4x4
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN FRONTIER
FORD F-150 2WD
FORD F-150 4x4
CHEVROLET COLORADO 2WD
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F150 2WD
FORD F150 2WD
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN FRONTIER
Ford Ranger4x4
FORD F150
FORD F150
FORD F150 4x4
CHEVY BOLT EUV
CHEVY BOLT EUV
Ford Ranger4x4
Ford Ranger 2WD
Ford Ranger 2WD
Ford Ra r2WD

Engineering
LAB
LeBrun
Davenport
Ladd
Castellucci
Moniz

Pool
Construction
Construction/Crew
Construction/Crew
Construction
Sjoblom
Lemos
Construction
Breit

Pool
Construction
Maintenance
To be Auctioned
Construction
Williamson
Pearce
Kurfirst
Maintenance
To be Auctioned
Watkins/Shop
Roberto
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Breit
Stompe
Eng/VVtr Consv
Pool
Reed
STP
Lawrence
Kehoe, Chris
STP
Construction
Bergstrom
Clark
STP
LeBrun
Grisso
Kane

$0.85
$0.39
$0.51
$0.52
$0.47
$0.64
$0.60
$0.59
$0.46
$0.31
$0.39
$0.39
$0.34
$0.53
$0.50
$0.62
$0.54
$0.33
$0.41
$0.48
$0.29
$0.33
$0.52
$0.54
$0.36
$0.36
$0.27
$0.36
$0.27
$0.46
$0.29
$0.32
$0.05
$0.09
$0.62
$2.07
$0.34

$0.23
$1.87
$3.61
$1.21
$0.1 2

$2.83
$1.14
$0.22
$0.47
$1.82
$0.26
$0.21
$1.92
$1.20
$0.79
$0.67
$0.17
$0.33
$0.39
$0.1 7
$0.56
$0.53
$0.85
$0.1 6
$0.32
$0.78
$0.36

00
00
00
00
00
00

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$2.08
$3.29
$0.59
$2.26
$0.59
$3.55

N)
N)

6, 755
434
434
423
371
866
661
209
478
305

$0.29
$0.41
$0.00
$1.37
$3.40

$0.25
$3.78
$1.76

2,
A

4,
4,

2
7 93

r 1999
z 2002
s 2006
+ 2009
s 2012
a 2015
t 2017
e 2019

335
467

1,591
2,909
3,619
3,651
6,304
2,244

140,31 5
117,394
56,863
48,987
56,986
58,400
54,825
12,834

$0.00
$1.70
$2.39
$1.85
$1.26
$0.63
$0.49
$0.63
$0.1 1

$0.00
$0.99
$1.89
$6.69
$1.93
$2.14
$1.30
$1.01
$3.98

Ford F350 WSvc Body
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
lnt'l 4300 Crew
Peterbilt 325 Crew
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Int'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F350 4x4
FORD F55O 3 YD DUMP

19
44
503
508
514
519
525
530
547

($3+01
($238)

$16,975
($5,059)
$3,955
$5,649
$3,305
$5,649g 2021 lnt'l 5 Yd D

on
1 

Expense amount shown excludes depreciation (approximately $195,000 for FY23).

$7/hr and the recovery rate for vehicles 1{on and over is $14lhr. An additional 50% is charged to developer projects to reflect the fair market value of the vehicle being used.

811



N)(,

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
ti\accountants\flnancials\s1mtM3\[cpm0323.xls]water conseNation

coSTTHRU MARCH FYTD Fy 22123 (OVER) TOTAL

re?
a. Residential

t Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
s Fixtures Purchases
a Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate-Residential
z Residential Audits
a High Efficiency Toilet Distribution
s Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
to Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
rt ET Controller Rebate
rz Administration
ts New Development Wtr Cons Program
r+ Demand Offset Rebate Program
1 5 Grant Administration
to Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
tz Residential Fill Station
ra UWMP

b. Non-Residential Programs
t Commercial Programs
z Large Landscape Programs

c. Public Outreach/lnformation
TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

1-7700-01

1-7700-02

1-7700-03

1-7700-06

1-7700-07

1-7700-11

1-7700-13

1-7700-15

1-7700-16

1-7700-17

1-7700-19

'1-7700-08

1-7700-20

1-7700-21

1-7700-23

1-7700-24

1-7700-25

1-7700-35

1-7700-26

1-7700-27

1-7700-28

1-7700-29

$513,533
32,897
71,840

362,244
55,105

1,062,742
492,345
242,197
133,328

10,747
56,235

1,852,654
137,234

4,437
3,300
4,145

66,442
16,733

42,953
43,829

408,279

$181,122

$181,122

$30,982
6,377

0
3,346

0
11,731
6,440

0
26,659

1,700
1,709

92,119
7,310

425
0

321
0
0

4,607
4,605

$29,018
(377)

5,000
1,654

0
13,269
13,560

0
3,341
3,300
4,291

33,881
2,690
1,575
1,000
1,679

0
(0)

1,688
8,362

$544,515
39,273
71,840

365,590
55,1 05

1,074,473
498,785
242,197
159,987

12,447
57,944

1,944,773
144,544

4,862
3,300
4,466

66,442
16,733

47,559
48,434

1 -7700-31

1-7700-32

1-7700-33

1-7700-34

$2,716
403

0
74

0
1,467

60
0

2,290
101
86

12,691
1,223

0
0
0
0
0

$60,000
6,000
5,000
5,000

0
25,000
20,000

0
30,000

5,000
6,000

126,000
10,000

2,OOO
1,000
2,000

0
0

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58001-0'1-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 5800'1-01-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 5800'1 -01-21

(e) 58001-01-2'1
(e) 58001-01-21
(e) 58001-01-21
(e) 58001-01-21
(e) 58001-0'1-21
(e) 58001-01-21

(e) 58002-01-21

(e) 58004-01-21
(e) 58003-01-21

1-7701-O3

1-7702-01

1-7700-04

1-7701-04 917
1,014

6,295
12,967

779
77

2 100 739 39 239
3

$0 $3,403 $14,700 $11 ,297 $184,524 (e) 58ooo-02-21

$0 $3,403 $14,700 $11 ,297 $184,524

2-5166-00

WEST MARIN WATER
a. Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER CONSERVATION

170163



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
COSTTHRU MARCH FYTD FY 22123 (OVERYUNDER TOTAL

Description JUNE 2022 2023 ToTAL BUDGET BUDGET cosT

1-71 89-s
1-7183-s
'1-7 1 95-00

1-7205-00

1-7209-00

1 -7'l 50-00
'1-7206-00

1-7204-04

'1 -7 1 39-u
1-7123-n

1'8737-s
'l-8737-08

I Replace 12" Pipe S. Novato Blvd (7851F)
2 Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch
3 Novato Blvd Widening Diablo to Grant
4 Copper Replacement-Jamison Ct (6)
5 George St Main Replacement

b. Main/Pipeline Additions
1 San Mateo Tank 24" Transmission Main
z Loop Zone Mall Area Near Nave CVS. Novato
3 Loop Dead End Mains-NMWD Yard

c. PB Service Line Replacements
1 Repl PB in Sync Wcity Paving (30 Svcs)
2 Other PB Replacements (40 Svcs)

d. Relocations to Sync Wcity & County CIP
1 Other Relocations

Repl 8" Cl dpvc-Railroad/Rose
TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
1 MSN B2-Utility Agreement Costsl

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
a. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl-FY23 (-s/yo
b. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl-FY22 (-s/yr)
c. Anode lnstallations-FY23 (150/y0

d. Facilities Security Enhancements
e. Other System lmprovements
f . Asset Management Software ProcuremenUlmplementation

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

$o
0

65,725
16,532

0

231,968
0

13,663

$1 41

36,203

0

0
?27 AOA

$374,063

$1,736,740

0
0
0
0

88,393
26,553

0

$0
0

10,742
22,700

7,530

0
118

4,433
1,802

107.791

$50,000
1 50,000

1,000,000
0
0

20,000
275,000

0

60,000
80,000

25,000

12

$1 00,000
0

10,000
25,000

200,000
0

$335,000

$12,650,000

25,000
50,000
50,000
50,000

0
0
0

50,000

$50,000
1 50,000
989,258
(22,700)

(7,s30)

1 5,567
273,198

(107,7e1)

60,000
80,000

25,000
't1

911

$93,864
(33,e38)
10,000
25,000

200,000
0

$294.926

$7,571,355

(1,316)
(673)

6,235
50,000
50,000
50,000
(3,e02)

(17 ,415)
(3,61 1)

41 ,607
(7,e44)

31

$o
0

76,467
39232
7.530

236,401
1,802

$121,454

0
0

0
0

8
0
0

0
0
0
0

51

0

0

0

0

$0
0

612
0

2,616

$528
0
0
0

0

0

523
0
0
0
0
0

611

684
0
0

0
114

1-7118-02 35

$528

1-7007-16

1-7007-1s
'1-7090-04

1-71 36-00

$6,1 36
33,938

0
0

0
0

oo, I Jo
70,141

264
0

0
337.596

$414.137

$6,815,385

1 ,316
673

18,765
0
0
0

92,294
43,968
J,Ott

8,393
7.944

154

$0

264

N)
A

L7174-OO

$40.074
3 BUILDINGS, YARD, & S.T.P. IMPROVEMENTS

a. Administration Building
1-6501J4 I NMWD Headquarters Upgrade'?

b. Yard
1 Repave Corp Yard
2 Other Yard lmprovements

c. Stafford Treatment Plant
r Repair Sludge Line to Center Road (4" @ 4,400)
2 Other Treatment Plant lmprovements
3 Efficiency lmprovements
4 Water Supply Enhancement-STP Modiflcations
5 Leveroni Creek Embankment Repai13

6 STP-CorrosionAssessment
7 STP-Spillway lmprovements

d. Stafford DamMatershed
1 Water Supply Enhancements-Dam
2 STP-Chemical System Upgrade

HSPS #3 MOTOR R&R
TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

$1,299,776 $s,078,645

1-650248

1-650247

0
0

0
0

0
0

1 ,316
673

14614-22

14600-u
'1€600-97

'1€6f 0-23

1{600-96

1-6610-21

1 -661 0-25

18,765
0
0
0

3,902
17,415

3,611

1-6610-24

1 -66 1 0-26

16600-34

0
0

8,393
7,944 0

101 182



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
COST THRU
JUNE 2022

MARCH
2023Description

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS
a. clear lanK sttes

1 Old Ranch Rd Tank Replacement
b. Tank Rehabilitation

1 Fire Flow Backfeed Valve-Nunes Tank
2 Recoating of OtherTanks
3 Lynwood Tank #1 Seismic Upgrade/Coating
4 Lynwood Tank #2 Seismic Upgrade/Coating
5 Garner Tank Recoat

c. Pump Station Rehabilitation and Replacement
1 Crest PS
2 Lynwood PS Upgrade
3 Lynwood PS Motor Control Center
4 Mobil Pump Statron forTank Cleaning

d. Hydropneumatic Systems
I Hydropneumatic Tank Repairs

e. Other Tank & PS lmprovements
1 Other Tank & PS lmprovements

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

($212,921)$1,539,765

286,906
0

153,233
15,279

111,207

$0

s1.644.475

$113,113
194,628

3,414

$5,835

10,595
0
0

8,800

0

$0

$53.070

14.763
$14.763

$1.414.232

$312,921

25,740
113,157

1,218
3,976

64,508

$1 00,000

10,000
40,000

0
0

50,000

$350.000
$350 000

$647.000

$40,000
1,200,000

10,000
1 25,000

0

$1.375.000

$18,899,000

$'1,852,686

312,645
113,157
154,451

lo ta6

17 5.715

s0

$2,041.391

$'138,575
205,1 50

7,697
0

J/, I CJ

$388.574

$1 3.309,572

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 22t23
BUDGET

TOTAL
cosr

1-6207 -20

1-6216-20

1 -6213-24

1-6414-20

1-6209-20

1 -61 41-00

1-6112-26

1-6112-24

1 -7187-00

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

4,017

0
0
0
0

10,244

200,000
1 70,000
500,000
500,000

200,000
170,000
500,000
500,000
(10,244)

0
0
0
0

10,244

(15,740)
(73,157)

(1,218)
(3,976)

1 -7170-00 (1 4,s08)

$350.000
$350 000

$250.084

0
TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

5 RECYCLEDWATER
s-7162-04 I Keplace Ul-Atnenon Ave"

6 WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER

2€6oe-20 a. New Gallagher Well #2"
2-660s-21 b. GW #2-DWR Grant T1-Admin
z-660s,22 c. GW #2-DWR Grant T2-Well
2-660s-23 d. GW #2-DWR Grant T31-M&P
2-718s-00 e. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization
2-asi2-oo f . Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement

g. Miscellaneous Water System lmprovementss
2-71s2.ft h. Repl PRE 2" Galv Pipe
2-71s2-01 i. Replace PRE 2" Galv Pipe-Balboa/DrakesviewBaywood
2.71s2-02 j. PRE 2" Galvanized Pipe-Sunnyside/Dover/Carlton/Balboa
2-7203-oo k. Raise valves for Hwy 1 Paving
2-6604-23 L Gallagher Well #'1-Assess/Rehab
2-2i23-31 m. PB Repl-Fox Dr

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
B-a672-28 a. lnflltration Repair (Manhole Relining)
8-7i73-oo b. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMNaB
8-7173-01 c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-Grant Management
8-7208-s d. SeWer FOrCe Main lmprovements
B-7200-or e. Sewer Force Main lmprovements-FM '1A

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES

$772,056
0

21

56,922
724,960
75,768

0
0

5,598
zo

9,122
0
0

$22,396
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

18,490
12,184

$1 82,897
3,422
3,597

93,735
3,690
9,794

0
0

2,693
58,392

805
24,151
13,741

$380,000
0
0
0

5,000
52,000

120,000
45,000

0
0

15,000
15,000
15,000

$1 97,1 03
(3,422)
(3,597)

(93,73s)
1,310

42,206
'120,000

45,000
(2,6e3)

(58,3e2)
14,195
(e,1 51)
1,259

$954,953
3,422
J,O tO

1 50,657
728,650

85,562
0
0

8,290
58,420
9,927

24,151
13,741

$0 $u $0

e?oa ol a

$25,462
10,522
4,283

J/. I CJ

s77.420

$6.451.356

$0

N)(Jl

$o
0
0

$14,538
1,189,478

5,717
'125,000
(37.1 53)0

$31 1 .1 55

$6,858,216

$1.297.580

912.447.644



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2023
COST THRU
JUNE 2022

MARCH
2023

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 22123

BUDGET
TOTAL
COST

($47,552)
13,060,615

(3,902)
137,779

0
0

(56,482)
$13,090,458

($1 20,684)
(1 9,876,000)

0
(400,842)

0
0

($20,4e6,e44)

$5,903,086

$o

$0
0
0

(340,000)
(1 50,000)
(350,000)

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

(5,466)
$4,901,308

$0
0
0

$20,759
($1 50,000)
($350,000)

($22,s73,61 6)

($5,224,665)

DescriDtion

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS, LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS
(Accrued)/Deferred

a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82'
b. NMWD Headquarters Upgrade'?
c Leveroni Creek Embankment Repaif
d. New Gallagher Well #24

e. WM Miscellaneous Water System lmprovements5
f Replace Cl-Atherton Ave6
g. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 GranlFEMN&8

($4s,462)
18,1 39,260

0
(40,083)

0
0

(61,949)

($1 20,684)
($1 s,876,000)

$0
($40,083)

0
0

(86,060)
(92o,122,827)

$4,727,154

$0
(1,299,776)

0
254,277

0
0
0

($2,08e)
(5,078,64s)

(3,e02)
177,862

0
0

5,466

($374,117)

$1,175,932

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$2,089
5,078,645

3,902
(177,862)

0
0

FUNDTNG BY OTHERS (ACCRUEDyDEFERRED $17,991,76s ($1,045,499) ($4,901,308)
Received

b.

c.

d.

e.

L

s.

MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82'
NMWD Headquarters Upgrade'?
Leveroni Creek Embankment Repaif
New Gallagher Well #2'
WM Miscellaneous Water System lmprovements5
Replace Cl-Atherton Ave6
OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMATas

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED

NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

$0
0
0

0
0

0
(13,358) (s60,000) ($e46,642) (99119

$0

5e)(276,673)

($276,673)

(360 7
0
0
0

($1,8oo,ooo)

$1 7,099,000

N)
O)

$92,060

Notes to Capital lmprovement Proiects Schedule:
(1) Funding provided 100% by Caltrans.
(2) $16.2M NMWD Headquarters Upgrade funded by a 20 yeat 3.11% bank loan.
(3) Project developed as part of Oclobet 2017 Feasability Assessment prepared by Prunuske Chatham.
(4) WM CA DWR Drought Relief Grant.
(5) Loan from Novato Water-As included in the2021 WM Water rate study - to be paid with interest. Loan received 6/30/22.
(6) Funded by Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund.
(7) OM Treatment Pond Rehab-Project to be funded al75o/o by grants. Eligible project costs are budgeted at $2.2M (75%=$1 ;425M)
(8) Loan from Novato Water-As included in the five-year financral forecast

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

Gross Caoital lmorovement Proiect Outlavs

CIP SUMMARY-GROSS EXPENDITURES:

/bJ 0001
a1

Current Month FYTD Total FY 22123 Budget FYTD/ Budget%
36%
0%
61%

$1,346,399
0

53,070

$ 16,s27,000
350,000
647.000

$5,977,020
0

396,91 6

1

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

Net Capital lmprovement Proiect Outlays

FYTD TotalCurrent MonthCIP SUMMARY-NET EXPENDITURES:

76314 0001528

FY 22i23 Budget FYTD/ Budget%
5%
0%
32%

$1 6,527,000
350,000
647.000

$896,286
0

210,118

$46,623
0

30,674



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31 2023
COST THRU
JUNE 2022 TOTAL2023 BUDGET

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

TOTAL
COST

N){
747

SERVICES/STUDIES

i. STP-Chlorine Code Compliance
j. Pipeline Condition Assessment
k- Annual Water Supply & Demand Assessment
l. Local Water Supply Enhancement Study
m. Stafford Lake Water Rights Review
n. Strategic Long Range Plan
o. Potter Valley Project FERC Relicensing
p. Gateway Commons Backflow Study
q. Electronic Document Mgmt System
r. Recycled Water Program Strategy
s. Connection Fee Study-RW
t. Dillon Beach Wastewater Study
u. OM Sewer System Management Plan
v. Black Mountain Ranch Well Feasability Study
w. District Boundary Election Map Review
x. GASB 75 (OPEB) Disclosure lnformation & Acturial Valuation

0
0
0
0
0

6,459
0
0
0

4,531
271,351

0
1 8,537

23,365.50
5,993

30,415
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

564
0
0
0
0
0

653
658

0
2,916

0
0
0
0

32,000
0

20,352
0
0
0

10,580
14,748

0
2,256

0
634

1 0,889
4,626

758
5,416
3,071
6,540

10,738
10,350

678
1 0,1 38

474
32,000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

10,580
21,206

0
0
0
0

282,240
4,OZO

to toq
28,781

9,064

(352)
15,000
30,000

9,000
(580)

10,253
25,000
(2,256)
50,000

(634)
(1 0,889)

(4,626)
(758)

(5,416)
(3,071)
(6,540)

(10,738)
(1 0,350)

(678)
(1 0,1 38)

20,352

(32

50,000

500

20,000
15,000
30,000

9,000
10,000
25,000
25,000

EA OEE

10,738
10,350

678
'1 0,1 38

474
32,000

r+ogz-oo b. Novato Connection Fee Study
c. Compensation Survey & Review
d. Lynwood/San Marin Zone 2 Modification Evaluation
e. Drought Contingency Plan-NBWRA

z+oge-oo f. West Marin Connection Fee Study
2408e-00 g. Coast Guard Housing-PRTP Study

h. Stafford Dam Master Plan

1-4093-00

1-6501-43

-4100-00

-4050-02

8-4096-00

84080-00

24101-00

1-4076-01



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Notel-RestrictedCash
Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new development.
These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the service area where
the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as expenditures are
incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance accrues interest
quarterly.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement for construction of
the Deer lsland RW Facility requires the District to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital
Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the expansion, major repair, or replacement of the water recycling facilities.
The WRCRF is maintained in compliance with the State Water Resources Control Board's "Policy for
lmplementing the State Revolving Fund for Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at
the time the agreement was executed, July 2006. NMWD is required to deposit a minimum reserve of 0.5%
of the SRF loan amount each year for a period of ten years. The balance in the DICRF is $215,000 ($4.3M
x .Soh x'10 years). The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Recycled Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 2011 lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to the Distributor (NMWD) by
the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be deposited in this fund.
Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance Costs
do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes. A payment of $305,711 was made
to Novato Sanitary District in December 2019 for the Clearwell lmprovement Project. This fund balance
does not accrue interest.

STP SRF Reserve Fund - Marin County Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments
($1 ,044,474) in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 20-year repayment period. Every
January 1 and July '1, commencing January 1,2010, the District deposits with the County 10% of the semi-
annual SRF payment. This Reserve Fund was fully funded at 6/30/19. The County credits the fund with
interest quarterly, which is applied to the semi-annual payments, and will use the Reserve to pay the last 2
semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.

RWS Gentral SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service ($275,773) prior to the
construction completion date.
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Note2-DesiqnatedCash

Liability Gontingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it reached
a balance of $2 million. ln FY98 the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and built-up a
proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the reserve was made
available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted Housing Program. ln
August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation
Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing Program loans. Currently there is $250,000
in one Employer Assisted Housing Loan outstanding (see Note 3). ln March 2005, $652,400 was expended
from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes Station. The home is currently
rented. ln 2006, $B,BB5 was added from the sale of surplus property in West Marin. The fund balance does
not accrue interest.

Workers'Gompensation Fund: Commencing July 2019, the District switched from self-insuring its
workers'compensation liability to 1't dollar workers'compensation insurance with Zenith lnsurance
Company. The premium for 1"t dollar insurance is higher than staying with the SIR plan, but the risk of $1 M
out of pocket costs is eliminated. The Worker's Comp Reserve Fund now stands at $20,125, the amount
of the one remaining claim filed when the District was self-insured, with the balance transferred to
Unrestricted Cash.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and
have a minimum of 12 years (for employees hired on or before September 30, 2018) and a minimum of 20
years (for employees hired after September 30, 2018) of NMWD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's
contribution toward the chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the
same class. Coverage terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, or for
both the retiree and spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse
becomes eligible for Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is capped at $3,830 per
year ($319/month). ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million for current retirees plus
$250,000 for future retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 20'10 the Board
directed staff to add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate
amortization of this liability. The accrual is maintained as a Long-Term Liability entitled Total OPEB Liability.
|n2022 an ActuarialAnalysis calculated NMWD's totalactuarial liability at $4.3 million. The Retiree Medical
Benefits cash fund earns interest quarterly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds of
$671,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.
Starting inFY21l22, this reserve was increased to $4.0 million based on the District's planned pay-go capital
spending per the 2020 Novato Water Rate Study and subsequent financial plans. Funds are borrowed from
the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance
does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate working
capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. Funds are
borrowed from the operating Reserve Fund to offset the shortfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The
fund balance does not accrue interest.

Webster Bank-Admin Bldg/GlP Fund: The District received a $20 million loan from Webster Bank in May
2022to fund theAdmin Building Renovation and otherClP Projects. The20-year,3.11% annualpercentage
rate loan requires semi-annual payments and will be fully amortized on 311142. The unexpended fund
balance accrues interest quarterly.

29



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned to
an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service territory
that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the District.
Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the Program.
lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value occurring on
the purchased property. There is one employee-housing loan currently outstanding totaling $250,000 dated
March 2015.

Note 4 - Other Term Receivahles

ln 2014, the District entered into an interconnection agreement with MMWD for their share of the Aqueduct
Energy Efficiency Project. The2.71To$3,622,882loan will have yearly payments due of $205,320, and the
final payment is due in July 2032.ln 2015 the District entered into an agreement with Marin Country Club
for their share of the pipeline extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course.
|n2016 the District received a $6.6 million 3O-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Recycled Water Central
project, and Marin Country Club agreed to paythe District$1,265,295 in bimonthly paymentsof $8,142 at
1.0% over 30 years for their share of the pipeline extension. Marin Country Club also agreed to pay

$430,463 of the District's local share of the project in bimonthly payments of $8,242 over 10 years at2.8o/o,
which is the Novato Potable Fund's weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin
Country Club's water service payments. Marin Country Club paid the 10 year loan in full in December 2018.
The final payment from Marin Country Club for the 30 year loan is due in November 2047 .The Marin Country
Club also owes the District $189,402.89 in previously unbilled water receipts due to a recording error in

their 6" AMI meter. $89,990.87 of this amount was paid by Marin Country Club in October 2020 and the
remaining balance due of $99,412.02 will be re-paid in $2,000 monthly installment payments and will be
paid in full March 2025.

Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation in computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv
Aqueduct.......
Dam......
Buildings & Structures...
Mains. ..

Pumping Equipment.....
Water Treatment Equipment..
Storage & Transmission (16"+) Facillties... ...

Distribution Facilities (includes Pump Stations) . . . . . .. .

Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment.

Vehicles 1 ton or greater. . . ... ... .

All other vehicles.........
Sewer Mains.. .

Sewer Pumps.

Life (Years)

150

100

40
50
25
20

50
50
10

10

5

40
10

Note 6 - Capitalization Policv
The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000.
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Note 7 - Bond & Loan Servicinq Schedule for FiscalYear 2022-2023

FY 23

Service Area Description
lssue
Date Rate

Original
Amount

Payment
Due

Final
Pmt

lnterest
ExDense

6t30r23
Principal Outstanding

Paid Balance

Novato

Novato

Novato

Novato

RW TP

RW North

RW South

RW Central

SRF Loan - STP

Bank Marin Loan

Chase Bank
Loan

Webster Bank

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

SRF Loan

$16,528,850

$7,000,000

$4,600,000

$20,000,000

7t1 & 1t1 07t01t29

2Tthlmo 10127131

3/1 & 9/1 03/01/33

3t1 &gt't 03t01t42

Novato Total

2004

2011

2018

2022

2006

2013

2013

2016

2.390

3.42o/o

2.690/0

3.1 1o/o

$154,744

$125,917

$95,630

$608,321

$889,730

$356,1 25

$280,000

$879,669

$5,806,043

$3,490,933

$3,275,000

$1 9,1 20,331

$984,612 $2.405,524 $31,692,307

2.40o/o

2.600/o

2.20o/o

1.0004

$4,302,560

$4,375,605

$5,361,952

$7,1 30,503

20-Jun

Varies

Varies

1 9-Dec

06119127

Varies

Varies

12131147

$30,568

$66,092

$72,462

$62,863

$242,799

$2'15,800

$259,945

$212,910

$1,030,881

$2,326,202

$3,033,761

$6,073,389

Recycled Water Total $231 ,985 $931 ,454 $12,464,233

WM Water Bank Marin Loan 2012 3.42o/o $1 ,000,000 2Tthlmo 10127131

West Marin Water Total

FY23 Total

$18,483 $52,275 $512,431

$18,483

$1,235,080

$52,275

$3,389,253

$512,431

$44,668,97'1

1. ln April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.39o/o 2}-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10o/o of the annual debt service
obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25% by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was
made in December 2009.

2. ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2}-year 3.54% (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 15 below, and note to loan 9 above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a 1s-year 2.69% (APR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's
Automated Meter lnformation system Project.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4% 2)-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $38,0'15 in

Construction Period lnterest, the loan principaltotaled $4,302,560. The projectwas completed in June
2007 , and the first payment was made June 19, 2008.

5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6To 20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.
The projects were completed on October 31, 2012, and the first payment was made in November of
2012.

6. ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2o/o

2j-year loans totaling $5,361 ,952for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion Project. The
projects were completed on September 4,2013, and the first payment was made in December of 2013.
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7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.0o/o 30-year loan of
$7,130,503 for the Recycled Water Central Service Area Expansion. The project will be completed in
December 2017 , and the first payment was made December 31, 2018.

B. ln June 2012 the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and
the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. See note
to loan 2 above.

9. ln May 2022, Webster Bank made a 2}-year 3.11o/o (APR) loan pf $20 million to fund the Admin Building
Renovation and other Capital lmprovement Projects. The first payment was made August 26,2022

Note 8 - Unemplovment lnsurance Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the District
reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid on our
behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount paid over
the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $450 x 52 = $23,400).

Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Section 125 payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

Note 10 - lnterest Policv on lnter-District Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of: 1. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvement district debt (2.77% at 6130122); or 2. The average interest rate earned on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Budqet Auqmentations

Note 12 - Prior Adiusfment

Note 13 - Explanation of Financial Statement Components

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Sources
and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash Flow by
Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides information
about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the District's
creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Gombined (page 8) compares fiscal
yearto-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.
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The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the

fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses on

this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and comply
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and expenses
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and can be

used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees and

other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose

of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 27) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and

assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with

GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and

expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the Vehicle
Fteet Analysis (page 22), Equipment Expenditures (page 21) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 24), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note 14 -Con n Fee Transfers from Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund
Recycled Water
FRC Transfers from Novato
t.\inanceYfc\lrecycled waterftc tansfeElrom novalo.xlsxlsheetl

Expansion Local Share Transfer

North south central NBWRA
BPGL Loan
ReDawnent ctP Total

SRF RWF Expansion

Loan SRF Loan

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FY1 O

FY1 1

FY12

FYl3
FY14

FY1 5

FY16

FY17

FY1 8

FY19

FY20

FY21

FY 22

FY23

$1 sg,659t

$2g3,478.

$236,291

$o

$265,500

gtzg,szso

$r z,soeo

$o

$29,725

$50,478

$'150,455

$75,198

$1 33,31 9

$r r5,883t

$31 5,023

$63,035

$38,283

$102,842

$194,636

$38,908

$6,966

$o

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,79s

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$0

$464,572

$500,529

$614,299

$614,299

$614,299

$614,299

$890,072

$4,0240

ts+,oz+f
$66,ZZgu

ssoz,s2a"

$5,071,512t

{$z,loa,zssf
$5,499

$29'725

$73,273

$1 73,250

$231,652

$156,1 14

$637,656

s802,390

$1,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$36,es2" $r,230,g+o

$5,747,51 3

($1'248'922)

$1,084 ($689,600)

$890,072

$743,438

$51 8,1 46

$1 33,659

$1,970,400

$1,550,200

$688,91 6

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,513

($1,248,e22)

($68e,600)

$890,072

$743,438

146

$ l 33,659

$1,1 75,098

toz,oaaf

$802,390

$1,550,200

$688,9'10

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,51 3

($1,248,922)

($68e,600)

$890,072

$743,438

$51 8.146

3

$350,287 ($1,046,471)

$890,072

$743,438

$518,146

$603.428 s1.006.589 $3,337 s1.314.751 $273.539 $6.814,311 ($1,046,471) $37,771 $',t2,34 912.341.427 $'.12,341,427
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Item #8

NORIH IIIARIN
WATER DISTRICI

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Eric Miller, Assistant General Manager / Chief Engin

May 16,2Q23

Administration & Laboratory Upgrade Project - Construction Update
r:\folders byjob no\6000jobs\6501.44 nmwd officeJard bldg renovation\bod memos\2023 0516 - project update ppt\5-16-23 bod memo bldg project

To:

From:

Subject:
update.docx

Eate:

*tJjj,

RECOMMENDED AGTION:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation Only

None at this time

On April 29,2022 your Board approved award of a contract to D.L. Falk Construction

lnc. for the construction phase of the Administration and Laboratory Upgrade Project. The project

consists of a renovation of the District's existing nearly 60-year old office building and a new one-

story addition to provide a new water quality laboratory and new staff lunchroom and lobby area.

The construction phase began with a pre-construction meeting on June 21 , 2022.

Since that meeting, District staff has been deeply involved in coordination with the design team,

construction administrator and the contractor. The most recent schedule indicates project

completion in January 2024.

District staff provided a project update at the February 7, 2023 Board meeting and

plans to continue providing quarterly informational presentations to the Board with details

regarding schedule updates, progress photos, unforeseen issues, and budget status.

ATTACHMENTS: Presentation slides dated May 16,2023



Administration & Laboratory Upgrade Project
Construction Update

May 16, 2023

1ATTACHMENT 1



04/11/23

01/17/23 2

Contents

1 Progress Photos

2 Unforeseen Issues

3 Schedule Update

4 Budget Status



05/02/23 3

Progress Photos

Aerial Drone Footage



03/01/23 03/02/23

4

Progress Photos

Pouring Lab Slab 7-Day Slab Cure



04/19/2304/19/23

5

Progress Photos

7-Day Slab CurePouring Lunch Room Slab



05/08/23

6

Progress Photos

Lunch Room – Facing West



04/19/23 05/08/23

7

Progress Photos

Lab Framing Lab Exterior



05/02/23 8

Progress Photos

Overhead View – Both Buildings



05/08/23

9

Progress Photos

Soffit Framing

05/08/23

Employee Entrance



05/08/23

10

Progress Photos

Public Entrance

Lobby

05/08/23



11

Progress Photos

04/19/23
Utility Rough-In

05/08/23

Lobby Framing



Unforeseen Issues

12



Many of the critical materials are 
currently long-lead items due to global 

supply chain delays. 

Some items have lead times more than 
three times (3x) pre-Covid conditions.

3/15/23 13

Supply Chain Delays

Materials Impacted

Electrical Equipment 12 months

Mechanical Equipment 3 months

Glass / Storefronts 3 months

Exterior Paneling 6 months

Lab Equipment 4 months



03/28/23

14

The two slab pours (lab & lunch room) took place on 3/1/23 & 4/19/23 respectfully.
The combined pour was initially scheduled to take place on 10/19/22.

Wet Weather Delays

Rain Days per Month

September 3 days

November 3 days

December 9 days

January 11 days

February 5 days

March 9 days

to date 40 days



Project Schedule

15



1st Day of Work July 11, 2022

Original Project Duration 420 calendar days

Time Elapsed as of 3/31/23 263 calendar days (62.6%)

Original Project Completion September 4, 2023

Weather Days Added 25 working days 1

Days Added via Change Order 18 working days

Adjusted Project Completion November 3, 2023

Contractor’s Scheduled Completion January 18, 2024

Difference in Completion Dates 76 calendar days

16

Project Schedule

05/05/23

1 base contract included 15 assumed weather days. (40-15=25)



Item of Work May June July

Administration Building

Finish Utility Rough-In x x x x

Prep Building Exterior, incl. roof x x x x

Gypsum, place, finish, paint x x x x x x

Interior Ceiling System x x x

Lab Building

Framing Interior Walls x x x x

Framing Roof Assemblies x x x x

Begin Utility Rough-In x x x x x x x x

Install Roofing x x x x

17

3-Month Look Ahead Schedule



Budget Status

18



Budget Status
1 through March 2023

DL Falk Contract $ 11,614,000

Billings to Date 1 $ 3,831,187 33%

19

Contingency $ 1,252,000

CO Forecast 2 $ 249,000 19.9% 3

2 includes bid add. for landscape - $96k (7.7%)
3 no change orders processed since last presentation (2/7/23)

Project Start July 11, 2022

Time Elapsed 263 days

Orig. End Date Sept. 4, 2023 62.6%

Adj. End Date Nov. 3, 2023 54.8%

05/08/23



Questions? 20





Item #9

NORTH ftIARIN
WATER DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

To:

From

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Board of Directors

Tony Williams, Generat Manager 7py'
Ryah Grisso, Water Conservation 

-Coordinator 
Ql2

May 16,2023

Subject: AnnualWater Supply and Demand Assessment
V:\Memos to Board\Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment 23-24-FlNAL.doc

lnformation Only

lnformation Only

As a result of the 2018 State Legislation, "Making Water Conservation a California Way of

Life", the State is mandating each urban water supplier to submit to the California Department of

Water Resources (DWR) an annual water shortage assessment report with information on

anticipated shortage, triggered shortage response actions, compliance and enforcement actions,

and communication actions as described in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP). The

report is now formally called an Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment (AWSDA). This

report compares unconstrained demand projections to available supply projections for each

upcoming July to June year (fiscal year, FY) to identify any water supply shortfalls, if any, triggering

implementation of an appropriate stage of the WSCP if such a shortfall was projected. The WSCP

was developed to serve as a flexible framework of planned response measures to mitigate future

water supply shortages as part of the District's adopted 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

Update for the Novato Service Area, and is available on the District's website:

https://nmwd.com/wp-contenUuploads/2021 /07A//SCP 2021 0629.pdf.

Attached you will find the District's FY 2023|24AWSDA reportthatwill be submitted to the

State by July 1 ,2023 (Attachment 1). Unconstrained demand was derived from interpolating the

prolected demand between 2020 and 2025, tor 2023 and 2024 from the 202Q Urban Water

Management Plan and then averaging the two years to get a fiscal year demand projection. The

water supply data is provided by Sonoma Water with supplemental amount supplied by Statford

Lake. As expected, there are no water shortages projected for the next year. lt is important to note

that the projected demand (unconstrained) in the report differs from the demand projected in the

upcoming rate proposal due to the fact that projected demand contains an estimate of the future

demand with continuing or residualconservation practices from the customers (known as demand

hardening), similar to the demands we have seen in the years following past droughts; where the

unconstrained demand used in the AWSDA is a projected number without the demand hardening

affect following the drought period or any other conservation measures that could reduce demand.



Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment
May 16,2023
Page 2

The AWSDA report development includes a series of steps leading up to the draft report

presented at this meeting. Key staff began internal discussions in January which included review of

reservoir levels, water demands to date, and climate forecasts. Regional coordination with Sonoma

County Water Agency (Sonoma Water) and the water contractors also began earlier this year at

various Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) meetings culminating in the issuance of a water supply

assessment from Sonoma Water in April 2023. Another element of the District's AWSDA

development is consideration of infrastructure capabilities and constraints that may affect its ability

to deliver supplies to meet expected customer water demands in the coming year. The Redwood

Blvd. landslide that occurred in late March along the District's North Marin Aqueduct (NMA) had an

immediate impact of water supply deliveries from Sonoma Water and highlighted the importance of

this component of the AWSDA analysis and report development. Although a landslide event isn't

specifically addressed in the WSCP, the consideration of a seismic event is included, and the

emergency response and actions (WSCP Table 6-5) are similar and were actually implemented by

the District in response to the March landslide. Currently, the impacts of the landslide on the NMA is

not expected to change the supply data included in the draft report.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. North Marin Water District Draft Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment for 202312024.



Table 1. Annual Assessment lnformation

Timeline/ Outcomes / tinks / Notes

2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan

6/ts/202t

Optional
MM/DD/YYYY

Optional

2023
2024

July

June

North Marin Water District
Ryan Grisso

Water Conservation Coord inator
PO box 146

94948
415-76I-8933
rgrisso@ nmwd.com

Street Address:

ZIP Code:

Phone Number:
Email Address:

Report Preparer's Contact lnformation
(if different from above)

Preparer's Organization Name:

Preparer's Contact Name:

Phone Number:
EmailAddress:

Supplier's Water Shortage Contingency Plan

wscPTitle
WSCP Adoption Date

ActiviW
Annual Assessment/ Shortage Report Title

Annual Assessment / Shortaee Report Approval Date

Other Annual Assessment Related Activities
(Add rows as needed)

Year Covered By This Shortage Report
Start: July 1,

End: June 30,

Supplier's Annual Assessment Planning Cycle

Start Month
End Month:

Data Reporting lnterval Used: Annuallv
Volume Unit for Reported Supply and Demand:

(Must use the some unit throuqhout)
AF

Water Supplier's Contact lnformation
Water Supplier's Name

Contact Name

Contact Title:

ATTACHMENT 1
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End Month

When is shortage response

action anticipated to be

implemented?

Start Month

(Drop-down

List)

Select % or
Volume Unit

How much is action going to
reduce the shortage gap?

Enter Amount

ls action

already being
implemented?

(Y/N)

ACTIONS: Demand Reduction, Supply

Augmentation, and Other Actions.
(Drop-down List)

These are the only categories that will be

accepted by the WUEdata online submittal
tool. Select those that apply.

NOTES

Anticipated
Shortage

Level

Drop-down List of
State Standard

Levels (L - 6) and

Level0 (No

Shortaee)

Add odditionol rows as needed

0 (No Shortaee)

Table 5: Planned Water Shortage Response Actions ,rtrt,I to.lrn"m,f
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To:

From:

Subject:

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

NOTTH ilANIiI
wATtn DrsTnrcT

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

lnspection of the Stafford Treatment Plant's Risk Management Plan
XIMAINT SUP\2023\BOD\STP RMP EPA INSP 22-23 BOD Finall.docx

Item #10

May 16,2023

lnformation only (staff intends to pay proposed settlement fee)

$8,580

On September 2, 2022 the District received a letter informing Staff of a planned site visit

and inspection of our chlorine system Risk Management Plan by the Environmental Protection

Agency (EPA). The EPA is responsible for enforcing several federal regulations related to chlorine

gas systems including the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-KnowAct (EPCRA), the

Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) and the

Risk Management Program of the Clean Air Act (CAA). As part of this inspection process the

letter requested Staff to provide some 40 documents, including 1,800 pages, which was

completed prior to the site visit on September 19th.

During the 8-hour site visit the EPA Staff interviewed Stafford Treatment Plant (STP)

Operators, Operations Management, inspected all of the Risk Management Plan (RMP)

Documents and performed a visual inspection of the entire chlorine system from 1{on containers

to the points of application throughout the plant. At the conclusion of the inspection, EPA staff

provided District staff with a list of 19 Areas of Concernl that ranged from further documentation

requests, documentation completeness, record keeping practices for training and RMP

certification. District staff then began to make the corrections and updates outlined. The report

also noted that the District had no violations related to environmental or safety compliance as

documented in state and federal reporting systems.

On November 9, 2022 the EPA provided the District with a formal inspection report and

information request that outlined 23 Areas of Concern (AOC) and six recommendations that were

due within 30 day of this notice (see attachment 1). As part of this request staff was required to

make various minor corrections to previously reported information, modify components of the

RMP and develop other program elements. Staff provided another 43 documents including 250

pages documenting that all follow-up tasks were completed or scheduled to be completed.

1 The inspection report clearly stated that the AOCs didn't constitute a determination of violation



lnspection of STP RMP
May 16,2023
Page 2 of 2

Over the next few months Staff completed most of the follow-up tasks and had a couple

of additional communications with the EPA lnspection team. Staff reached out to the consulting

firm of SCS Engineering to evaluate building code changes over the life of the treatment plant.

The preliminary report indicates that there are minor room ventilation code compliance upgrades

required that will be incorporated into the next capital improvement plan. ln March 2023, the EPA

lnspection team held an internal review of the information they had gathered and in conclusion

decided to issue the District with an Expedited Settlement Agreement (see Attachment 2).

As described in the agreement the EPA is offering the District an opportunity to quickly

resolve our compliance issues by correcting the previously mentioned violations, which have been

completed, and pay a substantially reduced penalty under the EPA's Expedited Settlement

process. lt is Staffs decision to have the District choose to participate in the process and pay

$8,580 agreement fee versus a potential penalty of up to $48,192.

ln the attached agreement the alleged violations include 16 items that District staff have

already provided the inspection team with satisfactory responses. By signing the agreement, the

District neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations out lined in the items listed. We

will be waiving our rights to a hearing and commit to pay the reduced penalty.

ATTACHMENTS

1. lnspection Report & Request for lnformation from EPA

2. Opportunity to Expedited Settlement Agreement from EPA



UNITED STATES ENVI RONM ENTAL PROTECTION AG ENCY
REGION IX

75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, GA 94105

Delivered via email to:
rclark@nmwd.com
RETTIRN RECEIPT REQUE STED

In Reply Refer to:
Stafford Water Treatment Plant

Robert Clark
Operations & Maintenance Superintendent
Stafford Water Treatment Plant
North Marin Water District
3015 Novato Blvd.
P.O. Box 146,999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, California 94948

RE: Inspection Report and Request for Information Pursuant to Section 114 of the federal Clean
Air Act

Dear Superintendent Clark:

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") Region 9 conducted an inspection at the
Stafford Water Treatment Plant, which is owned and operated by the North Marin Water District
("Operator"), located at 3015 Novato Blvd, Novato, California ("Facility"), on September 19,2022,
2022 to determine the Facility's complianbe with requirements under the Emergency Planning and
Community Right-to-Know Act ("EPCRA") Sections 304-312, the Comprehensive Environmental
Response Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA") Section 103, and the Risk Management
Program of Section 112(r)(7), of the Clean Air Act ("CAA").

With this letter and its enclosure ("Information Request"), EPA seeks additional information and
documents concerning the Facility compliance with CAA $ 112(r), 42 U.S.C. S 7412(r). This
Information Request is authorized pursuant to CAA $ 114, 42 U.S.C. $ 9614. The letter enclosures
include the EPA inspection report for the Facility dated November 9, 2022 ("Inspection Report"),
as well as Instructions, Definitions, and Information Request Questions.

Confidential Business Information ("CBI")
Please review the enclosed Inspection Report and your responses to the enclosed information
request. If you believe that some or all of the information is entitled to treatment as CBI, please
provide a cover sheet or other notice that certain information is being claimed as CBI and speci$r

ATTACHMENT 1



R. Clark, StaiTord Watel Tleatment Plant

which portions of the information you consider confidential. Please be specific by page, paragtaph,
and sentence when identifying the ir,forrnation subject to your claim. Where your claim does not
include all information on apage, please clearly describe the portions for which you consider to be

CBI or attach a copy of each such page with brackets around the text that you so claim.

7f apage, document, or group or class of documents claimed by you to be CBI contains inforrnation
that the Regional Counsel determines is rTot CBI, your CBI claim regarding that page, document,
group or class of documents may be denied. Any information not specifically identified as subject
to a confidentiality claim may be disclosed to the public without l'urther notice to you.

You may not withhold any informatior.r fi'om EPA on the grounds that it is CBI. EPA has
pronrulgated regulations, under 40 C.F.R. Part2, Subpart B, to protect CBI that it receives. You
may assert a CBi claim as described herein and consistent with 40 C.F.R. $ 2.203(b) for all or paft
of the infonnation requested by EPA; however, information is entitled to confidentialtreatment
only if it satisfies the criteria set forth in 40 C.F.R. $ 2.208. EPA will disclose business information
entitled to confidential treatment only as authorized by 40 C.F.R. Part2, Subpart B. Accordingly,
for each item or class of information that you identify as being subject to CBI, please answer the
followirig questions, giving as much detail as possible:

For what period of tirne do you request that the information be maintained as

confidential, e.9., until a certain date, untilthe occurrence of a specified event, or
permanently? If the occurrence of a specific event will eliminate the need for
confidentiality, please specify that event.

2. Information submitted to EPA becomes stale over tirne. Why should the inlbrmation
you clairn as CBI be protected for the time period specified in your answer to
question #l ?

3. What measures have you taken to protect the information claimed as CBI? Have you

disclosed the information to anyone other than a governmental body or someone who
is bound by an agreement not to disclose the information further? If so, why do you

claim the information still be considered CBI?

4. Is the information contained in any publicly available material such as the Internet,
publicly available databases, promotional publications, annual repofts, or articles? Is

there any means by which a member of the public could obtain access to the

information through legitimate means? Is the inforrnation of a kind that you would
customarily not release to the public?

5. Has any governmental body made a deterrnination as to the confidentiality of the

inl'ormation? ls so, please attach a copy of the determination.

6. For each category of inforrnation claimed as CBI, explain with specificity why
release of the information is likely to cause substantial harm to your competitive

2



R. Cla|k, Stallbld Water Tfeatr.nent Plant

position. Explain the specific nature of those harrnful effects, why they should be

viewed as substantial, and the causal relationship between disclosure and such

harn-rftrl effects. How would yolrr cornpetitors make use of this information to your

detrirnent?

You are not required to respond to this question in light of the Supreme Court's
decision in Food Marketing Institute v. Argus Leader Media,I39 S. Ct. 2356
(2019). As a result of that decision, EPA will not consider whether there is
substantial competitive harm in evaluating your CBI claim.

7. Do you assert that the inforrnation is submitted on a voluntary or a mandatory basis?

Please explain the reason for your assedion. If the Operator asserts that the
information is voluntarily submitted, please explain whether and why disclosure of
the information would tend to lessen the availability to EPA of sirnilar inforrnation in

the future.

8. If you believe any information to be a trade secret or trade secrets, please so state and

explain the reason for your belief. Please attach copies of those pages with brackets

around the text that you clairn to be a trade secret or trade secrets.

9. State any other inforrnation that you deem relevant, including, if pertinent, reasons

why you believe that the information you clairn to be CBI is not emissions data or
effluent data.

Please note that you bear the burden of substantiating your CBI claim(s). Conclusory allegations
and statements will be given little or no weight in the determination. Infbrrnation designated as CBI
will be disclosed by EPA only to the extent allowed by, and by means of the procedures set forth in,
40 C.F.R. Part2, Subpart B. lf you fail to substantiate your claim that the infonnation you provided
to EPA is confidential, it rnay be made available to the public without further notice to you.

Notice is hereby given that, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. $ 2.301(h), EPA may disclose CBi that you
provide to EPA's authorized representatives, including its contractors, Eastern Research Group, for
the following reasons: to assist with docurnent handling, inventory and indexing; to assist with
document review and analysis for verification of completeness; and to provide expeft technical
review of the contents of the response. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. S 2.301(h), you may submit any
comments or concerns regarding EPA's disclosure of CBI to the representative identified below.

Enclosed Information Request
In addition to tl-re Inspection Report, the enclosed Information Request includes Instructions,
Definitions, and Information Request Questions. Please review the enclosed Inspection Repoft,
which identifies Areas of Concern ("AOC"), for your information and response. These AOCs
describes potential areas of noncompliance with the regulations prornulgated pursuant to CAA
$112(rX7). Any ornissions in the report shall not be construed as a determination of compliance
with these statutes or any other applicable regulations.

J



R. Clark, Stafford Water Treatment Plant

Submittal Instructions
The Operatol's comments regarding CBI in the Inspection Report must be delivered
electronically (either secure email or link to a.file transfer site) to steiner.cyntia@ppu.gov by the
15th calendar dav ufter your receipt o.f this letter. You may seek an extension of time to submit
your comments to this office, but the request must be made before the end of the 15-day
period. Except in extraordinary circumstances, no extension will be approved. Failure to submit
your comments within that time will be regarded as a waiver of your confidentiality claim or claims,
and EPA may release the information.

The Operator's responses to the Informution Request in the enclosure must be delivered
electronically (either secure email or a link to.file transfer site if containing CBI) to
steiner.cyntia@7pa.gov by the 30th calendar dav after your receipt of this letter. Pleuse identify
CBI, if any, in your response.

Your responses must be made by a letter, signed by a person or persons duly authorized to represent
the Operator.

If you have any questions about the legal aspects of this Information Request, please contact
Andrew Helmlinger, Assistant Regional Counsel, at (415) 972-3904 or
helmlinger.andrew@epa.gov. The Region IX technical contact for this Information Request is
Cyntia Steiner, Enforcement Officer, at (415) 947-4112 or steiner.cyntia@epa.gov.

We thank you in advance for your cooperation

Sincerely,

CALEB WRIG HT fiiflll]+ 
sisned bv GALEB

Date: 2022.1 1.09 1 2:01 :29 -08'00'

Caleb Wright, Acting Manager (for Kaoru Morimoto)
Hazardous Waste and Chemicals Section
Enforcement and Compl iance Assurance Division

Enclosures

cc (via email letters only):
J. Barnes, Marin County CUPA, JBarnes@marincountlz.org
M. Faryna, Marin County CUPA, MFaryna@marincounty.org
E. Brega, CalEPA, elizabeth.brega@calepa.ca.gov

4



\o, EPA !lJ":i"sJ"fi,, *"",..
Inspection: Staffold Water"ft'eatmer.rt Plant

Date: September 19, 2022

US EPA Region 9 Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
Clean Air Act Section tlZ(r), EPCRA, CBRCLA

Inspection Report

lnspection Date(s): Septenrber 19,2022 Insnection Announced: Yes
Time Entry: 09:00 (PDT) Exit: 16:30 (PDT)
Media Air
Regulatory
Program(s)

Risk Managenent Plan (RMP) 112r, (non-313) Ernergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act (CERCLA)

Company Name: Norlh Marin Water District
Facilitv or Site Name: Stafford Water Treatment Piant
Facility/Site Physical
Location:

3015 Novato Blvd

(city, state, zip code) Novato, C494948
Geographic
Coordinates:

38.1 19722, -122.63021 8

Mailine address: P.O. Box 146.999 Rush Creek Place
(city, state, zirr codc) Novato, CA94948
Countv: Marin
Facility/Site Conta ct: Roberl Clark, Operations & Maintenance Superintendent

(415\ 891-4133
rclark(Enmwd.com

Facility/Site
Identifier:

1000 001 5 1364

Facility DUNS
Number:

926106048

NAICS: 22131 (Water Suoolv and Irrisation Svstems)
SIC:

Facilitv/Site Personnel Participatins in Insnection: (see Attachrnent 1)

Additional Persons Particinatins in Insnection:
Julia Barnes Inspector, Supervisor - Marin

County CUPA
415-413-108s JB arnes(@marincounty.org

Michael Faryna Inspector - Marin County CUPA 415-419-7934 MF aryn a@,marincounty. org



Inspector(s):

Cyntia Steiner

Signature:

CYNTI A STE I N E R B:1fI;,'J'iiSIi,giI$J:'}"

Date:

USEPA Lead Inspector Steiner.cyntia@epa.gov
(4ts) 947-4r12

Bridget Johnson USEPA Inspector Johnson.bridget@epa. gov

Gls) 972-3766

Supervisor Review:

Caleb Wright

Signature: Date:

IJSEPA Acting
Manager

Wright.Caleb@epa.gov
(41s) 912-3841

\grEPAi#f i.:l?iT,,'',",,.
Inspectior.r: Staffold Water Treatment Plant

Date: September 79, 2022

SECTION I - INTRODUCTION

Purpose of the Inspection

The purpose and scope of United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) inspection
was to evaluate Stafford Water Treatment Plant's ("Plant" or "Facility") implementation of and

compliance with the requirements under CAA $ 112(r) Risk Management Program, EPCRA $$

302-312, and CERCLA $ 103. The inspection was announced to Facility representatives on

September 2,2022 via an ernail from Bridget Johnson, USEPA Region 9. The email to the
Facility encouraged employee representatives to participate in all meetings, interviews, and

discussions. This report documents the USEPA inspection.

Opening Conference

The USEPA inspection team, consisting of EPA inspectors Cyntia Steiner and Bridget Johnson,
arrived at the Plant at 9 am on Septemb er 19, 2022, for an announced inspection. The opening
conference included the inspection team and Plant representatives (see Attachment 1). USEPA
inspectors presented credentials to Plant representatives. USEPA inspectors explained that the
inspection included both records review and a Plant walk through. Plant personnel were
presented with, and signed, the Notice of Inspection and the Notice of Right to Claim
Confidentiality ("CBI") (see Attachment 1).

Facility/Process Description

The Plant is owned and operated by North Marin Water District, which is a potable (drinking)
water treatment plant located at 3015 Novato Boulevard, four miles west of Novato, California.
The Plant typically operates from April through November each year depending on water levels
in Stafford Lake. The Plant most recent upgrade was in 2006.

Chlorine is used to make chlorine dioxide, which is used as a primary oxidant in the water
treatment process. Chlorine is also used in the process as a final disinfectant in the water leaving
the plant.

2



\erEPAiti'i'.d.',.11i1,*,",". Inspection: Stafford Watel Treatment Plant
Date: September 19, 2022

Chlorine equipment is housed inside the chlorine building. Leak detectors have been installed to
monitor for chlorine leaks. If a chlorine leak is detected, it triggers a local alarm and the halogen
control valves to close, starts the gas containment scrubber system, and relays an alarm signal to
plant's control (e.g., SCADA) system. According to the Plant, the chlorine gas scrubber system
is designed to neutralize any accidental chlorine leaks from the system and can neutralize the
contents ofan entire one-ton container ofchlorine gas.

The Plant documents that chlorine gas is provided for finished water disinfection, oxidation in
the contact chamber by way of reformation of chlorite to chlorine dioxide, oxidatior/disinfection
on the filters, disinfection in the clear well, and for the production of chlorine dioxide. The
system is designed such that under some conditions chlorine gas can also be fed in place of
chlorine dioxide. The system is designed to apply chlorine at multiple locations within the
process.

The system consists of the following components:
o Two one-ton containers mounted 500 pounds per day (ppd) (maximum) vacuum regulators,

with integral automatic switchover function;
r Four chlorinators, wall mounted,200 ppd each with integral automatic valve, rotameter,

and controller;
. Seven injectors,200 ppd, anti-siphon style;
. One standby vacuum relief valve;
. Chlorine gas detectors, dual sensor style;
. Two free chlorine lpH analyzers; and
. Two halogen emergency shutoff valves.

Prior Enforcement History

There are no California Accidental Release Prevention Program (CalARP) violations or
enforcement actions documented in California Environmental Reporting System (CERS)
in the last 5 years.

There are no enforcement actions documented in Occupational Safety and Health
Administration's Establishment Search Database in the last 5 years.l

SECTION II _ OBSERVATIONS

The following observations were made by the inspection team based on the field observations
and review of the documentation.

II.A Field Observations

The USEPA inspection team completed a physical inspection ofthe Plant. The purpose of the
physical inspection was to provide the USEPA inspection team with an "on the ground"

a

a

J

I https ://www.osha.gov/pls/imis/establishment.html
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orientation. Sixty-eight photographs of the Plant were taken during the inspection, which are

documented in Attachrnent 2.

II.B . PROGRAM-SPECIFIC OBSBRVATIONS - DOCUMBNTATION REVIEW

A review of the docllments is provided in the Program Level 3 Process Checklist in Attachment
3. The inspection also covered a review of EPCRA S $ 302-3 72 hazardous materials management

and EPCRA $ 3O4/CERCLA $ 103 release reporling (see EPCRA S 304/CERCLA $ 103

checklist in Attachment 4).

SBCTTON Irr - ARBAS OF CONCERN (AOC)

The presentation of AOCs identified during the field observations and docuntent review does not
constitute a formal compliance determination or violatiot't.

,Are'A,,of€tiiiterh#1 .:''.. i,:,.'1r, ..i'.l...:...,,..:':..l .1;.':;. rr,..:,,.,,, r.,,r.,.l

Observation Summary: 'Ihere was no documentation of safe upper and lower limits for such

items as temperature, pressures, flows or compositions.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.65 Process Safety Information.
(c)(1) Infornation concerning the technology of the process shall include at least the

following; (iv) Safe upper and lotuer limits for such items as temperatures, pressures, flows
or cont.positions; ...

Supporting Information :

2019 Risk Manasement Plan. paseD-2
Description of Observation: Page D-2 of the RMP states, "Safe Upper and Lower Limits.
These are the limits on operating parameters defined by the engineering standards utilized in
the design. The parameters for cl,lorine processes are operating pressure, temperature, and

flow. Safe upper and lower lirnits fbr the facility and chlorine system are included in the PSI

files." EPA did not observe durins the inspection that the Plant had this documentation.

Area ofiConcern #2
Observation Summary: Equiprnent configuration and materials of construction in piping and

instrument diagram (P&lD) P-401 did not reflect equipment observed in the field.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.65 Process Safety Information.
(d) Information pertaining to the equipntent in the process. (1) Information pertaining to the

equipment in the process shall include: (i) Materials of construction; (ii) Piping and
instrtmtent diagrams (P&ID's) ..

Supporting Information :

P&ID P-401 (6600.31 P-aO1.pdf)
Cover Letter, dated Octob er 3,2022
2019 Risk Management Plan, page D-3
Photoeraph 19

4
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Excerpt from Photograph 19 showing transparent chloline
vacuum tubing, vacuum regulator, and emergency shut off
valve on each one-ton container.

Excerpt from P&lD P-401 showing lefelence
to chloline vacuum lines using black,
polyethylene tubing and vacuum regulator'
(Type2), emergency shutoff, and drip leg
w/heater ftype2\.

Description of Observation: P&ID P-401 documents the chlorine suction tubing as "black,
polyethylene." During the inspection, the tubing observed was transparent and we were told it
was PTFE (or PolyTetraFluoroEthylene) tubing (see side-by-side comparison below). After
the inspection, the Plant provided additional information on October 3,2022, confirming use

of PTFE, tubing. P&ID P-401 also indicates use of "vacuum regulator, yoke mounted behind
emergency shut off valve, type 2" and "drip leg wlheater, type T' In the field, it was observed
that the regulator and emergency shutoff valve are side-by-side rather than described in the
P&ID as regulator mount being the emergency shutoff valve. Additionally, the reference to
"type 2" equipment in the P&ID is unclear (e.g., Chlorine Institute or other standard). P&ID
P-401 has also not been updated for the chlorinators as the vacuum indicators were
disconnected by the Plant and not in use during the inspection, but are still shown as available
on the P&ID. The 2003 P&ID is not consistent with field observations.

The 2019 RMP indicates that "Materials of construction.These are specified in the design
documents for any new or modified chlorine system. Materials of construction for existing
systems are included in the PSI files for the site." The materials of construction, documented
in the P&ID, are incorrect for the chlorine vacuum tubing and likely the vacuum regulator and

emergency shutoff valves.

Area of Concern #3
Observation Summary: The Plant did not have adequate ventilation system design
information.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.65 Process Safety Information.
(d) Information pertaining to the equipment in the process. (l) Information pertaining to the

equipment in the process shall include: ...(v) Ventilation system design
Sunnortins Information :

5
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Section 11354.4, Emersency Chlorine Gas Scrubber Unit
Description of Observation: The Plant had information on the emergency ventilation
capacity of 8,200 cubic feet per minute in its infonnation on the gas scrubber (page I 1354.4-
4). The Plant did not have adequate ventilation system design information showing the codes
and standards used to size the fan and engineering calculations demonstrating thatthat the fan
and make-up air vents are adequate to maintain a negative pressure for both the Chlorine
Storase and V-notch Rooms.

Observation Summary: The Plant did not have adequate labeling on the chlorine piping.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.65 Process Safefy Information.
@)Q fhe owner or operator shall docuntent that equipment complies with recognized and
senerallv acceoted sood ensineerin.s oractices.
Supporting Information :

Schemefor ldentification of Piping Systems, Standard A13.1, American Society of Mechanical
Engineers (ASME), 2015
Photoeraphs 12.55. and 56

Description of Observation: Section 3.1 of the AMSE Standard No. A13.1 states, "Positive
identification of the contents of a piping systern shall finclude]... name of the contents ....
Arrows shall be used to indicate direction of flow...Contents shall be identified ...with
sufficient additional details such as temperature, pressure, etc., as are necessary to identify the
hazard." Chlorine labeling was not attached securely to some piping and rnissing from others
(see Photosraphs 12. 55. and 56).

Observation Summary: The Plant did not document compliance with 40 C.F.R. 68.65(dX2)
and (3).

Citation:
40 CFR 68.65 Process Safety Information.
Q() fhe owner or operator shall docuntent that eEipment complies with recognized and
ge n e r al ly ac c e pt e d go o d e ngine e r ing pract ic e s (RAGA G E P ) .

(d) (3) For existing equipment designed and constructed in accordance with code,v, standards,
or practices that are no longer in general use, the owner or operator shall determine and
document that the equipment is designed, ntaintained, inspected, tesled, and operating in a
safe man.ner.

Supporting Information :

201 9 Process I-lazard Analysis
2019 RMP Manual. pase E-3
Description of Observation: The 2019 RMP manual states, "Applicable codes and standards
will be identified by the PHA leader prior to conducting the PI-IA. 'fhese will include tlie
Unifonn Fire Code, the Unifonn Building Code, Chlorine Institute standards, engineering
standards for hoists, etc. During the PHA, the covered process(es) will be reviewed for
compliance with the identified codes and standards."

6
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The Plant documented compliance with RAGAGEP in the PHA (see excerpt below).

CODE COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST

Codo/Standard Compliance
Yos/No/NA

Comments/Reoommondations

Chlorine lnstitute, Chlorine Manual Y No Chlorine Room modification since new
facili9 completion, compliance with codes
and standards are inherent in system design.l

Chlorine lnstitute, Pamphlet 6 - Piping Systems for Dry Chlorine

Uniform Building Code - ceneral

Uniform Building Code - Selsmic Y

Uniform Fire Code, Article 80 A Y

National Electrical Code (NEC)

Concrete Structures (per ASTM Standards)

Fire Pumps per NFPA

Hoists Y

ls the facility designed and operaled consistent with "Recognized and
Generally Accepted Good Engineering Practices"?

Except flom 2019 PHA, page 19

The list of codes/standards applicable to the Plants seems incomplete. First, there are no dates
associated with the codes/standards listed and there may also be other applicable standards,
such as, but not limited to:

r Pamphlet 155: Water and Wastewater Operators Chlorine Handbook, 3'd Ed
o Pamphlet 89: Chlorine Scrubber Systems, 5th Ed
o Pamphlet 165: Instrumentation for Chlorine Service, 3'd Ed
. ASME Standard A13.1,2020

Additionally, "Hoists" is listed in the checklist as a code/standard; the hoist is likely subject to
OSHA 1910.179, at a minimum.

The Plant's comment that "No Chlorine Room modification since new facility completion,
compliance with codes and standards are inherent in system design" implies that the Plant is in
compliance with codes and standards that are about 20 years old, as the Plant began operations
in2006 under the curent configuration. The checklist does not appear to take into account
that codes and standards are periodically updated when organizations that develop codes
update them based on newly identified or recognizedhazards; improved understanding of
existing hazards; industry operating experience; and/or incidents indicating that more stringent
hazard control is needed. The PHA should identifr code/standard updates, if any, and evaluate
them for the Plant during the PHA.

According to the code compliance check list above, the Plant did not determine and document
that the equipment is designed, maintained, inspected, tested, and operating in a safe manner
"for existing equipment designed and constructed in accordance with codes, standards, or
practices that are no longer in general use."

1
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Observation Summary: The Plant did not resolve recommendations in a timely manner from
the2015 Process hazard analysis (PHA).

Citation:
40 CFR 68.67 Process hazard analysis.
(e) The owner or operator shall establish a sltstem to promptly address the team.'s findings and
recomm.en.dation.s,' assure that the recommendalions are resolved in a timely ntanner and that
the resolution is docuntented; document what actions are to be taken; complel,e aclions as

soon as possible; develop a written schedule of when these actions are lo be completed;
comntunicate lhe actions lo operating, m.ain.ten.ance and other employees whose work
assignntents are in the process and who may be affected by the recommendation,s or actions.

Supporting Information :

2015 Process Hazard Analysis
201 9 Process I-lazard Analysis
Table 4. Summary of Recommendations (7015. ps.10, sulnmary table.pdfl
Description of Observation: The 201 5 PHA generated I 5 recommendations. Eight of the
recommendations were identified as "High" priority and the remainder as "Moderate" priority
The PHA defined "l-ligh" priority as "Serious Concern: Need to address the recommendation
as soou as possible" and "Mediulr" as "Moderate Concern: Need to address the
recommendation in a timely rlanner using routine work processes."

At the time of the inspection, "lJigh" priority itern B.2.1 .E, was listed as "OP-EN" under the
status column. The recornmendation is to "Add a comment to cylinder check list "Treat all
cylinders as full."" This recommendation was recomlnended again in lhe2019 PHA, along
with three "model'ate" recommendations that were generally carried over from the 2015 PHA

Observation Summary: At the time of the inspection, the Plant did not document its most
recent PFIA revalidation. which is required at least every five years.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.67 Process hazard analysis.
(fl At least everyfive (5) years after the completion of the initial process hazard analysis, the

process hazard analysis shall be updated andrevalidated .... to assure that the process hazard
analysis is consisten.t with the cu.rren.t process . ..

(g) The owner or operator shall retain process hazards analyses and updates or revalidations
for each Droces,\ ...for the life of the Drocess.

Supporting Information :

2015 Process Hazard Analysis
201 9 Process I{azard Analysis
RMP reported to EPA on March 31,2021
2019 RMP Manual, page E-3
Description of Observation: Before the inspection, the Plant sent EPA a copy of its PHA
dated December 2015. During the time of the inspection, the Plant indicated that it had

completed a revalidated PHA in May 2020 (consistent with date submitted to EPA in its 2021
RMP). lfowever. the Plant staff said that they did not document the revalidated PHA as

8
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nothing had changed from 201 5 PHA. After the inspection, the Plant provided a copy of a
revalidated PHA dated Decernber 2019.

Area of Concern #8
Observation Summary: Use of SCBA during chlorine handling procedure does not seem to
be consistent with Plant's SOP 2.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.66 Operating procedures.
(a) The owner or operator shall ... implement written operaling procedures thal provide clear
instruclions for safelv conductinp activities involved in each covered orocess ...

Supporting Information :

SOP 2 (Decernber 2019)
Photosranhs 13 and 14

The sign on the exterior door of the Chlorine Storage Room "Use SCBA when changing
chlorine gas cylinders" (see Photographs 13 and 14). However, Plant personnel indicated
verbally that they have the SCBA in possession, but do not wear them while perforrning the
chlorine cyl inder exchanges.

Section 4.2 of the SOP 2 states, "Two persons are required for connecting or disconnecting
chlorine containers. First person is to perform the necessary operations, second person to act as

a safety observer. The second person shall be outside the chlorine room observing with the
doors open and escape SCBA in possession but not donned. .... Both persons shall be

equipped with hose supplied air fbr a SCBA system. Operators shall have SCBA systems on
while performing any chlorine procedures at the plant."

There seems to be inconstancies between the SOP/door signage and operator practices.

,Area of Concern #9 ,

C)bservation Summary: For steps of each operating phase, including startup and shutdown,
the Plant did have operating procedures.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.66 Operating procedures.
(a) The owner or operator shall develop and implement written operating procedures that
provide clear instructions for sa/bly conducting activities involved in each covered process
consistent with the proces,s safety inforntation and shal/ address at l.easl. the following
elentents. (l) Steps for each operatinp phase ...

Supporting Information :

SOPs 01-04 (December 201 9)
Description of Observation: The plant typically operates frorn April through November each
year, so it starls up and shuts down at leastyearly. The Plant indicated thatit is currently
developing operating procedures for when they start up and shut down operations each year.
EPA was told that end of season operating procedures will include instructions on how to
evacuate chlorine from all equipment and piping to ensure that no chlorine is present in piping
and equiprrent during the offseason, when much of the maintenance is done.

9
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Another normal operating procedure that was not observed to be documented in an SOP is
measuring and adjusting chlorine flow. SOP-O1 states, "The chlorine flow rate is set manually
at the chlorinator to fbed the correct amount of chorine." The SOP, however, does not
describe how to manually set the chlorinator or what the correct amount is (or the minimum
and maximum operating range under normal conditions).

Area of Concern #10
Observation Summary: The operating procedures were missing the required salety and
healtlr considerations of the properties of, and hazards presented by, the chemicals used in the
process.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.66 Operating procedures.
(a) The owner or operator shall develop and implentent written operating procedure,s that
provide clear instructions for safely conducting activities involved in each covered process
consistenl with the process safety infornation and shall addres,s at least the follou,ing
elentents. (3) Safety and health considerations: (i) Properties of, and hazards presented by, the
chem.icals ttsed in. the process...

Supporting Information :

SOPs 01-04 (Decernber 2019)
Description of Observation: The SOPs did not include or reference information on properties
of, and hazards presented by, chlorine. The Plant's SOPs do include some information
scattered throughout the processes. For example, SOP 1 is the only place that describes,
"Chlorine gas is heavier than air" in the context of the "Emergency Gas Leak Containment
Operations" section. Typically, operating procedures include a separate section about
properties and hazards in each procedure or provide reference to the information which is
documented elsewhere.

Area of Concern #11
Observation Summary: The Plant did not annually certify that the operating procedures are
current and accurate.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.66 Operating procedures.
(c) I'he operating procedures shall be reviev,ed as often as necessary lo assure that they
reflect currenl operating praclice, including changes that resuhfrom changes in process
chemica/.s, technologt, and equipmenl, and changes to slalionary sources. The ov,ner or
operator shall certify annual.ly thal these operalin.g procedures are cuwen.t and accurate
Supporting Information :

Plant Interview
Description of Observation: The Plant said they review the SOPs as training every year but
have not been certifying annually that the operating procedures are current and accurate.

l0



10' f pfl !lJ',if ,'ilxiil,,',",".
Inspection: Stallord Watel Tleatment Plant

Date: Septernber 19, 2022

Area of Cotncern#12
Observation Summary: The Plant did not have a written operating procedure for opening
process equipment or pipins.
Citation:

,40 CFR 68.66 Operating procedures.
(d) The owner or operator shall develop and intplement safe work practices 1o provide for the
control of hazards during operalions such as ....open.ing process equipment or piping by
mainten.an.ce, con.tractor, I.aboratory, or other sw)port person.nel ...

Supporting Information:
SOPs 1-4 (Decernber 2019)
Description of Observation: The Plant does not appear to have a written line break procedure
to ensure chlorine is properly evacuated fi'orn the system before opening equiprnent/piping
prior to maintenancelrepair activities.

Area of Concern #13
Observation Summary: The Plant did not adequately document that an operator was
provided initial training in the operating procedures.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.71 Training.
(a) Initiul Training (l) Each employee presently involved in operating a process, and each
employee before being involved in operating a newly assigned process, shall be trained in an
overview o.f the process and in the operating procedures as specffied in S 68.69...
(c)Training Docunrcntution. The owner or operator shall ascertain that each employee
involved in operaling a process has received and understood the training required by this
paragraph. T'he owner or operator ,shall prepare a record which contains the idenlity oJ'the
employee, the date o.f training, and the nleans used to verify that the employee understood the
traininp.
Supporting Information:
Austin's Initial Training Docs.pdf
AS Training Docs. Pdf
Description of Observation: Initial training materials provided inclLrde out of date
information. For example, the training materials include information for the "Treatment Plant"
that references sulfur dioxide cylinders (Step 4), which are no longer used by the Plant. Step 6
states,

6. lf chlorine gas detector is activated, follow Cl, emergeney procedures safety rules as
in laboratory/control room. Rules yet to be sel up.

Step 6 is not consistent with the current operating procedures.

Table G.5 lists each of the operating procedures and the date that the operator completed each
training. For each procedure, the "Procedure Review/Test" date is cornpleted but not "the
means used to verify that the employee understood the training" as the trainer and observed
columns in the table are blank (see excerpt below).

11
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Procedure Reviewffest ObservedItem
Date Trainer Date Tralner

SOP-01 Chlorine System Overview 3 5' 2ol
SOP-02 Safe Handling and Storage g
SOP-03 Taking Delivery of Ton Containers 4t ?n l\
SOP-04 Ton Container Hookup and

Change Out 1[z*rl
EOM-O1 Responding to a Chlorine Event 1
EOM-02 Evacuation and Notification b 5 'l,n t1
EOM-03 First Aid and Medical Treatment 1 IrOt\

Observation Summary: The Plant did not document operator refresher training every three
years.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.71 Training.
(b) Itefresher training. Refresher training shall be provided at least ettery three years... to

each employee involved in operating a process to assltre that the employee understands and
adheres to the current operating procedures ofthe process. ...

(c)Training Documentation. The owner or operator shall ascertain that each employee
involved in operating a process has received and understood the training required by this
paragraph. The owner or operator shall prepare a record which contains the identity of the

eruployee, lhe date of training, and the nleans used to verify that the employee understood the

lraining.
Supporting Information
BS Training Docs.pdf
DG Training Docs.pdf
JC Training Docs.pdf
RF Training Docs.pdf
Description of Observation: At the time of the inspection, the Plant indicated that they did
not track refresher training.

After the inspection, the Plant did provide two pages of training documents for each operator
The first page consists of online Chlorine Institute (CI) training modules, which was
documented using Table G.3 titled "CHLORINE SOP TRAINING COMPLETION FORM."
It should be noted that the Cl training does not appear to oount as refresher training for the
Plant's operating procedures because the CI training is generic and does not ensure that an

operator "understands and adheles to the current operating procedures ofthe process." It is
also noted that the CI trairiing was completed after the EPA inspection.

The second page of the documentation provided is a filled-out Table G.5 titled,
"OPERATOR/MECHANIC TRAINING TRACI{NG SYSTEM," which lists each operating
and maintenance procedure. Only one table was proved for each operator (not one for every
three years) and the completion dates in the tables ranged fi'orn 2005 to 2008.

12
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Observation Summary: The Plant did not document chlorine sensor calibration and testing
adequatelv.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.73 Mechanical integrity.
(d) Inspection and Testing.
(3) The frequency of inspections and tests of process equipment shall be consistent with
applicable manufacturers' recommendations and good engineering praclices, and more

fresuentlv if determined to be necessary by prior operating experience. .

Supporting Information :

Acutec 35 Gas Detection System, BOOK NO. WT.050.130.000.UA.IM.0614
Plrotosraoh s 25. 52. and 5B

Description of Observation: At the time of the inspection, the Plant indicated that they did
not conduct calibrations for the chlorine sensors. Rather the sensors were replaced every two
years per manufacturer's recolllrrendations. Two types of sensors were observed during the
inspection - USFilter Acutec 35 (see Photographs 25 and 52) and Siemens (see Photograph
5 8).

The Plant provided a copy of the user's manual for the Acutec detectors, which states "lf on-
site calibration is not practical, it is recommended that a new, factory calibrated
Sensor/Transmitter be purchased every two years." It is not clear if the sensor had been

replaced as the sensor was not dated (see Photograph 35). The Plant did not provide a user's
manual for the Siemens serlsor, so it not known if the manufacture allows for replacement in
lieu of calibration.

The Acutec sensor inch-rdes an auto-test enabling mode. The user's manual states, "For
systems not equipped with Auto-Test, at least rnonthly manual sensor response testing is

recommended." The Plant did not document sensor configuration or testing frequency. 'fhe

PIJA indicates that the chlorine detectors include a "weekly test." Testing documentation was
not provided to EPA.

Observation Summary: The Plarit did not adequately document inspection and testing of
process equipment.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.73 Mechanical integrity.
(d) Inspection snd Testing.
(3) The frequency of inspections and lest,s of process equipment shall be consistent with
applicable manufaclurers' recommendalions and good engineering practices, and more

freEtently i"f deterntined to be necessary by prior operating experience.

@) The owner or operator shall documenl. each inspection and test that has been performed on
process equipment. The documentation shall identifu the date of the inspection or test, the

name of the person who perfornted the inspection or test, the serial number or other identifier
of the equipnxent on which the inspection or test was perfornted, a description of the inspection
or tesl performed. and the results of the in,sDection or test.

13



Supporting lnformation:
Photographs 34 and 35

Document Review/Request List (Attachrnent 1)

Documents provided to EPA on October 4,2022
Description of Observation: At the end of the inspection, EPA asked the Plant to send a

copy of its preventive maintenance schedule for the chlorine system process equipment,

testing information for the emergency shutdown system, including the ventilation system and

scrubber, as wellas crane (or hoist)2 testing information (see Attachment 1). The Plant did not
provide this information to EPA as requested. It should also be noted that EPA requested

emergency shutdown system testing records during the inspection and testing, but the Plant
was not able to locate it while EPA was present. It is not clear if the Plant is regularly
inspecting and testing process equipment.

Additionally, EPA observed that halogen emergency shutoff drive (ESD or halogen valves)
testing was documented on a whiteboard in the Chlorine Storage Room (see Photographs 34

and 35). The whiteboard includes A and B valves and sometimes includes what appears to
include the initials of the tester. Testing documentation on the whiteboard is summarized as

follows:

Summary of halosen ESD testinq dates in Photographs 35 and 36

Month/Year Valve A Valve B
June 2020 None 6-23

Iuly 2020 7-20 7-23
7-30

Aueust 2020 8-1 3

Septernber 2020 9-16
Novernber 2020 1t-2
Ausust 2021 8-3

September 2021 9-3

'l'he testing fi'equency for the halogen valves is irregular, and no testing was documented for
2022. Based on this testing information, the Plant does not appear to have a regular testing
schedule and documentation is inconsistent with RMP requirements described in 68.73(d)(a)

The Plant needs to document and irnplernent the required testing frequency for all of its
process equipment to "all be consistent with applicable manufacturers'recornmendations and

good engineering practices, and more frequently if deterrnined to be necessary by prior
operating exDerience."

\grEPAllJl',i"tJ','f 
,1,*,",",

Inspection: Staffold Water Tt'eaturent Plant
Date: Septernber 19, 2022

2 Section 3.1.2 ofSOP 3 states, "The crane and hoist shall be inspected by a celtilied crane inspection firm annually
1bl ploper operation and Iilting integrity."
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Area of Concern: #17
Observation Summary: The Plant was not sure if preventative maintenance on its chlorine
vacuuln tubine was necessary or how often it needed to be replaced.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.73 Mechanical integrity.
(d) Inspection and Testing.
(3) The frequency of inspections and tests of process equipment shall be consistent with
applicable manufacturers' recommendations and good engineering practices, and more

freqttently if determined to be necessary by prior operating experience.

@ The owner or operator shall document each inspeclion and te,st that has been performed on
process equipment. The documentation shall identifu the date of the inspection or test, the

name of the personwho performed the inspection or test, the ,serial number or other identifier
of the equipment on which the inspection or test was performed, a description of the inspection
or tesl oerformed. and the results of the inspeclion or test.

Supporting Information :

CI Pamphlet 155, Water and Wastewater Operators Chlorine Handbook, 3rd Edition
Cover Letter, dated October 3,2022
Description of Observation: When asked about the vacuum tubing and how often it needed

to be replaced, the Plant indicated that they did not know. After the inspection, the Plant
responded with the following information, "The other rnissing item is the PTFE tubing PM as

we are performing inspections and the tubing is in double containment. We will be reaching
out to our supplier and other local users of chlorine gas to develop a PM and replacement plan
In the RMP there is a pre-startup safety review identified for the system initial startup in2006
and after any significant changes have been made. To date the system has not had any
significant changes. With that said we will need to retrieve initial startup documentation from
our off-site warehouse for the initial review docurnents."

Section 5.5 of CI Pamphlet 155 states, "Flexible hoses ... should be visually inspected,
pressure tested, and replaced according to the manufacturer's recommendations. Periodic
inspection should be part of a preventative plant maintenance program. Replacement of
flexible connectors is recommended annual as a minimum."

Area of Concern #18
Observation Summary: The chlorine gas from the one-ton container was operating at a

negative pressure (or vacuum) than could not be measured by its pressure gauqe.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.73 Mechanical integrity.
(e) Equipntent dejiciencies. The owner or operator shall correct deficiencies in equipment that
are outside acceptable limits (defined by the process safety information in $ 68.65) before
further Llse or in a safe and timely manner when necessary means are taken to assure safe

operation.
Supporting Information :

Photographs l6-18
P&ID P-401 (6600.31 P-401.pdfl
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Description of Observation: The pressure gauges for the one-ton chlorine gas lines were
pegged at the minimum range of the gauge. It did not appear that Plant personnel monitor the
pressure gauges on a regular basis as Plant staff did not know what the gauge should be

reading. P&ID P-401 list the pressure gauges as "VACUUM INDICATOR." Process safety
information related to the chlorine gas tubing was not observed during the inspection. With too
hish of a vacuum" there is the potential for the chlorine vacuum tubine to collapse.

Area of Concern#21
Observation Summary: The Plant did not implement wriffen procedures to manage change
when the chlorinators were not be serviced prior to startup.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.75 Manasement of chanqe (MOC).

Area of Concern #19
Observation Summary: The air intake vents for the emergency ventilation system in the
Chlorine Storage and V-notch Rooms appeared to be covered in a thick layer of dust and

srime. which can block free airflow.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.73 Mechanical integrity.
(e) Equipment deJiciencies. The owner or operator shall correct deficiencies in equipment that
are outside acceptable limits (defined by the process safety information in $ 68.65) before
further use or in a safe and timely manner when necessary means are taken to assure safe

operation.
Supporting Information:
Photosraohs 29 -30 and 50

Description of Observation: External air intake vents in the chlorine storage room (see

Photographs 29-30) and V-notch room (see Photograph 50) appeared to be coated with a thick
layer of dust. This can cause a reduction in make-up air during an emergency scrubbing event
(potentially affectine the abiliW to create a negative pressure in the rooms).

Area of Concern #20
Observation Summary: The chlorine gas vacuum tubing feeding Oxidation Injector #3 is
unprotected from potential impacts.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.73 Mechanical integrity.
(e) Equipment deJiciencies. The owner or operator shall correct deficiencies in equipment that
are outside acceptable limits (defined by the process safety information in $ 68.65) before
further use or in a safe and timely manner when necessary means are taken to assure safe

operation.
Supporting Information:
Photosraphs 65

Description of Observation: The location of the chlorine vacuum tubing on Oxidation
Injector #3 is in an areathat is not protected from accidental equipment and human impacts
(see Photosraph 65).
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(a) The owner or operator shall ... implement written procedures to manage changes (except

for "replacements in kind") to process chemicals, technology, equipment, and procedures;
and, chanses to stationarv sources that affect a covered process..

Supporting Information :

6-13 -20 Incident Report
Table L.4. MOC Los, Q0l9)
Description of Observation: During the inspection, the Plant indicated that they do not
complete MOCs often and the MOC table that the Plant provided shows that the last three
MOCs done since 2010 relate to updating the RMP.

The incident report states that, "REPLACEMENT OF THESE CHLORINATORS SHOULD
BE DONE PRIOR TO START UP. SUPPLY DID NOT ALLOW FOR THIS TO HAPPEN
THIS YEAR." Based on the inspection, EPA understanding of the chlorinators is that the
Plant rebuilds them each year and that the Plant does this work based on manufacturer's re-
build kit. Because there was a deviation from normal procedures, a MOC should have been

completed to ensure this deviation was safe and if not, alternatives should have been explored
to mitigate (e.g., increased and inspection preventative maintenance). The change in procedure
should have been documented per EPA guidance and implemented with a MOC.3

\grEPAHl,llil"*l'ffdP,"",i". Inspection: Stafford Water Treatment Plant
Date: Septemb er 19, 2022

3 See https://www.epa.gov/enforcement/covid-19-implications-epas-enforcement-and-compliance-assurance-
program

Area of Concernll22
Observation Summary: The Plant's emergency response procedures are inconsistent on use

of CI emersencv kits.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.95 Emergency Response Program
(a) The owner or operator shall develop and implement an emergency response programfor
the purpose of protecting public health and the environment. Such program shall include the

following elements... (l) An emergency response plan, which shall be maintained at the

stationary soLtrce and contain at least thefollowing elements: ... (ii, Procedures and
measures for emergency response after an accidental release of a regulated substance...

Supporting Information :

Chlorine Institute ("CI") Emergency Kit "B" for Chlorine Ton Containers, Edition 12

CI Pamphlet 64,Emergency Response Plans for Chloro-Alkali, Sodium Hypochlorite and
Hydrogen Chloride Facilities, 2020
EOM-01, Responding to a Chlorine Event (EOMI 20l9.pdt)
SOP 2-4 (December 2015 and2019)
Description of Observation: EOM 1 is the Plant's procedure for responding to a chlorine
event. Part3.2lists "Equipment Requirements" that includes item #2,"Emergency "A-Kit"
and "B-Kit."" The CI kit "A" is for 100 and 150-pound chlorine cylinders and the kit "B" is
for one-ton chlorine containers. The Plant only had one-ton containers onsite at the time of the
inspection.
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Inspection: Stafford Watel Tleatment Plant
Date: Septernber 19, 2022

Part 3.1, Step 5 of EOM 1 states, "There are two main types of release: (1) an incidental
release which can be repaired following normal operating and maintenance procedures, and

(2) an emergency release which cannot be repaired using nonnal operating procedures..."
Step 8 of Part 4.1 states, "For incidental releases follow Part 4.2, and for emergency releases

follow Part 4.3 of this procedure." Step 4 in Part 4.2 states, "Use the repair kit to apply the
appropriate patch (Refer to Chlorine Institr"rte Instructions) for leaking containers/cylinders."
During the inspection, Plant staff said they had not trained on how to use the kit "B", as the
Plant expectation was that the fire department would use them if needed. After the inspection,
EOM I was edited with a comment stating, "We do not have a repair kit other than our
outdated B kit which operators are not authorized to use."

Area of Concern,#23
Observation Summarv: The Plant's emergencv kit "B" contained expired gaskets.

Citation:
40 CFR 68.95 Emergency Response Program
(a) The owner or operator shall develop and implentent an emergency response program.fbr
the purpose of protecting public health and the environrnent. Such progrant shall include the

following elements... (2) Procedures for the use of emergency response eqnipment andfor its
insne c t ion. te s tin s. an d nt ainte nancb ...

Supporting Information :

Chlorine Institute Emergency Kit "B" for Chlorine Ton Containers, Edition 72, January 2021
EOM-01, Responding to a Chlorine llvent (EOM1 20l9.pdf)
HOM 4, Inspection and Maintenance of ER Equipment (EOM4 2019.pdf)
Photographs 66-68
2019 Process Hazards Analysis
Description of Observation: Section 2.5 of Chlorine Institute document on the kit "B" states,

"All Viton@ gaskets for the emergency kit are stamped with the date of manufacture and

should be removed and replaced every four years ..." Section 7 states, "Al1 Viton gaskets are

stamped with the date of manul'acture and should be removed from emergency use after a

four-year shelf life." Photograph 66 shows the gaskets from the two different "B" kits onsite at

the tirne of the inspection. One set is stamped with a2003 manufacture date and the other did
not have date of manufacture on the gaskets.

EOM 4 provides inforrnation on maintaining/inspecting the "Container/Cylinder Repair Kits."
There are instructions on rnaking sure kits are located in proper location, verifiring seals or-r kit
storage boxes are intact, and ifseals are broken, checking that the leak repair kit for all parts. It
did not appear that the kits were sealed during the inspection. There are no instructions to
check ifgaskets are expired and safe for continued use.

After the inspection, EOM 1 was edited with a comment stating, "We do not have a repair kit
other than our outdated B kit ..."

EPA notes that the Plant should have checked if the B kits were appropriate during the2019
PHA because it is listed as a safeguard:
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Date: September 19, 2022

Actvlty Ocrcrlpton:
DEwlng No,:

Safety System l,tonh Motin Watet District
PHA Leader Faobett Clark

ln-4lo

Item Equlpment / Actlvlty Questlons Causes
comequcnoes/

Hmrd3 Sifeguardg
sateguaro3
Adaou8te? Recommendallon

4H Safety
lnstrumentation
Systems

what if the Repair
Kils ara outdated or
inappropriate?

Lack of
attention to
soP

Unable to cap a
failed cylinder or
stop a leak

Two B Kits will
be available.

The Plant answer of "Safesuard Adeauate? Y" was inaccurate.

Area of Concern#24
Observation Summary: The Plant did not document annual emergency response coordination
activities.
Citation:
40 CFR 68.93 Emergency response coordination activities
The owner or operator of a stationary source shall coordinate response needs with local
emergency planning and response organizations ...
(a) Coordination shall occur at least annually...
(c) The owner or operator shall document coordination with local authorities, including: The

names of individuals involved and their contact information (phone number, email address,
and organizational ffiliations); dates of coordination activities; and nature of coordination
activities.
Supporting Information :

CI Pamphlet 155, Water and Wastewater Operators Chlorine Handbook, 3rd Edition
Inspection discussion
Description of Observation: The Plant indicated that coordination with local responders,
including the Novato fire departmenthazmat team was frequent, but said that these
coordination activities had not been documented. The Plant needs to coordinate with the fire
department to ensure they have and can use the CI kit "B" for chlorine leaks. Section 10.1 of
CI Pamphlet 155 says, "An inventory of locally available items should be accessible to
responders. Likewise, the locations of emergency kits for ...ton containers ... should be
known."

Area of Concern #25
Observation Summary: The worst case and alternative release scenarios reported to EPA are

not consistent with the Plant's offsite consequence analysis documentation.
Citation:
Subpart G - Risk Management Plan, 40 CFR 68.165 Offsite consequence analysis
(a) The owner or operator shall submit in the RMP information: ...
(2) For Program 2 and 3 processes, one worst-case release scenario to represent all regulated
toxic substances held above the threshold quantity and one worst-case release scenario to
represent all regulated flammable substances held above the threshold quantity. If additional
worst-case scenarios for toxics orflammables are required by $ 68.25(a)(2)(iii), the owner or
operator shall submit the same information on the additional scenario(s). The owner or
operator of Program 2 and 3 processes shall also submit information on one alternative
release scenario for each resulated toxic substance held above the threshold ouantitv and one
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Inspectiorr: Staflbld Water Treatment Plant
Date: September 19, 2022

alternative rel.ease scenario lo represent all regulated flamm.able substances held abotte the

threshold quantitv.

Supporting Information :

Offsite Consequence Analysis, December 2019
RMP reported to EPA on March 31,2021
Description of Observation: The Plant stated during the inspection that it revised its offsite
consequence analysis in2019. The distance to endpoint data for the worst case and alternative
release scenarios subrnitted to EPA in the 2021 RMP are not consistent with the Plant's 201 9

Offsite Consequence Analysis.

Area of'Concern #26,
Observation Summary: The Plant's Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP or Tier ll
Report) was submitted late for reporting years 2018 and 2020. The most recent submittal
included a Facility Site Plan/Storage Map that included an error related to sulfur dioxide
storage.
Citations:
EPCRA $ 312, Tier II Inventory, What is Tier I inventory information?, 40 CFR $
370.4L
...Tier II inventory fornt includes the following data elements: ...

(v) The general location of hazardous chemicals in each hazard category within your.facility.
General locations should include the names or identification of buildings, tank.fields,lots,
sh.eds or other such areas.
EPCRA $ 312, Tier II Inventory, When must I submit the inventory information?,40
cFR S 370.4s
(a) You must submit the required inven.tory infornation on or before March l, and on or
before March I of each year aftenuards. Your submis,sion must con.tain the required inventoty
inJbrmation on hazardous chemicals present at yourfacility during the preceding calendar
year at or above threshold levels. a

Supporting Information :

Ilazardous Materials Business Plan, Reporting Years 2017-2021, CERS
Description of Observation: The Plant submitted its 2018 and 2020 (reporting years) HMBP
late to CERS. The following table summarizes recent subrnittals:

Renortins Year Date Submitted
Days between

Submittals
2021 112012022 ).1,-)

2020 3t3/2021 397
2019 1131/2020 241
2018 6/4/2019 s40
2011 1211112011

The most recent Tier II Report submittal included a Facility Site Plan/Storage Map (dated May
10, 2019) that documented a storage location for sulfur dioxide. During the inspection, Plant
staff indicated that they currently do not store sulfur dioxide.

a ln Califolnia, submittals ale due March 3i of each year unless the last subrnittal was less than 365 days before
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Date: September 19, 2022

Recommcndation #l
Observation Summary: The quantity of chlorine in the one-ton containers was slightly
different on the control room computer system (B and I ,088 lbs - see Photograph 1) than the
Wizard 4000 monitor in the Chlorine Storase Room (4 and 1,074 lbs - see Photoeruph22).
Supporting Information :

Photosraphs I and22
f)escription of Observation: Evaluate why there is a difference and correct discrepancy if
necessary.

Recommendation #2
Observation Summary: NFPA diarnonds are faded on the doors of the Chlorine Storage and

V-notch rooms.
Supporting Information
Photoeraphs 4-6
Description of C)bservation: NFPA hazard diarnond for chlorine is visible but the color-
coding is laded. fhe NFPA systern uses a color-coded diamond with fbur quadrants in which
numbers are used in the upper three quadrants to signal the degree of health hazard (blue),
flanrmability hazard (red), and reactivity hazard (yellow). It is recommended that the signs be

replaced so that first responders have easy hazard recognition.

Observation Summary: Electrical plug and cords were present near and on the floor around
the chlorine one-ton containers and debris around the eye wash/safety shower located between
chlorine rooms. which could be a potential trip hazard.
Supportin g Information :

Photographs 9 and 39

Description of Observation: Evaluate if plugs/cords can be protected or moved to elirninate
potential trip hazards. Remove debris around eye wash/safety shower.

Recommendation #4
Observation Summary: During the inspection, it was unclear if aqueous ammonia solution
used to detect chlorine leaks in the Chlorine Storaqe Room was "rnaintained fi'esh."
Supporting Information :

CI Parnphlet 155, Water and Wastewater Operators Chlorine I-landbook, 3rd Edition
Photographs 19 and 39
SOP 2

Description of Observation: An aqlleous ammonia bottle pointed out during the inspection
was not labeled with contents or date (see Photograph l9). Section 4.3.1 ol'Cl Pamphlet 155

says, "To produce ammonia vapor, a plastic squeeze bottle containing commercial, 26o Baurnd
(30 wt.%) or stronger, aqua ammonia (ammoniurn hydroxide solution) should be used. A
weaker solution such as household ammonia may not be concentrated enough to detect minor
leaks." Section 3.2 of SOP 2 states that the solution should be replaced "quarterlv to refresh."
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EPA recommends placing expiration date on bottle to ensure solution is refreshed regularly
and operators are aware of such date.

Section 4.3 of SOP 2 states, "Always tightly close tlie ammonia bottle after use." The squeeze
bottle provided to operators did not appear have a way to close it. EPA notes that the bottle
has a sponge in it, which rnight have been added to reduce evaporation. Evaluate if Section 4.3
is still applicable.

SECTION V - LIST OF APPBNDICES

Attachment 1: Inspection Participation Sign*in Sheet, Signed Notice of Inspection, Signed
Receipt of Notice of Right to Clairn Confidentiality, & Documents
Review/Documents Requested
Photoglaph Log and Photographs
Risk Management Program Level 3 Process Checklist
EPCRA $$ 302-312 / CERCLA $ 103 Inspection Checklist

Attachment 2

Attachment 3

Attachrnent 4

Observation Summary: There was confusing signage on the outside of the door to the
Chlorine Storaqe Room.
Supporting Information
Photoeraph 13

Description of Observation: The Chlorine Storage Room had a label on the door stating,
"Caution 300lbs per square foot weight capacity" (see Photograpli 13), 'l'his sign likely
applies to the hoist. However, it is not clear what this means practically as the hoist is designed
for the one-ton containers. Please rernove sign or provide documentation in SOPs as to why
this is important and train operators why they need to be bware of this lirnitation.

Recommendation #6
Observation Summary: The compressed air cylinders in the Chlorine Storage l{oom have not
had a safetv inspection in over five vears.
Supporting Information :

Photosraphs2T and28
Description of Observation: The compressed air cylinders in the Chlorine Storage Room had
a safety inspection tag, with annual inspections beginning in2011 and ending in 2016. The
Plant needs to develop inspectiorr procedure fbr regular inspections for support equipment.
Also, high pressure cylinders are typically required to be hydrostatically tested at least every
five years indicating tl-rat these cylinders may need to be sent out for testing.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION IX

75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

Enclosure

Information Request
Stafford Water Treatment Plant, Novato, California

INSTRUCTIONS

1. Please provide a separate response to each request and identifu each response by the number of
the request to which it coresponds. For each document produced, identifu the request to which it is
responsive.

2. Knowledge or information that has not been memorialized in any document, but is nonetheless
responsive to a request, must be provided in a nanative form.

3. The scope of this Information Request includes all information and documents obtained or
independently developed by the Operator, its attorneys, consultants or any of their agents,
consultants, or employees.

4. The Operator may not withhold any information from EPA on the grounds that it is confidential
business information. EPA has promulgated regulations, under 40 C.F.R. Part2, Subpart B, to
protect confidential business information that it receives. The Operator may assert a business
confidentiality claim (in the manner specified in 40 C.F.R. $ 2.203(b)) for all or part of the
information requested by EPA. However, business information is entitled to confidential treatment
only if it satisfies the criteria set forth in 40 C.F.R. S 2.208. EPA will disclose business information
entitled to confidential treatment only as authorized by 40 C.F.R. Part2, Subpart B. If no claim of
confidentiality accompanies the information at the time EPA receives it, EPA may make it available
to the public without further notice.

5. Notice is hereby given that, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. $ 2.301(h), EPA may disclose confidential
information provided by the Operator to EPA's authorized representatives, including its contractors.
Confidential information may be disclosed to EPA's authorized representatives for the following
reasons: to assist with document handling, inventory and indexing; to assist with document review
and analysis for verification of completeness; and to provide expert technical review of the contents
of the response. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. $ 2.301(h), the Operator may submit, along with its response

to this Information Request, any comments regarding EPA's disclosure of confidential information
to its authorized representatives.

6. If information or documents not known or available to the Operator at the time of its response to
this Information Request later become known or available to it, it must supplement its response to
EPA. Moreover, should the Operator find at any time after the submission of its response that any
portion of the submitted information is false or misrepresents the truth, the Operator must notify
EPA as soon as possible and provide EPA with a corrected response.
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7 . If inlormation responsive to a request is not in the Operator's possession, custody, or control,
identify the persons or entities from whom such information may be obtained. For each individual
or entity that possesses responsive information, please provide the following: llalre, last known or
current address, telephone number, and affiliation with the Operator or the Facility.

8. If you believe there are grounds for withholding inforrnation or documents that are responsive to
this request, e.g., attorney-client privilege, you must identifo the infonnation or documents and state

the basis for withholding.

DEFINITIONS

The lbllowing definitions apply to the following terms (words or phrases) as they appear in this
Information Request. Defined terms are enclosed in quotation marks:

L "YoLr" or the "Operator" shall mean the North Marin Water District, or its officers, rnanagers,

employees, contractors, trustees, partners, successors, assigns, and agents.

2. "Facility" lneans all buildings, equipment, structures, installations, pipes, or stationary iterns
owned, leased, or operated by the Operator, at the property or properties located at: 3015 Novato
Blvd, Novato, CA, or contiguous or ad.jacent to that address.

3. As used here, "docurnent" and "documents" shall include writings of any kind, formal or
informal, whether or not wholly or partially in handwriting (included by the way of illustration and

not by way of lirnitation), any invoice, rece ipt, endorsement, check, bank draft, canceled check,
deposit slip, withdrawal slip, order, correspondence, record book, minutes, memoranda of telephone
and other conversations (including meetings, agreements and the like), diary, calendar, desk pad,

scrap booh, notebook, bulletin, circular, form, pamphlet, statement, journal, postcard, letter,
telegram, telex, report, notice, message, analysis, comparison, graph, chart, interoffice or intra
ofl-rce communications, photo-stat or other copy of any documents, microfilm or other film record,
any photograph, sound recording on any type of device, any disc or other type of memory generally
associated with cornputers and data processing (togetlier with the programming instructions and

other written material necessary to use such disc other type of rnemory). The terms "docutnent" and

"docurnents" include (a) every copy of each docunient that is not an exact duplicate of a document
which is produced, (b) every copy that has any writing, figure or notation, annotation or the like, (c)
drafts, (d) attachments to or enclosures with any documents and (e) every document referred to in
any other document.

4. All terms not defined herein shall have their ordinary meaning, unless such terms are defined in
the Clean Air Act or its implementing regulations at 40 CFR Part 68, in which case the statutory or
regulatory definitions shall apply.

INFORMATION REQUEST QUESTIONS
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1) Provide a response to each AOC listed in the Inspection Report accompanying this Information

Request, indicating if the Operator accepts ol disputes the factual basis for each AOC.

a) If the Operator accepts the factLral basis for the AOC, indicate if the Operator is presently in

compliance with the cited requirement.

i) If the Operator is presently in compliance with tlie cited requirement provide the

followirig information: (1) a description of what activities the Operator undertook to

come into compliance; and (2) the date on which the Operator came into compliance.

ii) If the Operator is pre,sently nol in compliance with the cited requirement provide the

following information: (1) a description of what actions the Operator will undertake in

order to come into compliance and (2) the date by which compliance will be achieved.

b) If the Operator disputes the factual basis for the AOC or any portion of the AOC, including
the dates asseded for each AOC, provide the basis and supporting documentation for each

such assertion.

2) For each AOC listed in the Inspection Report, provide cost infortnation relating to work

undedaken, planned, or considered to correct identified deficiencies. Cost information may be

either actual or estimated and shall be disaggregated by: a) one-time costs (such as for

engineering and permitting); b) capital costs (such as for equipment); and c) incremental annual

operation and maintenance costs relative to the Operator's level of effort as that existed in

March 2022. For each cost item provided indicate if actual or estin'rated.

3) Provide a statement and supporting documentation for the population serviced by the Operator

for calendar andlor frscal year 2021.
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UNITED STATES ENVI RONMENTAL PROTECTION AG ENCY
REGION IX

75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, GA 94105

Delivered via email: rclark@nmwd.com

In Reply Refer to:
Stafford Water Treatment Plant
3015 Novato Boulvard, Novato, California 94948
RMP# 1000 001s 1364

Robert Clark
Operations & Maintenance Superintendent
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, California 94948

Opportunity for Expedited Settlement Agreement ("ESA") pursuant to Section 113(a)(3)
and (d) of the Clean Air Act (the "Act"), 42 U.S.C. $ 7a13(a)(3) and (d), and by 40
c.F.R. $ 22.13(b).

Dear Robert Clark:

Representatives from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") Region IX conducted

an inspection of the North Marin Water District Stafford Water Treatment Plant facility located

at 3015 Novato Boulvard, Novato, California ("Facility") on September 79,2022 to determine
compliance with requirements under the Emergency Planning and Community Rightto-Know
Act ("EPCRA") Sections 304-312, the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation
and Liability Act ("CERCLA") Section 103, and the Risk Management Program of Section
112(r)(7), of the Clean Air Act ("CAA"). Potential violations were identified as outlined in the
inspection report sent to the Facility November 11,2022.

EPA Region IX is extending to you an opportunity to quickly resolve your infractions by
correcting your violations and paying a substantially reduced penalty under EPA's Expedited
Settlement process. If you choose to participate in the Expedited Settlement process, we will
settle the violations listed in the attached ESA for a civil penalty of $8,580. We are providing
this incentive to resolve outstanding violations as quickly as possible. Otherwise, under CAA $

113(b), 42 U.S.C. $ 7413(b), and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, potential violators may be penalized up to

$48,192 per day for violations discovered.

RE

ATTACHMENT 2



We encourage you to immediately review the RMP requirements to determine your compliance
status. You have forty-five (45) days from the date you receive this letter to take advantage of
this opportunity.

If you determine that you are not subject to or have not violated the RMP requirements described
in the attached ESA, please provide a written explanation, along with any supporting
documentation within forty-five (45) days of your receipt of this letter.

If you confirm that you did not properly comply with the RMP requirements described below,
you may take advantage of the Expedited Settlement process and reduced penalty by responding
to this notice within forty-five (45) days of your receipt of this letter.

In signing the attached ESA, you are certi$ring that you have corected your CAA $ 112(r) RMP
violations and paid the assessed penalty, and you are waiving your opportunity for a hearing or
an appeal concerning your violation of the CAA $ 112(r) RMP requirements. This Agreement
covers only the violations alleged in the ESA. The Agreement does not address compliance with
any other CAA $ lI2(r) RMP requirements.

Please be advised that correcting the violations without participating in a settlement with
EPA does not resolve your liability for the violations alleged in the ESA, nor your
responsibility to comply with all applicable requirements under CAA $ ll2(r).

If you do not follow the procedures outlined in the attached ESA (e.g., comply with the CAA $

ll2(r)(7) requirements described below, pay the assessed penalty, and sign the ESA) within
forty-five (45) days of receipt of this letter, this settlement offer will be automatically withdrawn
without prejudice to EPA's ability to file an enforcement action for the cited violation. EPA may
seek penalties ofup to $48,192 per day for each violation.

We are committed to the fair and rapid settlement of this matter. Please email a copy of all
correspondence relating to this notice to Cyntia Steiner, Enforcement Officer, at

ste iner. cynt ia@ep a. gov .

Sincerely,

AMY M I LLER- il,,1i1il_"J'Jiiv ^""
BOWEN ?11;;?ozs 

o+ ts ts'ss'+s

Amy C. Miller-Bowen, Director
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
U.S. EPA Region IX

J. Barnes, Marin County CUPA, JBarnes@marincounty.org
M. Faryna, Marin County CUPA, MFaryna@marincounty.org
E. Brega, CalEPA, elizabeth.brega@calepa.ca.gov



DOCKET NO:

This ESA is issued to:

For
At:

TINITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION IX

75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

II,XPF"DTTF"D SF"TT T,F',MF',NT A GRF'.RMF',NT

CAA( 1 l2r) -09 -2023 -00 47

North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, California 94948

Violation of Section 112(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act.
Stafford Water Treatment Plant, 3015 Novato Blvd., California 94948

This Expedited Settlement Agreement ("ESA") is being entered into by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"), Region IX, by its duly delegated official, Amy C. Miller-
Bowen, Director, Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division, and North Marin Water District
("Respondent") pursuant to Section 113(a)(3) and (d) of the Clean Air Act (the "Act"), 42 U.S.C. $

7a13@)(3) and (d), and by 40 C.F.R. $ 22.13(b). EPA has obtained the concurrence of the U.S.
Department of Justice, pursuant to Section 113(dXl) of the Act, 2 U.S.C. $ 7413(dX1), to pursue this
administrative enforcement action.

ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

Following its September 19,2022 inspection, EPA alleges Respondent's failure to:

1. Document adequatly information concerning the technology of the process, in accordance with
Section 112(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.65(cX1).

2. Document adequatly information pertaining to the equipment in the process, in accordance with
Section 112(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. S 68.65(dX1).

3. Document adequatly that equipment complies with recognized and generally accepted good
engineering practices, in accordance with Section 112(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $

68.65(dX2)
4. Address recommendations fiom the 2015 Processhazard analysis (PHA) in a timely manner, in

accordance with Section ll2(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.67(e).
5. Include steps of each operating phase, including normal startup and shutdown each season, in

accordance with Section ll2(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.69(a)(l).
6. Include the required safety and health considerations ofthe properties of, and hazards presented

by, the chemicals used in the process in the operating procedures, in accordance with Section
lr2(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.69(a)(3)(i).

7. Certiff annually that the operating procedures are current and accurate in2021, in accordance
with Section 112(r)(7) ofthe Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.69(c).

8. Develop safe working practices to provide for the hazard of opening process equipment or piping,
in accordance with Section 112(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.69(d).

9. Provide adequate initial training in the operating procedures, in accordance with Section ll2(r)(7)
of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.71(a).

10. Provide refresher training at least every three years, in accordance with Section ll2(r)(7) of the



CleanAirAct and40 C.F.R. $ 68.71(b).
1 1. Conduct inspections and tests of process equipment are consistent with applicable manufacturers'

recommendations and good engineering practices, in accordance with Section 112(r)(7) of the
Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.73(dX3).

12. Correct equipment deficiencies outside of acceptable limits (defined by the process safety
information in $ 68.65) before further use or in a safe and timely manner when necessary means
are taken to assure safe operation, in accordance with Section 112(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and
40 C.F.R. $ 68.73(e).

13. Develop accurate emergency response procedures relating to use of the Chlorine Institute
Emergency Kits, in accordance with Section ll2(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. S

68.es(a)( I )(iii).
14. Develop emergency response procedures for the use of equipment emergency response equipment

and for its inspection, testing, and maintenance, such as the Chlorine Institute Emergency Kits, in
accordance with Section ll2(r)(7) of the Clean Air Act and 40 C.F.R. $ 68.95(aX2).

SETTLEMENT

In consideration of Respondent's population served, its full compliance history and previous penalties
assessed, if any, its good faith effort to comply, the duration and seriousness of the violation, the
economic impact of the penalty, and other factors as justice may require, the parties enter into this ESA
in order to settle the violations described above for the total penalty amount of $8,580.

This sefflement is subiect to the following terms and conditions:



1) The Respondent by signing below admits to jurisdiction, neither admits nor denies the specific
factual allegations contained above, and consents to the assessment of the penalty as stated above.
Respondent waives its rights to a hearing afforded by Section 113(dX2XA) of the Act,42U.S.C
$7413(dX2)(A), and to appeal this ESA. Each party to this action shall bear its own attorney's fees

and costs, if any. Respondent also certifies, subject to civil and criminal penalties for making a
false submission to the United States Government, that the Respondent has corrected the violations
listed above and has sent an Online Payment through the Department of Treasury:
WWW.PAY.GOV (Enter SFO 1.1 in search field. Open form and complete required fields). EPA
encourages electronic payments, but alternatively you may send a cashier's check or certified
check (payable to the Treasurer, United States of America) in the amount of $8,580 in payment of
the full penalty amount to the following address:

US Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
PO Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

The payment should reference Respondent's name and a copy of this ESA must be included with the
check/online payment. Please send a copy of your payment confirmation and the signed ESA to
Cyntia Steiner at: steiner.cyntia@epa.gov .

2)PursuanttoCAA$1la(a)(1)(B)|42U.S.C.$7a1a(a)(1)@)]
ITStr'.P ^ Region Tv descrihing how each area of identified non-comnliance has heen
addressed. Such documentation is due to EPA within 45 calendar days of your receipt of this
letter. If you have corrected non-compliance and intend to resolve EPA's penalty action through
the enclosed ESA, your signature affirms that the listed violations have been conected. Whenyou
return the signed ESA to EPA, please provide documentation describing how each area of
identified non-compliance was addressed along with an estimate of the cost you incurred fixing
those deficits.

Upon Respondent's submission of the signed original ESA, EPA will take no further civil penalty
action against Respondent for the violations of the Act alleged above. This ESA shall not be construed
as a covenant not to sue, a release, waiver, or limitation of any rights, remedies, powers, or authorities,
civil or criminal that EPA has under the Act or any other statutory, regulatory, or common law
enforcement authority of the United States, except as stated above.

If the signed ESA with an attached copy of the payment is not returned to the EPA Region IX office at

the above address in correct form by the Respondent within 45 days of the date of Respondent's
receipt of the proposed ESA and EPA has not granted an extension of its offer to settle, the ESA is
withdrawn, without prejudice to EPA's ability to file an enforcement action for the violations identified
herein.



This ESA is binding on the parties signing below.

This ESA is effective upon filing with the Regiorial l-learing Clerl<.

F-OR RESPONDIINT: North Marin Water District

Signature te:

Name (print):

Title (print):



FOR COMPLAINANT: Ilnvironmental Protection Agency

Date

Arny C. Miller-Bowen, Director
Enfbrcement and Compliance Assurance Division
U.S. EPA Region IX

It is hereby ORDERED that this ESA be entered, and Respondent pays the above penalty

-Date

Steven L. Jawgiel
Regional Judicial Officer
tJ.S. EPA Region IX



Penal8 Calculation

Municipality Name: North Marin Water District
Municipality Address: 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato, California 94948
Facility Name: Stafford Water Treatment Plant
Facility Address: 3015 Novato Blvd., California 94948

SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS: ee attached Base Cost

Adjusted Total Penalty: $8,580 (See penalty adjustment calculation chart below)

PENALTY ADJUSTMENT CALCULATION:

Facility RMP ID #:
Program Level:
Population Served:

1000 001s 1364

J

63,9951

Chemical/Quantity reported: Chlorine
Threshold Quantity (TQ):
Times TQ: 3.2

8,000lbs.
2,500lbs.

Times for Chemical in rocess

Total tion Served

thttos:llnmwd.comlaboul/about/#:-:text:Northo/o20MarinYo20WaterYo2}District%o2}serves.Marino/o20area%o20near%o20theo/o2

0coast

Penalty Total
f{Jnit x Ouantitv)Statute Violation

Penalty Unit
Charee

Quantity of
Violations

$60040 C.F.R. I 68.65 (cXl) $600 1

40 c.F.R. Q 68.65 (d)(1) $600 3 $1,800
40 c.F.R. I 68.65 (d)(2) $ 1,500 1 $ 1,500

40 C.F.R. $ 68.67(e) $ 1.500 1 $ I,500
40 C.F.R. I 68.69(a) $ I,200 -) $3,600
40 C.F.R. Q 68.69(c) $1.200 1 $1,200
40 c.F.R. A 68.69(d) $900 1 $900
40 C.F.R. I 68.71(a) $1.500 1 $1,500
40 c.F.R. S 68.716) $1.500 1 $1,500
40 c.F.R. A 68.73(dX3) $900 J $2,700
40 C.F.R. $ 68.73(e) $900 -1 $2,700

s75040 C.F.R. A 68.95(a)(1Xiii) $7s0 1

40 C.F.R. I 68.95(aX2) $1,200 1 $1,200



0.6 0.8 1.0

Adjusted Penalty Calculation:
Unadjusted Base Penalty Sub-total x Multiplier Adjustment: $21,450 x 0.4: $8,580 Final
Adjusted Penalty

40 C.F.R. -- Part 40 of Code of Federal Regulations





Item #11
North Bay Watershed Association

Board Meeting - Agenda
May 5, 2023 | 9:30 * 11:30 a.m.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT THE

City of Petaluma Ellis Creek Treatment Plant
3890 Cypress Dr, Petaluma, CA 94954

For those wishing to attend virtually

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom. us/i/8163067397 1?pwd=dm94TXJCRWMvWF BLc3 U5V2pTSm N RZz09

Webinar lD: 816 3067 397L Password: 2L646O

Agenda and materials will be available the day of the meeting at: www.nbwatershed.ors

AGENDA

Time Agenda Item Proposed
Action

9:30 Welcome and Call to Order - RoIl Call and Introductions

Jean Mariani, Chair

N/A

9:35 General Public Comments

This time is reserved for the public to address the Committee about matters
NOT on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Committee.

N/A

9:40 Agenda and Past lVleeting Minutes Review

Jean Mariani, Chair

Treasurer's Reports

Jean Mariani, Chair

Approve/
Review

9:45 NBWA FY23l24 Workplan Overview

Andy Rodgers, Executive Director

Andy will summarize NBWA'sFY23l24 workplan for Board consideration

ofapproval.

Approval

10:15 NBWA Website Re-Design Preview

Tony Hale, PhD, Program Director, Environmental Informatics Program
San Francisco Estuary Institute

Tony will share a beta version of an updated NBWA website that SFEI
and NBWA staff have been working on this year.

Presentation



North Bay Watershed Association
Board Meeting

May 5, 2023

Page2

10:40 Executive Director Report

Andy Rodgers, Executive Director

Andy will provide general updates on NBWA activities since the April 7
Board meeting, including active projects, recent meetings, regional
programs and initiatives, communications, and committees.

Andy will summarize anew initiative to support workforce development
in the north bay.

ED updates,
Board
questions, and
input

0011 Water Year 2023 Updates I Board Information Exchange

Members

Members will highlight issues and share items of interest.

N/A

11:30 Announcements/Adj ourn

Next Board Meeting: June 212023 (Field Trip?)

N/A

NORTH BAY WATERSHED ASSOCIATION n\c\905\60-22-04\wp\Board Meetings\23 05 05





Item #12
DISBURSEMEruTS - DATED MAY 4, 2023

Date Prepared 511123

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seo Pavable To For Amount

1

2

3

4

5

6

11 Core Utilities, lnc

12 Cummings Trucking

13 East Bay MUD

14 Electrical Equipment Co

15 Ferguson Watenruorks

Fiserv/Bastogne lnc.

Propane (STP)

April2023 Employee Paid Benefit

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Legal Fees-General ($4,088) & NMWD Portion
Potter Valley FERC ($6SZ;

Annual Halogen Valve Certification (STP)

Lab Testing (O.M. Sewer)

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Prog Pymt#23: Provide Construction
Management Services for NMWD Admin
Building Renovation (Balance Remaining on
Contract $404,382)

Consulting Services: March lT Support
($6,000), SCADA Support ($3,075),
Programmable Logic Controllers-West Marin
($1,025) & Maintenance of Telemetering
Equipment-West Marin) ($300)

Rock (16yds) & Sand (32 yds) Deliveries

Annual Bay Area Chemical Consortium
Participation Fee

Motor Contacts & Overloads for Grinder Motor

@ Oceana Marin Lift Station

5/8" Meters (100)

Return Payment-Not Our Customer

All Star Rents

American Family Life lns

Andros, Blake

Barbieri, Doris

Beardmore, Neal

Bold & Polisner

Borges & Mahoney

Caltest Analytical Laboratory

Connolly, Wendi

Consolidated CM

$32.64

3,582.90

373.33

26.16

800 00

4,740,30

579.98

60.80

800.00

60,910.36

10,400.00

945.00

1,718.00

320.45

25,823.00

126.02

7

B

o

10

16

*Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated May 4,2023



Seq Payable To For Amount

17

18

19

20

21 KP Promotions

Mazur, Robed

Mutual of Omaha

National Safety Council

Nerviani's Backflow

Noll & Tam Architects

29

Northbay Nissan

ODP Business Solutions, LLC

Pace Supply

Pape Machinery lnc,

Pavement Coating Co.

30

31

Pipette.com

Soiland Co., lnc,

Rain Pants (2)

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Exp Reimb: Lunch, Drinks for Construction &
Maintenance During Clean-up Day & Drinks for
Crew Operating Aqueduct Valve Over an
Extended Time

Uniform Order

Vision Reimbursement

Reissue Payment-Original Check Sent to
Wrong Address (Refund Overpayment on
Closed Account)

May 2023-Group Life lnsurance Premium

Membership Renewal (Clyde) (7 123-6124)
(Budget $500)

Backflow Testing for District & Customer
Owned Assemblies (72)

Prog Pymt#24: Consulting Services for NMWD
Headquarters Upgrade A/E Services (Balance
Remaining on Contract $86,448)

Wheel Hub Assembly ('16 Nissan Frontier)

Misc Office Supplies

Gasket (Water Treatment Maintenance)

Service Parts ('04 Backhoe)

Reissue Payment-Original Lost in Mail (Refund
Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less Final
Biil)

Lab Testing

Rock (32 yds) ($t ,077) & Asphalt Recycling (8

vds)

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Fishman Supply Co

Grainger

Home Depot

Kehoe, Chris

1,528.34

Rapid Set Concrete (50) & Sprinkler Wire (500') 888.79

67.86

250.88

135.31

290.70

188.57

1,230.92

549.00

4,815.00

23,363.25

278.56

158.39

41.20

394.38

683.30

205.00

1,306.28

800.00

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

32

33

34

35

*Prepaid

Symonds, Lisa

Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated May 4,2023



Seo Pavable To For Amount

36 USA BlueBook

37 US Geological Survey (USGS)

VWR lnternational LLC

Waste Management

ZORO

Triodes (2) (STP)

1/3 Share of FY24 Gallagher Stream Gauge
Maintenance

Sulfuric Acid (Lab)

Waste Disposal

Carbide Blades (2) & Hard Hat
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

38

39

40

800.72

8,770.00

98.08

114.80

229.21
s'EBZnz,g

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $158,427.48 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

[y.z os
Date

-r/z/s
er

General wse fate/r

*Prepaid Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated May 4,2023



DISBURSEMENTS - DATED MAY 11, 2023

Date Prepared 518123

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R* Employees

90586. lnternal Revenue Service

90585. State of California

90587. CaIPERS

90584. CaIPERS

AT&T

Baradaran, Hamid

Borges & Mahoney

Braun, Steve

Comcast

6 Core & Main

DataTree

Direct Line lnc

Flume Water

Forevergreen Landscape &
Maintenance

Net Payroll PPE 4130123

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 4130123

State Taxes & SDI PPE 4130123

Pension Contribution PPE 4l3ol23

May lnsurance Premium (Employer $48,868,
Retirees $12,194 & Employees $8,278)

Telephone, Fax, Leased Lines & Data

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Vacuum Regulator Repair (STP)

West Marin "Washer Rebate" Program

Ethernet Dedicated lnternet (999 Rush Creek
Place)

Couplings (60) ($1 ,557), Nipples (20), Plugs
(15) & Elbows (20)

April Subscription to Parcel Data lnfo

April Telephone Answering Services

lnstallation of Flume Leak Detection Devices for
Pilot Program (15) (West Marin)

Weed Removal @ Lynwood Pump Station

2

3

4

5

$174,399.41

75,998.21

16,109.55

44,086.10

69,340.54

496.75

100.00

1 ,164.03

100.00

1,562.93

1 ,815.50

100.00

376.82

2,278.50

490.00

7

8

9

'10

*Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated May 11,2023



Seq Payable To For

11 Freyer & Laureta, lnc Prog Pymt#6: Engineering & Design Services
for Lynwood Pump Station ($22,916) (Balance
Remaining on Contract $86,575) & Prog
Pymt#17: Engineering & Design Services for
NMWD's Hydropnematic Pressure Stations
($6,163) (Balance Remaining on Contract
$13,481)

Friedman's Home lmprovement Miscellaneous Hardware, SmartKey Deadbolt &
Lumber

13 Grainger Sump Pump Tether Float ($338) (STP), Air
Valves (3) ('02 lnt'l Dump Truck) ($324) &
Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

14 Kemira Water Solutions Ferric Chloride (10 dry tons) (STP)

Vision Reimbursement

Amount

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

12

LGVSD

Lincoln Life Employer Serv

Marin Color Service

Marin Landscape Materials

Moyer, Scott

Nationwide Retirement Solution

Nerviani's Backflow

North Marin Auto Parts

North Bay Gas

Novato Builders Supply

Novato 4th of July Parade

ODP Business Solutions, LLC

Orellana, Luis

Recycled Water Deliveries (1 I 1 123-3131 123)

Deferred Compensation PPE 4130123

Paint & Supplies

Crushed Rock (5 yds)

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Deferred Compensation PPE 4130123

Backflow Testing on District & Customer Owned
RP (27) & DC (17) Assemblies

Service Parts ('16 Nissan Frontier &'18 Dodge
Ram, '13 Vac Excavator) & Miscellaneous
Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Drill lndex, Lube Stick, Nitrogen & Breathing Air
(srP)

Shims, Caulk & Lumber

Entry Fee 'for 2023 Parade

Misc Office Supplies

Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program

29,078.51

574.66

1,846.81

11,822.98

119.00

1,362.14

11,804.20

126.14

396.03

100.00

2,035.00

2,945.00

1,657.93

1,105.82

156.93

100.00

153.89

75.00

24

25

26

27

28

*Prepaid Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated May 11,2023



Seo Pavable To For Amount

29 Pace Supply

30 Recology Sonoma Marin

31 RH & Sons Water Services

32 Sanders, Donna M.

33 Scott Technology Group

34 Stocker, Michael

35 Thatcher Company of California

36 Toyota Material Handling

37 USA BlueBook

38 Verizon Wireless

39 Verizon Wireless

40 Vulcan Materials Company

41 Weishaar, Richard

42 Winzer Corporation

43 West Yost Associates

44 ZORO

Pipe (80'), Couplings (6) (STP), 8" Double
Check Detector Assembly Bypass ($9,506),
Tapped Flange (STP), Meter Wrench &
Plumbing Supplies (STP)

AprilTrash Removal

Backflow Testing on RP Assemblies (105)

Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program

Monthly Maintenance on Engineering Copier

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Chlorine (4,000 lbs) (STP)

Parts & Labor for Repair on 2018 Gem Cart

Turbidity Standard (STP)

Cellular Charges: Data ($1,365), Airtime, iPads
for Asset Management & Equipment

April SCADA & AMI Collectors

EZ-Street (3 yds)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Miscellaneous Hardware for Auto Shop

Prog Pymt#19: Novato Master Plan Update
($14,534) & Prog Pymt#2O: Recycled Water
Reg 18 Update ($2,703) (Balance Remaining
on Contract $73,610)

Pump Repair Kits (2)

10,176.59

618.51

6,825,00

75.00

229.52

125.00

3,966.00

2,202.06

320.51

1,752.70

1,099.40

696.83

1 19,56

384,63

17,237.25

653.78
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS --$5002€0,12

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $500,260.72 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

Lut -- 0 d
r-Controller Date

th/tt
,oale

*Prepaid Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated May 11,2023
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North Marin Aqueduct – Redwood Blvd Landslide Status
R:\Folders by Job No\4000 jobs\4098.00 Aqueduct Landslide Damage-Repair\Memos\Weekly BOD Updates\NMA RedBlvd Landslide 4-14 to 4-27-23 Status.docx

Date of Report: 4-28-23
Period Covered: 4-17-23 to 4-27-23
Overall Status: Aqueduct in limited operation in conjunction with STP operating to meet 
demands.

Activities Completed/In-progress:

Assessments (NMWD):

a. Interior Pipe Inspection: Completed 4-6-23.
b. Landslide/pipeline survey: completed 4-7-23
c. Test Pit at slide toe: 4-25 and 4-26-23
d. Installed pipeline “benchmark” (movement monitor) 4-26-23

Outcome: The test pit revealed that there are two distinct slide masses: one is deep 
and one is shallower. The deeper slide plane appears to cross through the pipeline 
trench above spring line of the pipe and may have continued directly over the top of the 
pipeline. The upper slide is well above the pipeline elevation. A simple 
benchmark/movement monitor was installed directly over the top of pipe. This consists 
of a reflective marking on the pipe and a 6-inch pipe riser to the surface (see photos).

Assessments (Others):

a. Caltrans engineer observed conditions in NMWD’s test pit 4-26-23.
b. Survey of subsurface conditions, including pipe location 4-27-23.

Outcome: Caltrans will use the survey information for their slide repair/roadway 
reconstruction.

Activity by Others

PG&E has completed the relocation/installation of one transmission main using 
directional drilling techniques. Removal of the Highway 101 temporary bypass will likely 
occur soon. Planning and coordination for the second transmission main has begun.

Meetings:

1. Weekly coordination meetings with Caltrans and PG&E.
2. Regular NMWD response staff meetings on Tuesdays and Thursdays.

Water Demand Analysis

A water demand analysis was completed to demonstrate adequate supply is available 
through June (see table below). Actual demands in late March and April fall within 
estimates.
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NMWD 6-month Water Supply Contingency 
Demands Supply Options (MGD) Response

Time 
Period

Historical 
Demand 
(MGD)

STP 
Production

NMWD 
SUPPLY 

Deficit 
w/o NMA

NMA 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 
@ 4.8 
MGD

NMA 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 
@ 7.2 
MGD

Emergency Demand Reduction Measures or 
Operational Changes

1-Apr-23 7.3 4.3 (3.0) 1.8 4.2 sprinkler system restriction (4-7 to 4-14)
15-Apr-23 8.4 3.6 (4.8) 0.0 2.4 Isolation valves staffed/no restrictions
1-May-23 7.9 3.6 (4.3) 0.5 2.9 NMA flows as needed to meet demand

15-May-23 7.4 3.6 (3.8) 1.0 3.4 NMA flows as needed to meet demand
1-Jun-23 8.7 3.6 (5.1) (0.3) 2.1 NMA flows as needed to meet demands

15-Jun-23 9.2 3.6 (5.6) (0.8) 1.6 NMA flows as needed to meet demands
1-Jul-23 12.1 3.6 (8.5) (3.7) (1.3) Increase NMA flow

15-Jul-23 11.6 3.6 (8.0) (3.2) (0.8) Increase NMA flow
1-Aug-23 12.4 3.6 (8.8) (4.0) (1.6) Increase NMA flow

15-Aug-23 11.8 3.6 (8.2) (3.4) (1.0) Increase NMA flow
1-Sep-23 9.7 3.6 (6.1) (1.3) 1.1 TBD

15-Sep-23 9.1 3.6 (5.5) (0.7) 1.7 TBD

6-
m

on
th

 p
er

io
d

1-Oct-23 8.5 3.6 (4.9) (0.1) 2.3 TBD
15-Oct-23 7.9 3.6 (4.3) 0.5 2.9 TBD
1-Nov-23 6.8 3.6 (3.2) 1.6 4.0 TBD

En
d 

of
 

pr
od

uc
tio

n

15-Nov-23 5.3 3.6 (1.7) 3.1 5.5 TBD
       
NOTES:
Historical demand based on average of FY18/19 to 20/21 production
STP production baseline at 3.6 MGD to allow flexibility
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Communications:

Ongoing coordination with MMWD and SCWA.

1. Website News Story (no changes from last period): 
a. See website: https://nmwd.com/landslide-near-north-marin-aqueduct/ 

Photos:

Test Pit #2 (by NMWD))

https://nmwd.com/landslide-near-north-marin-aqueduct/
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Test Pit #2 (TP-2) Location (also shown: Test Pit #1 and Inclinometer)

twilliams
Arrow

twilliams
Text Box
N
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Test Pit #2 (top of pipe exposed)
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Simplified Cross-Section of Landslide (at test pit #2)
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Pipeline “Benchmark” (movement monitor)

Attachments

 None



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
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1.

Novato Potable Water Prod* - RR & STP Combined - In Million Gallons - FYTD
Month FY2A23 FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 23 vs 22 %

July

August
September
October
Nolember
December
January
February
March

224.5
235.9
203.5
191.6
137.4
106.6
113.8
105.2
123.1

146.4

341.7
290.1

225.6
307.8
201.6
183.0
156.6
110.5
124.1

225.4

341.1

300.9
255.0
265.6
170.1

I 57.8
114.7
110.9
1 38.8
143.8

282.9
212.4
214.5
198.5

94.1

137.1

118 3
118 6
1 30.3
137.7

317.7
287.1

280.5
286.0
226.3
141.2

111.9

120.3

151.8
1 95.0

-21o/o

11o/o

-5o/o

4%o

460/o

-22o/o

4o/o

-11o/o

-60/o

6%

FYTD Total 1,587.8 1 644.5 2,166.2 2,1 1,998.6 -3%7

West Marin Potable Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY2Z23 FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 23 vs 22 %

July
August
September
October
Nolember
December
January
February
March

o.J
6.8
o.J
5.7
4.6
4.3
eo
3.3
3.7
4.9

6.0
F''7

AO

5.1
AA

4.0
3.8
4.0
4.1

5.1

9.2
7.9
6.7
58
5.1

4.2
3.8
5.1

4.8

8.9
8.4
7.8
7.5
6.7
4.8
4.1

4.4
5.2
4.9

10.2

9.9
oq,

o.J

7.3
5.7
5.0
?6

4.4
4.9

B. 2 4Yo

19To

8o/o

13Vo

3Qo/o

7o/o

4o/o

-160/o

-10%
-20/

FYTD Total 49.9 47 B 62.7 68.6 60/o

Stafford Treatment Plant Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY2AT FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 23 vs 22 %

July
August
September
October
Nor,ember

December
January
February
March
April

56.3
67.9
57.8
54.0
30.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

50.5
110.0

67.0
J I.J

41.7
28,2

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

'105.8

81.1

16.1

7.7
0.6
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

68.2
'103,8

115.0
103 4
102.8

nn
0.0
0.0
0.0

30.9

78.6
70?

60.5
74.5

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

19.2
60.3

-16%
117%
39o/o

92o/o

FYTD Total 426.4 168 1 211.3 524.0 372.5 154%

d Water Production* - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
FY2AX FY21/22 F FY18/19 23 vs 22 %

July

August
September
October
Nor,ember

December
January
February
March

43.1

41.6
29.2
24.7

5.1

0.3
0.4
0.4
0.4
5.1

42.9
41.4
39.6
18.3
0.8
0.3
0.8
1.3

14.3

16.7

39.0
43.2
29.5
22.8
10.9
0.2
0.3
0.5

11.4
18.1

JO. C

JJ. J

29.7
26.6
10.8

0.5
0.6
0.6

11.7

12.5

30.2
30.6
JJ.C

20.1

12.7
1.5

0.9
0.3
0.4

10 1

00k

1%

-26%

35%
5260/o

-1o/o

44o/o

-7 1o/o

-97o/o

-690/o

FYTD Total* 150.4 176.0 162.8 140.3 -1

'ExcludespotablewaterinputtotheRwsystem: FY23=10.2MG FY22=10MGiFY21=24.7 MG;FY20='16.7; FY19=20.0MG

\\nrnv df ileserver\adninistration\ac\excel\w tr use\[production, xlsx]nn rpt
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2.  Regional and Local Water Supply 
 

Lake Sonoma 

 Current 2022 

Lake Storage*  85,975 MG 
 

46,630 MG 
    Supply Capacity  99.9 % 58.4 % 

*Normal capacity =-245,000 AF (79,833.5 MG); deviation storage pool of 264,000 AF *86,025 MG) 

Lake Mendocino 

 Current 2022 

Lake Storage * 32,557 MG 
 

15,509 MG 
    Supply Capacity  93.3 % 55.3 % 

 
*Normal capacity = 70,000-110,000 AF (22,800-35,840MG); flood control pool at 80,000 AF (26,000 MG) 
 
 
3.  Stafford Lake Data 

 April Average April 2023 April 2022 

Rainfall this month 1.67 
25.85 

Inches  0.20 Inches 1.23 Inches 
Rainfall this FY to date 25.85 Inches 38.77 Inches   18.13 Inches 
Lake elevation*   193.2 Feet 196.8 

1378 
Feet 191.5 Feet 

Lake storage** 1195 MG 
 

1378 MG 1077 MG 
Supply Capacity 98.6 % 99.9 % 97.7 % 

* Spillway elevation is 196.0 feet 
** Lake storage less 390 MG = quantity available for normal delivery 
 
Temperature (in degrees) 
 

 Minimum Maximum Average 

April 2023 (Novato) 37 88 56 
April 2022 (Novato) 38 88 58 

 
 
4.  Number of Services 
 

April 30 FY23 FY22 Incr % FY23 FY22 Incr % FY23 FY22 Incr % FY23 FY22 Incr %
Total meters installed 20,970 20,852 0.6% 102 101 1.0% 800 799 0.1% - - -
Total meters active 20,820 20,694 0.6% 100 96 4.2% 792 789 0.4% - - -
Active dwelling units 24,097 24,099 0.0% - - - 837 837 0.0% 235 235 0.0%

Novato Water Recycled Water West Marin Water Oceana Marin Swr

 

 

5. Oceana Marin Monthly Status Report (March) 

Description April 2023 April 2022 

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 0.631 0.478 
Irrigation Field Discharge (MG) 0.927 0.407 
Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 4.8 6.8 
 Storage Pond Freeboard (ft)  4.8 9.2 

 



6. Safety/Liability

FY 23 through April
FY 22 through April

,Pumping'Otherl

2022 Stafford TP

Pumping

Otherl

. . 2.?-,9,0.-

30.7Q,

\\nmwdserverl\ad minist rat ion\AC\ EXCEL\Personnel\wc\WC.X LS

lndustrial lnjury with Lost Time
Liability Claims

Paid

Lost Days
OH Cost of
Lost Days

($)

No. of
Emp.

lnwlrcd

No. of
lncidents

lncurred
(FYrD)

Paid
(FYrD)

($)

152
86

$90,752
$28,014

3

3

3

3

1

0
$37,590

$0

Days since lost time accident through April 30, 2023 185 Days

- (1 ) Utatm setuenEnt tor dnvew ay and concrete repatr due to w ater danEge to a property on Bugera Lane. & (2) Landscape

repair due to w ater line break on Taf t Ct.

Ene Cost
Fixal Year-to-Date thru April

kwh Wh Cos

Stafford TP 7q5e-?
86,076

$506
$820

$31 5

1t9-21,740-.. 27 7O

455,604 22 0A

27 74,

31.24

1,048,098

414,945
1,918,647

79

$1,002 ,

$360

,741

27 tA $

21.60
25.40

26.
25.0i, $2,032

28,089 i 35

184,7 56 28,50,

68,791

105,457

6,

22.20
27 3A

30.6d

1,646

$509
$930

$41 3

I

1

...1

1

$330

$e55

$42541,812
J $1,852

21.60
25.7(

35b
535 25.20 $2,962

27 $387 :

071

Stafford TP

Pumpin$

Otherl

,

1:

I

:

I

a

I

.:

.-68r583
258,596

439,446
1,545,206

492,023
2,476,675

$31 I
$1,288

$433
723

;1othe r includes West Marin Facilities

epr!l
//kwhFYE Coskwh i

33.

5149_90

1,075,040

333,711

22:54
28.50,

.. i \\nrudfileserver\administration\AC\Board Reports\PGE\PG&E Usage\FY.22.23\[PGE Usage4.2023.xlsx]rc rpt:

8. Water Conservation U

Month of
April2023

Fiscal Year to
Date

Program Total
to Date

Hish Efficiencv Toilet (HET) Rebates 0 64 4,472

Retrofit Certificates Filed 5 75 6,774

Cash for Grass Rebates 4 39 1,056

Washing Machine Rebates 1 17 6,884

Water Smart Home Survev 2 11 3,919

T:\GM\Progress Report\2o23\Cutr€nt Progress Report April 2023.doc 3
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9. Utility Performance Metric 
 

 
Planned 

For the month of April, we had 56 planned service disruptions. 

Plastic: We replaced 3 plastic services on Alameda De La Loma, Novato Blvd, and a 2” service on Escallonia 
Dr.  

Copper: We replaced 1 copper service on San Andreas Dr. 

Valve Replacement: There were 3 valves replaced on Ignacio Valley Circle. 2-2” blow off valves and 1-4” valve 
that was broken during the shutdown for one of the blo- off valves. 

Unplanned 

Unplanned: There was two main breaks in Novato for the month of April. A 6” ac break on Feliz Rd and a 2” 
PVC on Los Dias Ct which affected 33 services. 

SERVICE DISRUPTIONS  
(No. of Customers Impacted) 

April 2023 April 2022  Fiscal Year to 
Date 2023 

Fiscal Year to 
Date 2022 

PLANNED     

Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 56 39 160 110 
Duration Between 4 and 12 hours 0 0 11 17 
Duration Greater than 12 hours 0 0 0 0 
UNPLANNED     
Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 33 97 158 114 
Duration Between 4 and 12 hours 0 0 74 0 
Duration Greater than 12 hours 0 0 0 0 
     
SERVICE LINES REPLACED     
Polybutylene 3 1 47 35 
Copper Replaced or Repaired) 1 0 15 16 



10. Summarv of Complaints and Service Orders

Taq Breakdown
1- 16,

Billinq

,No-Water

Total: 2L4 Consumer:

z
2

26

0

98
L

i-

h BiilHig

1t:

26 17Meter Replacel!ent
Total,

I
....................' ....... .

Need Read i

Totali

17,

:
I

Total:

: Leak
lCons umer
,District

Tota

W_atgr Quality
Taste/ Odor
rrinlolty
Color

Tota

l

t

l!
-f
l

i

i
t

i-
:

ll

14

127

5l

31

o

29
302
142

tl:

0;

i

^^,26)

:Check Pressure

Turn Off / On
Total

iS9-r
Total

;Water Quality
tNoisy Pipes

lPressure
lfurn Of 7 On

! Eises!J9-erJ9-Erie!-E!:
:l
:t

1 FY 221231

:, rv zll,;zi t

I

o

I

I

214

1B

1BB

45
JJ

1.697

17

176

232 -8%

94% tlncrease in No-Water
4%;lncrease in Leaks

71o/o:lncrease - Tags lncl Feb-, & Mar
Decrease in Noisy Pipes

61% lncrease in Water Pressure
34% rlncrease in Water On/Off
3b% lncrease in Misc. Tags
9%:lncrease olerall

;Change Primarilv Due To
67o lncrease in e!!!ing
7%;lncrease in Meter Replacements
07" tto chahge

7 4:
c

1Bi

zzo
Other
Total

Bill Adjusfments Under Board Po

April 23 vs. April 22

Apr-23i

103

licv:

: -").
10

1o

1 39:

151 i
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To:

From [Jt\f

NORTH ftTARIN

WATER DISTNICT

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors Date: May 16,2023

Nancy Williamson, Accounting Supervisor
Julie Blue, Auditor Controller 

1!6
Subject: FY 23124lnsurance Renewal

t:\ac\word\insurance\24\ry24 ins memo.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $360,427 - lncluded in Fiscal Year (FY) 23124 Operations Budget

Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. lnsurance Brokers of CA, lnc., in San Francisco, has been the

District's brokerage firm the past eleven years. JPRIMA (CalMutuals Joint Powers Risk and

lnsurance Management Authority) has carried our Property and Liability coverage package for

the past four years, including Workers' Compensation coverage with JPRIMA-Zenith lnsurance

Company.

JPRIMA's proposal for Property and Liability coverage is $230,014 compared to $181 ,730

last year and their 1't dollar worker's compensation coverage plan came in at $143,365 compared

to $129,532 last year. This coverage is for a pooled type deductible plan.

Prior to FY20, the District self-insured the first $1 million of its general and auto liability

since 1989, which is also known as a Self-lnsured Retention (SlR). By selecting the deductible

plan package proposal, the District's risk is reduced by $900,000 to a maximum of $100,000 per

claim.

Created in 2016, JPRIMA is a pooled insurance program designed specifically for mutual

water companies, as well as smaller water programs. The Authority provides customized

insurance solutions to smallwater systems throughout California whose operations comprise the

development, transportation, management, storage, treatment or distribution of water. JPRIMA is

operated by Allied Public Risk, a Managing General Underwriter (MGU), that sees to the day-to-

day operations and internal practices of the pool.

The total package, including Workers Compensation, reflects a cost increase of $63,294

(21o/o) from the current year premium. General liability and auto increased $47,492 (30%),

Workers Comp increased $14,01 3 (11o/o) and Cyber liability increased $1,790 (260/o).
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INSURANCE MARKET RECAP

lnsurance buyers have faced a challenging market from 2019 through 2022, as carriers

have become more selective on risks, raised rates and reduced limits. The excess loss market

has been particularly challenging, with significant rate gains and threshold increases. Hurricane

lan's impact on the property market is still unclear, but carriers are closely scrutinizing submitted

replacement cost valuations to ensure accuracy. Property remains a hard market for those in

challenging asset classes, with higher rate increases and increased deductible structures. The

Cyber market is also tough, with carriers increasing retention amounts and imposing revenue

thresholds, resulting in rate/premium increases of 40% to over 100%.

PROPOSAL SUMMARY

Below is a summary which outlines the total cost of insurance by type. This table compares

the cost of insurance for FY 22123 to FY 23124.

fnsurance P EY22t23 FY23l24 ' L
Property (lnclucles Crine)

Liabilityl (lncludes Auro & Po/Mgmr Liabiliry)

Workers'Comp
Cyber Liability
Total Cost

A furlher breakdown is shown in the table below which outlines the total coverage,

deductibles, and premiums by type of insurance. This table also compares these variables related

to insurance for FY 22123 compared to FY 23124. Following the table are descriptions of the types

of insurance policies obtained by the District in FY 23124.

FY 2022/23 Actual FY Renewal

JPRIMA-ALLIED WORLD

JPRIMA-ALLIED WORLD

JPRIMA-ALLIED WORLD

JPRIMA-ALLIED WORLD

JPRIMA-ALLIED WORLD

J PRIMA-Zenith

Great American

Property lnsurance

General Liability

Vehicle-Physical Damage

Public Officials/Employment Pract. Liability

Eqp!gyee Fidelity (Crime)

Workers'Compensation
cybercrime lnsurance

Total Cost

s 77,s18,398

10,000,000

r,o39,43r
1,000,000

s2s0K-s1M
Statutory

S 2s,ooo

100,000

25,000

100,000

100,000

s 8s,518,398 I s
10,000,000

50,000 s
100,000

25,000

roo,ooo

100,000

49,345 ,

gs,7tt),

15,009 l

t,azs :

143,365 i

a,sgrl

s 73,464

44,648

28,526

1,2,777

1,625

1.29,352

1.,039,431.

1,000,000

S2soK-51M
Statutory

1,000,000 10,000

: 5297,133 I 5360,427 )

PROPERTY INSURANCE

Property insurance protects the District against loss or damage that occurs to the District's

buildings, equipment and water storage tanks. Structures and tanks are insured in an amount up

to the value of the asset. Equipment coverage is provided on an agreed value basis. ln December

1 Liabitity amounts shown are NMWD's net cost after MCWCFCD's contribution ($20,751 in FY23 & $21,542 in
FY24).

$75,089
$85,89 1

$129,352
$6.801

$107,407
$ 101,065

$ 143,365

$8.s91

43%
t8%
t1%
26%

$297,133 9360,427 2l,h
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2015 the District obtained a certified appraisal of its buildings, pump stations and water storage

tanks to minimize negotiation in the event of a property loss. These values are adjusted each year

by the San Francisco Construction Cost index published in the Engineering News Record. The

insured value of the District's propefty, excluding fleet vehicles increased B% from the prior year,

to $85 million.

GENERAL AND AUTO LIABILITY UMBRELLA INSURANCE

General and Auto Liability umbrella coverage provides a backstop in the event of a large

liability claim (bodily injury, property damage, personal injury) where the damage exceeds both

the deductible and primary General Liability coverage limit. The umbrella covers subsidence,

failure to supply, inverse condemnation, eminent domain and dam failure. A 1985 agreement

with the Marin County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (MCFCWCD) requires North

Marin to maintain a minimum $10 million liability policy and obligates MCFCWCD to pay the

incremental cost of increasing the limit from $5 million to $10 million. JPRIMA's General Liability

package insures the first $lmillion and their Excess Liability package insures the next $9 million,

providing total coverage of $10 million. Under JPRIMA's proposed policy, MCFCWCD's share of

the costwill be $21,542 nextfiscal yearforthe $5 million in additional coveraqe required under

the agreement.

VEHICLE PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE

Comprehensive & Collision insurance for District autos and trucks protects the District

against physical damage occurring due to collision, fire, theft, etc., on an agreed value basis. The

insured value of the District's vehicle fleet increased 26% to $1,305,981 overthe prior FY.

PUBLIC OFFICIALS ERRORS & OMISSIONS AND EMPLOYEMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY

Errors and Omissions is a form of liability coverage that insures the District Board and

Officers against claims made for "breach of duty" occurring through negligence, error or

unintentional omission. lt also includes Directors' and Officers' Employment Practice Liability

lnsurance, covering claims for wrongful termination, discrimination, harassment, etc.

EMPLOYEE FIDELITY (CRIME) INSURANCE

The employee blanket fidelity bond insures the District against loss occurring through

dishonesty (fraud) on the paft of District employees. Crime coverage includes employee theft and

electronic funds transfer fraud.
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WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSU RANCE

ln 2019 the District entered into a 1't dollar workers' compensation plan with Zenith

lnsurance Company. This type of plan is a pooled plan which eliminates the risk of $'1M out of

pocket costs as with the previous Self-lnsured Retention plan as well as reduced administrative

costs.

CYBER LIABILITY INSURANCE

The District first purchased a Cyber Liability policy in FY15. Cyber Liability coverage

insures against loss of sensitive or personally identifiable information (such as social security

numbers, credit card numbers, etc.) and third-pafty claims.



Adding compost and mulch to your garden regularly increases the soil’s ability to
retain moisture. COURTESY OF MPCA

Marin IJ 4/29/23





If you’re working to reduce your water bill, consider reviewing your current usage. We all
understand the importance of conserving water in the household. Your garden is one of the
easiest places to reduce your water consumption.

Several studies have demonstrated that 50% of residential clean drinking water is used
outdoors and most frequently to water gardens. Watering regimens, especially automated
systems, need to include simple testing, regular observation and periodic adjustment.

Ideally, in our winter wet, summer dry climate, you should only provide supplemental water
during a few months in the summer and only if the plants look stressed. Exceptions are if
you have turf lawns or food gardens. The goal is healthy plants throughout the year.
Consider redesigning your garden with plants that thrive in the various microclimates in
our area. That will help you to have a garden you can enjoy year-round.

Properly hydrated plants will maintain optimum health without wasting water and are one
of the elements of a �re-smart landscape plan. The most straightforward test for your
irrigation system ef�ciency is to wait a little while after watering an area, dig down a couple
of inches and note if the soil is damp. Another option is to purchase a moisture meter for
the task. The same idea applies to potted plants.

Please note that too dry soil can be dif�cult to re-moisten. Likewise, water runoff on the
ground or from your pots may indicate that your manual or automated system is
overwatering the area. A little investigation will show you what you need to adjust.

Regularly adding compost and mulch to garden beds has been demonstrated to be effective
in holding moisture in and reducing evaporation from the soil. Continuing to add compost
year after year will improve the soil water retention and bene�t the soil biome, the many
organisms that make the soil more livable for plants.

The recent legal mandate to control organic waste in land�ll is making quality compost
readily available. If you don’t have suf�cient space or don’t want to commit the time and
effort to compost the organic material produced by your garden and home, use your
compost bin.

Rain catchment systems are an excellent way to capture water, even if it is only used to
water houseplants. In most local areas, homeowners can collect rainwater and have the
additional bene�t of being the right pH for plant health. Rainwater also doesn’t contain the
chemicals added to city water to sanitize for drinking and protect pipes from corrosion. As
with greywater systems, many system designs are available for the DIY-er or contractor,
with commercially available components ranging from simple and inexpensive to complex
and pricey.

Dig down or use a simple water moisture meter after your irrigation system runs to
check its e�ciency.



Greywater systems capture sink, shower and laundry water, and can provide supplemental
water for garden beds and trees. For people living with septic systems, there are aerobic
modi�cations available that will allow you to utilize the water portion in your landscape
safely.

Marin Water and North Marin Water District have rebates and incentive programs to help
conserve and better utilize water. You’ll �nd those programs online at
marinwater.org/rebates and nmwd.watersmart.com. Marin Water currently offers Flume
water meters at a subsidized cost, while North Marin customers have digital meters
installed. Both systems allow you to view your water usage by day and hour. Seeing when
and how much water you are using can guide your decisions around conservation.

Resource Conservation Districts (RCDs) and other organizations have resources available
for rural properties. UC Marin Master Gardeners and Marin Municipal Water District will do
a site visit and provide homeowners in Marin with information and advice on improving
their irrigation practices to help conserve Marin’s precious water resources.

For more information, look into the Marin Master Gardener’s Garden Walks program at
marinmg.ucanr.edu.

Sponsored by UC Cooperative Extension, the University of California Marin Master
Gardeners provides science- and research-based information for Marin home gardeners.
Email questions to helpdesk@marinmg.org. Attach photos for inquiries about plant pests or
diseases. Please call 415-473-4910 to see when a master gardener will be at the of�ce or
drop off samples 24/7 in the sample box outside the of�ce. To attend a gardening workshop
or subscribe to Lea�et, a free quarterly e-newsletter, go to marinmg.ucanr.edu.

https://marinwater.org/rebates
https://marinwater.org/rebates
https://nmwd.watersmart.com/
https://nmwd.watersmart.com/
https://marinmg.ucanr.edu/
https://marinmg.ucanr.edu/
mailto:helpdesk@marinmg.org
mailto:helpdesk@marinmg.org
https://marinmg.ucanr.edu/
https://marinmg.ucanr.edu/
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Web & Social Media Report
April 2023



Website Statistics

Aug
2022

Sep
2022

Oct
2022

Nov
2022

Dec
2022

Jan
2023

Feb
2023

Mar
2023

Apr
2023

2022/ 23
Visitors

6,407 5,989 6,037 5,526 6,823 12,873 6,576 8,631 5,410



Social Media Followers

Aug-2022 Sep-2022 Oct-2022 Nov-2022 Dec-2022 Jan-2023 Feb-2023 Mar-2023 Apr-2023

              

Facebook 
 Followers

1,904 1,964 2,005 2,042 2,095 2,172 2,202 2,243 2,300

          

Twitter                
Followers

77 75 74 71 76 110 112 113 120

Instagram 
Followers

689 693 709 722 735 748 759 774 794



NMWD Most Visited Pages

Pages Unique Pageviews % of Total

Home 3,028

Online Billing 1,876

My Water Usage 775

Weather & Production Statistics 368

Landslide Near North Marin Aqueduct 220

Meetings 2023 183

Contact 171

What Is An Acre Foot? 143

Drought is Over. Thank You. 134

https://nmwd.com/
https://nmwd.com/account/online-billing/
https://nmwd.com/account/watersmart/
https://nmwd.com/your-water/stats/
https://nmwd.com/landslide-near-north-marin-aqueduct/
https://nmwd.com/meetings/meetings-2023/
https://nmwd.com/contact/
https://nmwd.com/what-is-an-acre-foot/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/drought/


April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

497 people reached | 48 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

180 people reached | 5 engagements



April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

384 people reached | 16 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

264 people reached | 6 engagements



April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

527 people reached | 63 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

9,641 people reached | 1,656 engagements



April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

276 people reached | 11 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

214 people reached | 31 engagements



April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

287 people reached | 28 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

136 people reached | 1 engagement



April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

69 people reached | 2 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

367 people reached | 29 engagements



April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

958 people reached | 45 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

371 people reached | 34 engagements



April Social Media Highlights | Facebook

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

1,152 people reached | 30 engagements



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Twitter



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

12 likes 5 likes



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

3 likes 3 likes



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

14 likes 10 likes



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

31 likes 6 likes



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

3 likes 12 likes



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

4 likes 4 likes



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

16 likes 4 likes



April Social Media Highlights | Instagram

7 likes



Website - April Updates

29

● Updated the “Drought is Over. 
Thank you” page

● Updated the red banner through 
the website with a link to the 
Redwood Blvd Landslide news



April News Stories

30

● Landslide Near North Marin 
Aqueduct

● Drought is Over. Thank You.

● Customers asked to keep irrigation 
off until April 14

● Update On Landslide Near North 
Marin Aqueduct

● Backflow Prevention Assembly 
Testing in Progress

https://nmwd.com/landslide-near-north-marin-aqueduct/
https://nmwd.com/landslide-near-north-marin-aqueduct/
https://nmwd.com/drought-is-over-thank-you/
https://nmwd.com/customers-asked-to-keep-irrigation-off-until-april-14/
https://nmwd.com/customers-asked-to-keep-irrigation-off-until-april-14/
https://nmwd.com/update-on-landslide-near-north-marin-aqueduct/
https://nmwd.com/update-on-landslide-near-north-marin-aqueduct/
https://nmwd.com/backflow-prevention-assembly-testing-in-progress/
https://nmwd.com/backflow-prevention-assembly-testing-in-progress/


Rate Increase Letter Spring 2023 - Novato

Kiosk worked with staff to provide a branded layout for the rate increase letter.



Rate Increase Letter Spring 2023 - West Marin



Facebook Likes Campaign - April Report

This month, we were able to reach over 2,834 people with 
the Likes Campaign

Spend in 
April 2023

Reach 
(Number of 

people who saw 
the ad)

Impressions Results 
(New Page Likes)

Cost Per New 
Page Like

$45.13 2,834 5,471 45 $1.00

We are running an evergreen ad which 
encourages customers in the NMWD 
service areas to ‘like’ (follow) the 
NMWD Facebook page. 



What’s Next?

● Roll out “Drought is Over” social posts

● Social posts to highlight the “Low Income Household Water Assistance 
Program” 

● Continuation of social posts to highlight employees on their work anniversaries 

● Kiosk to work with staff to get photos of construction and maintenance projects 
throughout Novato and West Marin

● Continued work on the Spring Waterline Newsletter 2023

● Redesign of Water Conservation rebate application forms

   



Thank You
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